
FBN General Insurance Limited
Annual Report and Accounts 2018

A Subsidiary of FBNInsurance



INTRODUCTION
OVERVIEW 4
OUR PROFILE 4
OUR STRUCTURE 4
VISION, MISSION AND VALUES 5
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 6

STRATEGIC REPORT
MACROECONOMIC REVIEW 10
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT 12
MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO’S REVIEW 14
OUR BUSINESS MODEL 16
OUR STRATEGY 17
LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE 18
CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 21

GOVERNANCE
LEADERSHIP 23
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 32
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 39

RISK FACTORS
EFFECTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT 42
RISK DECLARATION 50

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CORPORATE INFORMATION 52
REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 53
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 54
CERTIFICATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY 55
CERTIFICATION BY ACTUARY 56
RESULTS AT A GLANCE 57
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 58
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 84
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 85
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 86
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 87
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 88

ABBREVIATIONS 149 
CONTACT INFORMATION 150

The term ‘FBN Holdings Plc’ or the ‘Group’ means FBNHoldings together 
with its subsidiaries. FBN Holdings Plc is a financial holding company 
incorporated in Nigeria on 14 October 2010. The Company was listed on 
the Nigerian Stock Exchange under the ‘Other financial services’ sector 
on 26 November 2012 and has issued and fully paid-up share capital as 
35,895,292,792 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each (N17, 947,646,396). 
In this report the abbreviations ‘Nmn’, ‘Nbn’ and ‘Ntn’ represent millions, 
billions and trillions of naira respectively. 

FBN Holdings Plc is structured along the following business groups: 
Commercial Banking, Merchant Banking and Asset Management, 
Insurance, and Others. 

� The Commercial Banking business comprises; First Bank of Nigeria 
Limited, FBNBank (UK) Limited, FBNBank DRC Limited, FBNBank 
Ghana Limited, FBNBank The Gambia Limited, FBNBank Guinea 
Limited, FBNBank Sierra Leone Limited, FBNBank Senegal Limited 
and First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited.  FirstBank (Nigeria) is 
the lead entity of the Commercial Banking business. 

� The Merchant Banking and Asset Management business consists of 
FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited, FBNQuest Asset Management 
Limited and FBNQuest Securities Limited, 

� The Insurance business comprises FBN Insurance Limited, FBN 
General Insurance Limited and FBN Insurance Brokers Limited. 

This report includes FBN General Insurance Limited. Unless otherwise 
stated, the profit or loss statement analysis compares the 12 months 
to December 2018 to the corresponding 12 months of 2017, and the 
financial position comparison relates to the corresponding position as at 
31 December 2017. Unless otherwise stated, all disclosed figures relate 
to continuing operations. Relevant terms that are used in this document 
but are not defined under applicable regulatory guidance or International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are explained in the glossary or 
abbreviation section of this report. This report is also available online at 
www.fbngeneralinsurance.com 

Shareholders will receive a compact disc (CD) containing the Annual 
Report and Accounts for FBN Holdings Plc, as well as information on 
outstanding dividend claims and a list of all our business locations. There 
will be an option to view a navigable PDF copy of the FBNHoldings 
report, as well as PDFs of certain subsidiary reports at the annual report 
portal of the Investor Relations section of the FBNHoldings website. 

Due to rounding; numbers presented throughout the report may not add 
up precisely to the totals provided and percentages may not precisely 
reflect absolute figures.
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INTRODUCTION
We recognise the immutable merits of maintaining a “You First” mindset 
and culture, as a critical component of our business strategy. Our brand 
has evolved over the years, with strengthened brand muscles to match the 
constantly evolving expectations of our customers.
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OVERVIEW
OUR PROFILE

FBN General Insurance Ltd is a Limited Liability Company licensed to transact General Insurance businesses 
in Nigeria. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of FBN Insurance Limited and provides insurance 
coverage to both individual and corporate clients.  

The products offered by the Company help customers enjoy the 
peace of mind that comes from managing the risks of everyday life. 
At FBNGI, customers can protect what matters to them. One of our 
primary objectives is to help people, businesses and communities 
get back on their feet when the unexpected happens. It is, therefore, 
our responsibility to make sure that we are there for our customers 
both today and in the future. 

The owner company, FBN Insurance Limited, is jointly owned by FBN 
Holdings Plc and the Sanlam Group. The Company, therefore, draws 
from the technical experience and wealth of knowledge of its owners 
in playing a significant role in the development of the insurance 
industry in Nigeria and value creation for clients. To achieve these, 
we anchored our operations on product innovation, efficient service 
delivery and prompt claims settlement.

OUR NETWORK
Our Head office is located at 298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, Lagos, 
while we also maintain business presence in 7 branches across 
Nigeria. This is in line with our strategic aspiration to explore the 
grossly under-tapped insurance opportunities in key locations in 
Nigeria.

Furthermore, the pre-existence of a large number of FirstBank 
branches across Nigeria’s geography offers a huge pedestal for 
building synergies and gaining robust competitive advantage among 
our peers in the industry.

To further increase our share of market and participation in the 
general insurance space, we acquired a 100% equity in the defunct 
Oasis Insurance Plc in 2014 and rebranded it to FBN General 
Insurance Limited, a subsidiary of FBNInsurance. FBN General 
Insurance  is a non-life insurer that provides general insurance 
services such as; motor, marine, fire and general accident.

OUR STRUCTURE

FBN HOLDINGS PLC

FBN Insurance Limited
 � FBN General Insurance Limited 

FBN Insurance Brokers Limited

INSURANCE
MERCHANT BANKING AND

ASSET MANAGEMENT
FBNQuest Merchant Bank Limited
• FBNQuest Asset Management Limited
• FBNQuest Securities Limited

FBNQuest Capital Limited 
• FBNQuest Trustees Limited
• FBNQuest Funds Limited

COMMERCIAL BANKING

First Bank of Nigeria Limited

• FBNBank (UK) Limited
• FBNBank DRC Limited
• FBNBank Ghana Limited
• FBNBank The Gambia Limited
• FBNBank Guinea Limited
• FBNBank Sierra Leone Limited
• FBNBank Senegal Limited
• First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited 
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

OUR VISION

OUR VALUES

OUR MISSION

To be Nigeria’s first choice in wealth creation and financial security.

Quality Service:
In every aspect of our business, excellence is our high watermark. So, whether our 
customers interact with our people, processes or products, they are sure to have an 
experience that is truly pleasing and rewarding. Only the best will do.

Respect for Individual:
We understand that our customers are more than just facts and figures for our business. 
We appreciate that they have concerns, challenges, hopes and aspirations. That’s why we 
greatly esteem and value them. And that’s why we show customers heartfelt concern 
and empathy that is uncommon in our industry. The customer is King.

Integrity:
We believe that trust is an invaluable asset in our line of work. Hence, we ensure that in 
all our dealings; in every contract we have with our customers, in our relationships with 
all other stakeholders and in all our processes, our character is never called into question.

Innovation:
We are committed to the continuous offering of modern and relevant products and 
services which meet the yearnings and expectations of our customers. We are always 
forward thinking.

Professionalism:
We have a team of highly qualified and dedicated professionals with enviable antecedents 
and ample experience in their various fields of expertise. Together, we all work 
passionately to ensure optimal results for all our stakeholders and the company as a 
whole. We take our work seriously.

Providing the Nigerian insurance market with best-in-class, innovative and solution-driven 
products and services that create value for all stakeholders, whilst consistently demonstrating 
integrity, professionalism and confidence.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Gross premium realised grew on the back of increased 
penetration within the corporate insurance market and 
steady scaling of the retail segment.

The decline witnessed was as a result of the revised 
approach to risk selection and reinsurance procedures 
which significantly enabled the optimisation of risk portfolio.

The significant growth was driven by improved results from 
underwriting operations and investment income coupled 
with better management of combined ratio.

The increase in underwriting expense was on the backdrop 
of the growth in business volume.

GROSS PREMIUM WRITTEN

NET CLAIMS

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

UNDERWRITING EXPENSE

2018
N4.63bn

2018
N0.51bn

2018
N0.62bn

2018
N0.92bn

2017
N3.51bn

2017
N0.75bn

2017
N0.32bn

2017
N0.67bn

32%

31%

91%

37%
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A moderate decline in liquidity ratio on the backdrop of 
cash asset optimisation and slight increase in other non-
liquid assets.

2018
60%

2017
62%

The improvement in cost to income ratio was as a result of 
better management of combined ratio coupled with effective 
cost management and optimisation of return on assets.

LIQUIDITY RATIO COST TO INCOME RATIO

2018
43%

2017
44%

Growth in return on equity was driven by increase in 
profitability.

2018
10%

2017
6%

Growth in return on assets was driven by increase in 
returns alongside moderate growth on assets, indicating an 
improvement in the financial performance.

RETURN ON EQUITY (POST-TAX) RETURN ON ASSETS (POST-TAX)

2018
6%

2017
4%

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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NON-FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

People development remains a critical component of our 
overall objective. We remain committed to continuous 
nurturing of robust talent bench through a strong employee 
value proposition (EVP) which is in line with FBNHoldings’ 
Group aspiration to remain a hub for choice industry talent.

We encourage an innovative and high-performance culture 
underpinned through the provision of enabling ambience, 
reward and talent management structures, learning and 
leadership development, culture transformation towards 
achieving full employee engagement and optimised experience.

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENTSTEADILY LEVERAGED TECHNOLOGY

ENHANCED PRODUCT OFFERINGS SYNERGY OPTIMISATION

In line with the synergy extraction drive of the FBNHoldings’ 
Group, we are steadily gaining traction, which is evident in our 
results. We remain steadfast in optimising all available synergy 
opportunities within the Group to achieve improved results 
and increasingly gain cost advantage. In addition, we strongly 
believe that the ‘Think Group’ approach to synergy and 
collaboration will further drive and unlock earnings potential 
for our business and the Group.

We steadily strengthened our capabilities through increased 
leverage of modern technology infrastructure and embedded 
tools to achieve automation of key process functions, boost 
employee output and optimise costs. Notable milestones 
include the deployment of Agent Banking platforms to enable 
the provision of insurance coverage for Firstmonie agents 
across Nigeria, full automation of commission payment and 
increased leverage of marine insurance online portal.

Introduction of three newly repackaged off-the-shelf retail 
products: Auto Flex, Flexi Home and Personal Accidents; with 
variants for each. The products are meant to complement the 
existing retail products with the provision of blanket covers at 
very affordable price points.
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We live by our beliefs and consistently strive to inspire understanding, 
drive collaboration, promote unity and strengthen our brand to delight all 
stakeholders. Consequently, we work daily to implement best practices 
through our culture and ultimately enable our employees to better understand 
our customers’ lives and be driven to meet their needs appropriately.
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MACROECONOMIC REVIEW
In 2018, global growth showed some resilience despite the heightened trade tensions between the United 
States and China, rising US treasury yields triggered stirs in emerging markets and developing economies. 
The skewed growth in advanced markets and continued vulnerabilities across emerging and developing 
economies, largely in the form of capital outflows and currency depreciation, are some of the key dynamics 
driving the restrained outlook on the global economy.

The rising trade tensions, higher energy prices, on the backdrop 
of crude oil volatility, and tighter monetary policy regimes slightly 
tempered the growth outlook of the Euro-Area. The Euro Area 
economy lost momentum beyond marked expectations as consumer 
and business confidence weakened. With the introduction of new 
emission standards, car production in Germany was disrupted while 
Italy witnessed a sharp drop in investments as sovereign spreads 
broadened. There are growing tensions tainted with uncertainty over 
the direction of Brexit in the United Kingdom. In the same vein, 
external demands, especially from emerging Asia markets, softened 
as China aggressively tightened its policies on credits. Growth in 
Japan also slowed following increase in natural disaster occurrences, 
which ultimately hurt economic activities.

The sub-Saharan region witnessed increased pressures on 
commodity prices and a sharp decline in oil prices during the last 
quarter of 2018. Other non-oil commodity prices also dwindled, 
partly due to subdued demand from China. Growth in the region is 
estimated to have risen marginally from 2.6% in 2017 to 2.7% in 
2018, slower than expected and still below potential. Nevertheless, 
foreign investors’ appetite for the region’s securities remained lofty, 
with issuances of international sovereign bonds by dominant frontier 
markets, reaching USD17.2bn in 2018, higher than the annual total 
in any previous year.

Domestic economy

The Nigerian economy sustained its modest recovery trends, growing 
by 1.93% year-on-year in real terms as at the end of 2018. The 
growth impetus largely came from the non-oil sector, which grew by 
2.7% in the fourth quarter of 2018, while the oil sector contracted 
by 1.62%. 

The steady recovery, though mild, was further buoyed by improved 
stability in the macroeconomic environment as the Apex Bank 
continued to pursue a relatively tight monetary policy stance, 
upholding the Monetary Policy Rate (MPR) fixed at 14.0%. The 
Apex Bank effectively maintained stability and liquidity in the 
foreign exchange market during the year as inflation rates trended 
downwards on the backdrop of the tightening posture on money 
supply.

Oil prices rallied above their long-term average in 2018, induced 
strongly by OPEC-induced supply control. More so, temporary 
disruptions due to pipeline shutdown and maintenance slowed 
production in 2018 as the sector witnessed relative calm in the 
Niger Delta region. Invariably, Government revenue was slightly 
pressured.

The gradual improvement in the non-oil sector braced the overall 
growth, contrary to the notable decline in the oil sector, especially 
in the second quarter of 2018. Non-oil activity was dampened 
by weakened consumer demand. Fiscal policy was stuck between 
weak budgetary expansion and rising public sector debt. Agricultural 
commodity output declined as a result of the rise in insurgency in 
the North East and North Central states and heavy flooding of rice 
plains in the North Central region of the country.

The contagion from the emerging market trends, pre-election 
anxieties, weaker-than-expected performance of key macroeconomic 
indices and sustained rate hikes in the US exerted some significant 
impacts on the financial market.

Insurance industry

The mild traction gained by the Nigerian economy within the review 
period also echoed through the insurance industry as indications 
show weak growth trends. The industry witnessed mild growth 
in revenue and some pressure on earnings on the backdrop of 
economic uncertainties, spiked operational costs and claims trends 
as well as low investment yield on investible funds.

However, in spite of the slow growth, there was an increase in 
foreign investments, merger and acquisitions, introduction of new 
practice guidelines and issuance of micro-insurance licences in a bid 
to further improve business practices among industry players, boost 
consumer confidence and galvanise tractions around uptake.

Outlook

The medium-term outlook for the global economy continues to be 
uncertain, especially with indications of growing macroeconomic 
vulnerabilities and downward revision of the forecast for global 
output growth by International Monetary Fund (IMF) from 3.7% 
to 3.5%.
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MACROECONOMIC REVIEW

The current recovery trends in the Nigerian economy are expected to 
gain more steam in the course of the year, especially on the backdrop 
of improved consumer spending as planned increase in the minimum 
wage is implemented. Based on recent projections, the Nigerian 
economy is expected to grow by 2.0% (IMF), 2.2% (World Bank) 
and 2.74% (CBN). The projection by the Apex Bank is hinged on 
enhanced flow of credit to the real sector; sustenance of a stable 
exchange rate; moderating inflation rate; CBN special interventions in 
growth-enhancing sectors, especially agriculture and non-agricultural 
SMEs; improved growth in the non-oil sector and the effective 
implementation of the ERGP by the Federal Government, amongst 
others. 

The medium-term outlook for the 
global economy continues to be 
uncertain, especially with indications 
of growing macroeconomic 
vulnerabilities and downward revision 
of the forecast for global output 
growth by International Monetary 
Fund (IMF) from 3.7% to 3.5%.”

“
The skewness of the economy towards crude oil production with the 
associated price volatility largely weighs on the outlook, particularly 
the impact on government revenue. In the same vein, the growth 
slowdown witnessed in some advanced economies and the dovish 
stance of some major central banks were an early warning sign 
of broader macroeconomic vulnerabilities. With the end of the 
electioneering cycle, the aura of uncertainties is expected to wane 
gradually as relative stability stimulates investor confidence. 

An inclusive approach to the implementation of the pro-growth 
initiatives of the government – CBN’s Intervention Programs, 
Economic Recovery Growth Plan (ERGP) and the passage of 
Petroleum Industry Bill (PIB) - may suggest opportunities of business 
growth for key actors in the value chain, especially in the insurance 
risk management space.
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DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS, 

It is a great pleasure to welcome you to the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of our Company, FBN 
General Insurance Limited and to present the Annual 
Report for the year ended 31 December 2018. 

The year 2018 marked the second year of our current strategic 
planning program. No doubt, the results achieved at the end 
of the year have further proven the commitment of the Board 
of Directors and Management to the strategic priorities of our 
Company.

At the commencement of the year, one of the Board’s key priorities 
was to ensure everything is done within its purview to support 
Management in its efforts towards unlocking the full potential of 
the Company while in pursuit of its pledge to clients, communities 
and the society at large. We encourage a governance approach 
capable of strengthening our performance culture and driving 
faster growth while focusing on the long-term.

While it was evident that uncertainties, largely underscored by 
varying economic and socio-political factors, heightened during 
the year, the 2019 general elections and related issues were a 
major pivot for the shocks witnessed by the Nigerian economy. 
Amidst these challenges, the Board and Management clearly 
demonstrated resilience in achieving some marked growth 
milestones.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During the year, significant improvements were made in our 
Risk Management Framework in a bid to increasingly achieve a 
healthy capital and liquidity position. We remain committed to 
continuous expansion of our capabilities in key risk areas as well 
as the enhancement of our operating models primed towards 
further strengthening our defences while keeping pace with 
evolving risk trends in our business environment.

Governance and culture

While striving to deliver stakeholder value within our clearly-defined 
governance charters, the Board and Management executed all 
strategic milestones with prudence, increased stability and effective 
oversight of the business. As a business, we continued to encourage 
the culture of open communication in a bid to achieve cross-
fertilisation of ideas; and ethical leadership premised on right values 
and behavioural dispositions even as we remain committed to setting 
the tone from the top.

We are aware that the opportunities in our market space remain 
quite substantial and the efforts made in boosting our capabilities 
and firming up our resilience have increasingly put us in a better 
position to capture prospects.

It is important to mention that we bade farewell to one of 
the Directors, Johan Schalkwyk, who got reassigned to another 
engagement by The Sanlam Group, South Africa, and was replaced 
by Nelius Bezuidenhout. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 
would like to express our sincere appreciation for his dedication 
and service to FBN General Insurance Ltd. 

We encourage a governance 
approach capable of 
strengthening our performance 
culture and driving faster growth 
while focusing on the long-term.”

“

Olugbenga Shobo
Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2019: The year ahead

The Board is optimistic about the prospects for the Nigerian 
economy, although amidst varying uncertainties, especially the 
impending pressure on crude oil prices on the backdrop of 
OPEC’s oil cut and rising international strains. We are committed  
to sustaining the Company’s verve while navigating the changes 
and challenges inherent in our operating environment through 
increased drive for performance and continuous enhancement of 
the brand reputation. 

As part of our commitments, we want to ensure that FBN General 
Insurance increasingly remains an attractive Company for talents, 
good work ethics and promotion of best practices. We will continue to 
invest in capabilities and enablers that will help us create more value 
for our clients and society. We will continue to steadily consolidate 
on the milestones we have achieved in order to progressively deliver 
robust and sustainable performance that enhances our return to 
shareholders. 

Conclusion

We are confident in our strategy and the outcomes, which are 
already proven and evidenced by our sustained performance 
results. 

We will continue to do everything we can in a bid to optimise the 
huge potentials of this Company while in pursuit of the vision of 
our shareholders. 

To the Board of Directors, I would like to express my heartfelt 
gratitude for your unwavering support and reassurance in the 
course of the year. My sincere appreciation also goes to our 
clients and partners for their continued patronage. To the 
Management and Staff of FBN General Insurance Ltd, thank you 
for your steadfast dedication and commitment to the vision and 
objectives of our dear institution.

Finally, to our shareholders, I thank you for the trust and assurance 
all through the journey. We assure you of our unwavering 
commitment and seek your continued support in 2019.

Thank you, and God bless you all.

Olugbenga Shobo
Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO’S REVIEW

DISTINGUISHED STAKEHOLDERS, 

I am pleased to present the 2018 Annual Report 
and accounts of FBN General Insurance Limited to 
you. 

2018 in retrospect

For 2018 financial year, we set out to increasingly sustain the growth 
trajectory of our business in line with our three-year (2017-2019) 
strategic plan. We were determined to significantly improve both the 
performance and the organisational posture of our Company, and 
we successfully made substantial progress on both dimensions. I am 
pleased to report that our business gained momentum in the course 
of the year as our results across key performance metrics clearly 
validate our commitment to the delivery of profitable growth and the 
steadfast dedication to our clients, communities and stakeholders.

We made giant strides in spite of the challenging drifts in the 
operating environment. Over the period, the Nigerian economy 
continued its slow recovery trends since the exit from recession 
in 2017, hitting 1.98% year-on-year GDP growth mark. The rally 
in oil prices at the international markets in the first quarter 
and the take-off of the second quarter provided a performance 
impetus for the oil sector while the non-oil sector continued to 
record appreciable uptick. At the end of the second quarter of 
2018, economic activities slightly dampened following increased 
political anxieties on the backdrop of the 2019 general elections, 

oil price volatility and rising global yields, which occasioned 
the bearish sentiments that saw the NSE All Share Index (ASI) 
and Equity Market capitalisation fall by 17.81% and 13.87% 
respectively. 

The period witnessed growing costs of operations for businesses 
on the backdrop of inflationary pressure, unprecedented regulatory 
headwinds and rapidly evolving technological trends. The trends 
pressured the outputs from key sectors of the economy as well 
as the revenue streams of the government. 

The Nigerian insurance industry was not immune to the exertions 
from the economic damp in the latter part of 2018 as premium 
scheduling remained recurring alongside heightened demands 
for lower rates amidst rising operating costs. These largely 
strained the profit margins of many industry players. The Nigerian 
Insurance Commission (NAICOM), in its own right, continued 
to fulfil its commitments towards improving the insurance 
industry, enforcing relevant compliance standards and policies. 
Among the key highlights of the regulatory activities were: 
the suspension of the proposed Tier-Based Minimum Solvency 
Capital (TBMSC) guidelines, following the issuance of a court 
injunction suspending the purported policy. The Commission also 
suspended the implementation of the proposed State Insurance 
Producers (SIP) guidelines. The SIPs are essentially insurance 
brokers owned by State Governments to broker transactions for 
compulsory classes of insurance and all types of insurance on 
behalf of the respective State Government. Others were issuance 
of Micro-Insurance licences to new market entrants, among 
other critical guidelines.

The marked performance at 
the bottom-line was largely 
underscored by our optimised 
approach to asset and investment 
portfolio management.”

“

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO’S REVIEW

In all, the Company’s ship was successfully steered through the 
challenging and radically evolving business environment, reaffirming 
our resolve to become a leading non-life insurer in Nigeria. Our 
portfolio grew in number of policy counts as well as premium realised. 
Our commitment to best practices in risk selection and underwriting 
was reinforced by instituting revised underwriting and reinsurance 
procedures. Concurrently, new risk assessment approaches were 
implemented to better measure our risk management metrics. 
Substantial improvements were made to our reinsurance programs, 
especially in energy and special risks, in a bid to significantly reduce 
the risk and volatility effects on our portfolio. These are clearly 
evident in the reported operational ratios and bottom-line profit 
target. We worked aggressively across multiple frontiers to address 
identified gaps in our operational processes. As a result, we embarked 
on optimisation initiatives towards simplifying our governance and 
control frameworks, while strengthening same to reduce complexities 
and inefficiencies. The technical resource capability of our partners, 
Sanlam and Santam, was  increasingly leveraged to further deepen 
our talent bench strength while improving our core underwriting 
fundamentals and consolidating our propositions in key areas. We 
progressively fostered a culture of accountability, instilled a laser 
focus on expense discipline, balanced and propped with strategic, 
complementary enablers to help us serve our clients more efficiently. 
 
Our people are resourceful and consistently demonstrate their 
convictions in our aspirations and ethos, especially in the face of 
changing economic environments and shifting market demands 
as they remain focused every day in creating value for our clients.

Financial performance review

The 2018 financial year closed with a Gross Premium Written (GPW) 
of N4.63bn, achieving a year-on-year growth of 32% from the 
corresponding performance of N3.51bn in 2017. The Profit Before 
Tax (PBT) also closed at N615.6mn, achieving a significant year-
on-year growth of 91% from the bottom-line result of N322.8mn 
realised as at the same period in 2017. The marked performance at 
the bottom-line was largely underscored by our optimised approach 
to asset and investment portfolio management, though investment 
income recorded a 2% year-on-year decline following a slight shrink 
in net investment yield. With the sustained practices of strict risk 
selection, our claims expenses for the period stood at N518.3mn, 
with a sharp decline of 31% year-on-year while the loss ratio stood 
at 21%, from the marked 36% recorded in 2017. This is a testament 
to the disciplined underwriting and optimised reinsurance procedures 
we implemented at the take-off of the year.

Likewise, our total assets grew year-on-year by 31% from 
N7.24bn in 2017 to N9.45bn in 2018. Over the period, 
significant improvement was recorded in our capital efficiency 

as we nurtured robust liquidity and solvency margin above the 
required benchmark, indicating a well-structured balance sheet, 
which reaffirms our preparedness to meet our risk obligations.

Outlook

The 2019 financial year is a critical year for our business, being 
the last lap in our three-year strategic planning cycle. It is also 
a critical year for the Nigerian economy, considering the general 
elections that are scheduled to take place. A modest recovery in 
key macro fundamentals is envisaged driven by stability in crude 
oil prices and other dynamics in the international oil market. We 
anticipate that the interest rates environment will continue to be 
quite stable on the backdrop of interventions by the Apex Bank, 
Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN). 

Motivated by our quest to become a leading non-life insurer in the 
Nigerian Insurance market, we will continue to sustainably advance 
and optimise our underwriting and reinsurance approaches towards 
achieving balance in risk portfolio, while managing any impending 
volatility or extreme risk occurrence. I am persuaded beyond doubt 
that our disciplined approach to expense and capital management, 
the expertise and unequalled dedication of our people will continue to 
serve as major thrusts in achieving our desired long-term productivity 
gains.

As an iconic and dynamic organisation dedicated to creating 
disruptive business models to meet tomorrow’s needs readily, we 
will continue to invest in technology, reinforcing the optimisation 
of our digital capabilities with a view to giving our customers 
better experiences and guaranteeing the promise of service 
excellence. We will continue to create enablers that support our 
people more efficiently and help them be at their best.

Concluding remarks

I would like to express my gratitude to our customers, the Board 
of Directors and entire Staff of FBN General Insurance Ltd for 
their relentless support throughout the year 2018. As we embark 
on this journey together again in 2019, we will rely on your 
continuous dedication and support to increasingly create value 
for our shareholders and to position our iconic brand to be the  
first choice among non-life insurers in the Nigerian insurance 
market.

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business is designed to promote operational and service excellence across all touch points. We are structured into key customer 
segments and distribution channels as presented in the diagram below, showing how we create value for our customers and key 
stakeholders:

Client Service Delivery (Claims Management, Customer Engagement, etc)

�	Motor

�	Marine

�	Bond

�	Engineering

�	Fire 

�	General accident

�	Oil and Gas

Shareholders Employees Communities Regulators/Government

�	Direct Retail Sales

�	Retail Agency Distribution

�	Direct Corporate Sales

�	Broker Distribution

�	Individual and MSMEs

�	Corporate (Private and Public) 

�	Underwriting

�	Claims

�	Customer Service

What we do

Key Stakeholders

Distribution channels Customers
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OUR STRATEGY

During the 2018 financial year, we achieved some 
significant growth milestones in line with our three-year 
(2017–2019) strategic plan. 

Our focus was geared towards restructuring and scaling of retail 
sales distribution, introduction of three repackaged retail products 
as well as increased leverage of technology to drive sales. The 
Company further deepened its footprints within the corporate 
insurance space, covering both private and public entities, while 
steadily growing its share of wallets across key sectors of the 
economy. 

Furthermore, we achieved optimisation through our segmentation 
approach to broker engagement and direct corporate sales, 
underpinned with improved client value propositions and risk 
selection practices to achieve efficiency in service delivery. We 
also gained more efficiency in our operational processes.

In 2019, being the last year of the three-year (2017-2019) 
strategy cycle, we remain committed to achieving all our key 
milestones as we deploy the following strategic initiatives:

� Increase scale-up of retail agency to achieve improved 
productivity;

� Increase leverage of cross-selling opportunities across 
diverse channels;

� Optimisation of broker agency channel and deepening of 
direct corporate sales through differentiated strategies;

� Enhancement of operational processes across all key 
functions to achieve efficiency and effectiveness; and

� Optimisation of technology to drive superior service delivery 
and unique value experience across all customer touchpoints.

We remain unwavering in our 
dedication towards creating value 
in line with the expectations of our 
stakeholders, as we strive to achieve 
our earmarked strategic objectives, 
taking advantage of all inherent 
opportunities in the insurance market.”

“

Outlook

As 2019 unfolds, we envisage recovery in key macroeconomic 
fundamentals, with relative stability in crude oil prices in the 
international markets.

The insurance industry is expected to maintain its steady growth 
on the back of inherent opportunities within the retail space 
and consumer awareness. More so, technology will increasingly 
become a critical lever for product distribution and service 
delivery. Likewise, we anticipate stricter regulatory guidelines on 
relevant market practices.

We remain unwavering in our dedication towards creating value 
in line with the expectations of our stakeholders, as we strive to 
achieve our earmarked strategic objectives, taking advantage of 
all inherent opportunities in the insurance market.

Key performance indicators

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

GPW (Nbillion) 1.70 1.81 2.19 3.51 4.63

PBT (Nbillion) 0.27 0.23 0.19 0.32 0.62

Net claims ratio 11% 11% 25% 36% 21%

Underwriting expense ratio 20% 23% 24% 22% 25%

Liquidity ratio 48% 52% 58% 62% 60%

Cost-to-income ratio 32% 39% 56% 44% 43%

RoE (Pre-Tax) 8% 6% 5% 8% 13%

RoA (Pre-Tax) 6% 4% 3% 5% 7%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Valentine Ojumah
Non-Executive Director

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO

Olugbenga Shobo
Chairman

Titilayo Adebiyi
Independent Non-Executive Director

Babatunde Mimiko
Executive Director, Operations

Yusufu Modibbo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel
Non-Executive Director

Nelius Bezuidenhout
Non-Executive Director

LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE 

Zainab Adeleye 
Company Secretary
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LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Shola Osho 
Group Head, Business Development

Babatunde Mimiko 
Executive Director, Operations

Modupe Akinwande
Head, Internal Control and Enterprise Risk Management

Ndubuisi Emmanuel
Head, Underwriting

Boye Ogunkoya
Head, Finance 

Dunni Oladokun
Head, Retail/SMEs/E-Business

Pauline Ogebe 
Head, Legal Services and Compliance

Jacqueline Agweh
Head, Claims and Reinsurance

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO



FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSINTRODUCTION GOVERNANCE NSTRATEGIC REPORT

FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2018

20

LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Saheed Abiola 
Head, Internal Audit

John Agbai 
Head, Information Technology

Ebere Oseme-Ogugu
Head, Energy and Special Risks

Tokunbo Makinde
Head, Human Resources and Administrative Services
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 

Introduction

At FBN General Insurance, we clearly understand the place of 
concrete relationships in every business transaction. This is why we 
commit ample resources towards ensuring a mutually beneficial 
relationship with the society at large. This is displayed in the way 
we work, our values, as well as our corporate responsibility and 
sustainability strategies.

Fulfilling our vision to be Nigeria’s first choice in wealth 
creation and financial security is a task that cannot be achieved 
without cultivating solid and enduring relationships with all our 
stakeholders. In our core values and in the way we undertake 
our duties, a high premium is placed on building sustainable 
relationships. This is adequately reflected in our corporate 
responsibility and sustainability (CR&S) strategies.

Our corporate responsibility and sustainability 
(CR&S) approach 

The business of insurance thrives on trust. At FBN General 
Insurance Ltd, we place a high premium on trust because we 
know that a trusted insurer would ultimately have it easier 
getting its target market to buy its products. Therefore, in all we 
do, we project trust and inspire confidence in our products at 
every touch point. This has helped us cultivate great relationships 
across different strata, which has nudged us ahead as a business.

Therefore, in our CR&S strategy, we continually strive to build 
trust, brand and good reputation through effective and efficient 
stakeholder engagement. This is against the backdrop of the 
FBNHoldings’ Group Strategy and is expressed via the following 
strategic pillars:

Sustainable insurance

In designing and selling our products and services, we put 
sustainable insurance into consideration. Sustainable insurance 
is a strategic approach where all activities in the value chain, 
including interactions with stakeholders and customers are done 
in a responsible and forward-looking manner by identifying, 
assessing, managing and monitoring risks associated with 
environmental, social and governance issues.

People empowerment

Our workforce is our most cherished asset. We remain committed 
to nurturing a most efficient, ethical and responsible staff that 
is constantly motivated, trained and re-trained for personal and 
organisational growth. In collaboration with our parent company, 
FBN Insurance Ltd and partners, the Sanlam Group, we are able 
to keep our workforce up-to-date with global trends in insurance 
practices and the industry as a whole.

Community support

We constantly draw ideas and opinions from our host communities 
and act on same by designing products and services that suit 
their needs. We appreciate their hospitality by investing time, 
effort and our funds in projects that will make life better for 
everyone in the community.

Environmental sustainability

In doing business, we take cognisance of potential environmental 
risks with a view to addressing these concerns. This is done via 
constant interactions with our stakeholders, driving sustainable 
insurance practices and putting necessary frameworks in place 
towards ensuring that our actions as a corporate entity do not 
negatively affect our environment.

RECOGNITION AND AWARDS

FBN General Insurance won the Best 
Customer Service Company Award 
(Insurance Category). The award was 
given to the Company at the 2018 
Nigeria Brand Award held recently in 
Lagos.

2018 BEST CUSTOMER SERVICE AWARD 
BRAND AFRICA AWARDS (INSURANCE CATEGORY)
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GOVERNANCE
At FBN General Insurance, we can only achieve our strategic objectives by 
building a sound reputation founded on the highest standards of responsible 
behaviour. Over the years, we have delivered on our strong commitment to 
corporate values and governance.
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LEADERSHIP
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Olugbenga Shobo - Chairman

Gbenga Shobo is the Chairman of the Board of FBN General Insurance 
Ltd. He is the Deputy Managing Director of First Bank of Nigeria 
Ltd (FirstBank) and joined the Board of the Bank in 2012. Prior to 
his appointment as Deputy Managing Director, he was the Executive 
Director overseeing the Retail Banking/Public Sector businesses in 
the Lagos and West Directorate and was hitherto the Executive 
Director overseeing the Retail Business in the South Directorate.

Gbenga began his professional career with Coopers & Lybrand 
Chartered Accountants as an External Auditor and Tax Consultant. 
Over the course of his outstanding career, he became the Divisional 
Head, Corporate Banking Division of MBC International Bank Ltd 
and subsequently, the General Manager, Corporate/Commercial 
Banking of FBN (Merchant Bankers) Ltd before joining the Bank. At 
FirstBank, he has served in senior management roles at various times 
as the General Manager Products and Channels Group; Business 
Development Manager in charge of Rivers and Bayelsa States; and 
also held the position of Group Head, National Corporates.  

Gbenga has over 30 years’ work experience from reputable 
organisations out of which he has garnered more than 26 years 
in the Banking Industry in Credit and Relationship Management; 
Products Development and Improvement; Treasury; Product Sales 
and Banking Operations, amongst others. 

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria 
(ICAN) and an alumnus of Kellogg School of Management and Harvard 
Business School.  Gbenga also holds a BSc Degree in Political Science 
from the University of Ife. In addition, he has taken various courses and 
attended various programmes in top-rated business schools including 
The Wharton School (University of Pennsylvania) and Stanford University. 

Gbenga is the first person to be appointed to the position of Deputy 
Managing Director of FirstBank in the Bank’s over 120 years history, 
a testament to his total commitment and professionalism. He is 
happily married with children and enjoys reading, playing golf and 
lawn tennis.

Olugbenga Shobo
Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Bode Opadokun - Managing Director/CEO

Bode Opadokun is a consummate financial services professional with 
over 27 years’ experience spanning underwriting, risk assessment, 
operations and marketing in the insurance sector. He started his 
career with the defunct Trans Nigeria Assurance Co. Ltd before 
moving to Cornerstone Nigeria Plc. as one of its pioneer staff in 
1991. He rose through the ranks at Cornerstone Insurance to the 
position of Manager before leaving to join the newly-formed First 
Chartered Insurance Co. Ltd. as Assistant Vice President. 

As a pioneer management staff at First Chartered, he was involved 
in formulating policies and strategies required to keep the newly 
acquired company in business. After two years, he joined Consolidated 
Risks Insurers Ltd as Deputy General Manager Operations, where he 
was responsible for the smooth running of both the technical and 
marketing departments of the company. Following the successful 
consolidation of the company, he was promoted as General Manager 
of the re-branded company, Consolidated Hallmark Insurance Ltd. 

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance, he oversaw the smooth 
operation of 36 branches of Nigeria Agricultural Insurance 
Corporation as the MD/CEO. It is to his credit that the corporation’s 
loss position was overturned within the first year of his stewardship. 

Bode holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the 
Delta State University, Abraka and is an Associate of the Chartered 
Insurance Institute, UK. An alumnus of the prestigious Lagos Business 
School, he is also both a Fellow and a member of the Governing 
Council of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria.

Valentine Ojumah - Non-Executive Director

Valentine Ojumah is a resourceful management executive with more 
than 30 years’ experience in Risk Management, Insurance Broking, 
Consultancy and Training within the Insurance Industry, Academics 
and Research. He is currently the Managing Director/Chief Executive 
Officer of FBNInsurance Ltd and previously worked as a Lecturer 
at the University of Lagos as well as head of various departments 
within the broking firm of Insurance Brokers of Nigeria Ltd. As the 
CEO of First Bank Insurance Brokers Ltd, Val demonstrated multi-
disciplinary experience in all classes of insurance, risk management 
and loss adjusting.

Val has a Bachelor’s Degree in Insurance from University of Lagos, 
MSc (Business) from University of Wisconsin-Madison and is an 
Associate Member of the Chartered Insurance Institutes both in 
Nigeria and UK.

Valentine Ojumah
Non-Executive Director

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO
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Hendrik Nel - Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel is the Chief Financial Officer at Sanlam. Hendrik is 
responsible for the finance function of the Group, including financial 
reporting, corporate finance, investments, tax, internal audit, 
enterprise risk management, sustainability and corporate legal 
services. He also holds directorships of Centriq Insurance Group of 
Companies, Emerald Risk Transfer, Stalker Hutchison Admiral, MiWay 
Group of Companies, Censeo, Risk or Underwriting Managers and 
Sanlam Emerging Markets. 

He joined Sanlam in September 2012. He was previously head of the 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Financial Services Practice in Cape Town, 
South Africa.

He was recently appointed as a Non-Executive Director to represent 
Sanlam Group, South Africa, on the Board of FBN Insurance Ltd.

Titilayo Adebiyi - Independent Non-Executive Director

Titilayo Adebiyi is a passionate and focused Business Administrator 
with over 26 years, all-round experience in commercial bank Branch 
Operations and Relationship Management.

After two stints at PZ Industries and the former National Bank of 
Nigeria, she joined the defunct Habib Nigeria Bank where she spent 
the bulk of her professional career garnering valuable experience 
in various departments before she left to set up Avit Trust and 
Investment Ltd., an investment company that caters to diverse 
range of clientele across multiple sectors of the economy. She 
also sat on the Board of SIGMA Pensions (a licensed Pension Fund 
Administration Company) for about 10 years until she retired in 
2015.

A school administrator of repute, Titilayo holds a Master’s degree in 
Business Administration from the Lagos Business School. She was 
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of FBN General 
Insurance Ltd in 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Titilayo Adebiyi
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel
Non-Executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Yusufu Modibbo - Independent Non-Executive Director

Yusufu Modibbo is a versatile Finance professional with experience 
across Banking and Finance and Stockbroking. 

After his first degree in Agriculture from the University of Maiduguri, 
where he also started his career, he joined Nigerian Agricultural 
and Cooperative Bank Ltd in 1984 as Assistant Manager in charge 
of Projects and Operations, Makurdi branch. From there he was 
appointed Manager, International Operations, Credit and Marketing, 
and Corporate Development, New Africa Merchant Bank Ltd, Lagos. 
Over the next couple of years, he joined Allied Bank of Nigeria as 
Senior Manager, Corporate Finance; Stanbic Merchant Bank (Nig.) 
Ltd as AGM, Northern Area Office before he became the Managing 
Director of Tiddo Securities Ltd in 2001. He ran the business for 
11 years before joining Stanbic IBTC Bank as General Manager, 
Investment Banking, Public Sector and Non-Interest Banking in April, 
2012.

Yusufu has been a Board/Council member of numerous professional 
bodies including Central Securities Clearing System Ltd, Chartered 
Institute of Stockbrokers, Abuja Securities and Commodity Exchange 
Plc., Investment and Securities Tribunal and the Nigerian Stock 
Exchange amongst others.

He holds a Master’s degree in Banking and Finance (FinAfrica 
Foundation, Italy) as well as a Master’s degree in Business 
Administration (Bayero University, Kano). He is also an Associate 
Member, Institute of Management Consultants, Nigeria Institute of 
Management and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Stockbrokers. 

Zainab Adeleye - Company Secretary

Zainab Adeleye was appointed the Company Secretary of FBN General 
Insurance Ltd in February 2019. She is a seasoned professional 
with experience spanning Company Secretarial practice, Corporate 
Governance and Corporate Law. Prior to her appointment at FBN 
General Insurance, she worked in Wema Bank Plc with responsibility 
for Corporate Governance, Regulatory Compliance and Company 
Secretarial services. She also had stints at some law firms before 
joining Wema Bank.

Zainab is a member of Chartered Institute of Company Secretaries 
and Administrators UK. She graduated from the University of Lagos 
with Honours and subsequently obtained her Law degree from the 
Nigerian Law School.

Yusufu Modibbo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Zainab Adeleye 
Company Secretary
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The FBN General Insurance Management team is made up of seasoned and diligent professionals, backed 
with several years of experience in various sectors of the Nigerian economy, including the financial services 
sector.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Bode Opadokun - Managing Director/CEO

Bode is a consummate financial services professional with over 25 
years experience spanning underwriting, risk assessment, operations 
and marketing in the insurance sector.

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance Ltd, he was the Managing 
Director/CEO of Nigeria Agricultural Insurance Corporation. Within 
his first year of stewardship there, his astute business acumen 
helped the company successfully overturn its loss position.

He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the 
Delta State University, Abraka and is an Associate of the Chartered 
Insurance Institute, UK. He is an alumnus of the prestigious Lagos 
Business School, and also a Fellow and member of the Governing 
Council of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria.

Babatunde Mimiko - Executive Director, Operations

Tunde Mimiko is a seasoned professional in the Financial Services 
sector with over 18 years experience spanning banking and insurance. 
Over these years, he has been involved in business and product 
development, strategic planning, relationship management, financial 
and cost analysis as well as business process management. Prior to 
joining FBN General Insurance as Executive Director, (Operations), 
Tunde was actively involved in the transition of Union Assurance 
to Ensure Insurance Plc, having served as the Managing Director/
CEO. Furthermore, he worked as a Management Executive at 
WAPIC Insurance Plc and ARM Life Plc. He also had a stint at the 
defunct Intercontinental Bank Plc (now Access Bank Plc) as well 
as First Chartered Insurance Company Limited. He is a Fellow of 
the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria and an alumnus of the 
prestigious Pan Atlantic University (Lagos Business School). He also 
holds an MBA (Financial Management) from Lagos State University.

Babatunde Mimiko 
Executive Director, Operations

Bode Opadokun
Managing Director/CEO
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Shola Osho - Group Head, Business Development

Shola is a consummate marketer and insurance professional with 
over 21 years’ experience in the insurance industry. She holds a BA 
(Hons) degree in English Language from the University of Abuja and 
also bagged a Master’s degree in Public Administration (MPA) from 
Delta State University, Abraka in 2005. In 2010, she attended the 
Senior Management Programme (SMP 39) of the prestigious Lagos 
Business School.

She started her career in Insurance at Lion of Africa Insurance Ltd 
before joining Consolidated Hallmark Insurance Plc where she spent 
close to 10 years and rose to become the Head, Lagos Island Group. 
In 2013, she moved to FBN Insurance Ltd from where she was 
seconded to FBN General Insurance Ltd, formerly Oasis Insurance, 
as the Head of Business Development immediately the company 
was acquired. In her new role, she has distinguished herself as a 
marketer par excellence and under her watch as Head of Business 
Development, the loss position of the acquired Oasis Insurance Plc 
was overturned to profit in the first year. Shola is a member of Ikoyi 
Club 1938 and Rotary Club of Gbagada, and is happily married with
children.

Jacqueline Agweh - Head, Claims and Reinsurance

Jacqueline is a Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria. 
A Claims and Reinsurance Manager with over 20 years’ experience 
in the field, she is an Insurance graduate of the prestigious University 
of Lagos and her career spans insurance brokering, underwriting, 
claims administration (Life and General) and reinsurance.

She started her career with African Prudential Insurance Company 
Limited as a life insurance officer and has worked with Metropolitan 
General Insurance Ltd as an underwriter, Piccadilly Insurance Ltd (Zenith 
General Insurance Ltd), ACEN Insurance Co. Ltd, KELSAN Insurance 
Brokers Ltd, Oasis Insurance Plc and FBN Insurance Ltd as a Life Claims 
Manager. She is a dedicated member of the Professional Insurance 
Ladies Association and an award-winning fiction writer.

Shola Osho 
Group Head, Business Development

Jacqueline Agweh
Head, Claims and Reinsurance
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Modupe Akinwande - Head, Internal Control and Enterprise Risk  
      Management

Modupe is a results-driven, self-motivated and resourceful finance 
professional with over 14 years’ experience across various functions 
within the financial services industry covering Banking, Aviation 
and Insurance. She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Management and 
Accounting and a Master’s degree in Business Administration, both 
from Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile-Ife, Osun State. An Associate 
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria, she 
also has a Diploma in International Financial Reporting Standard 
(Dip. IFR; ACCA).

Prior to joining FBN General Insurance in 2015, she was Head of 
Finance and Accounts at Custodian and Allied Insurance Ltd.

Pauline Ogebe - Head, Legal Services and Compliance

Pauline is a legal practitioner with 13 years of significant experience 
in commercial law practice. Prior to joining FBN General Insurance, 
she worked with some of the best law firms in the country including 
Olaniwun Ajayi LP, Nigeria’s leading law firm proficient in corporate 
and commercial law, where she got stellar work experience and 
advised clients on a broad range of corporate and commercial 
matters. Since joining the Company, she has established a reputation 
as a widely exposed counsel with multifaceted competencies. She 
possesses considerable experience in company secretarial practice, 
compliance and corporate commercial law practice, particularly 
corporate finance, corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions 
and insurance law. A member of the Nigerian Bar Association, she 
graduated with Honors in Law from Ahmadu Bello University Zaria 
and the Nigerian Law School.

Ndubuisi Alu - Head, Underwriting

Ndubuisi graduated from the University of Nigeria, Nsukka with 
a combined Bachelor’s degree in Sociology and Philosophy. He is 
an Associate of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria and 
has extensive experience in Insurance Underwriting, Claims and 
Reinsurance. He made his incursion into Insurance in 2007 after 
working in Information Technology. He started with the Special Risks 
and Energy desk, and in the course of his career, has traversed 
all the divisions of the Technical department. He has attended a 
number of Technical and Management programs including Treaty 
Negotiations at Swiss Re Zurich, Switzerland in 2013 while he was 
Head, Reinsurance, KBL Insurance Ltd where he spent seven years. 
He worked briefly at SANTAM South Africa on a business specialist 
program in 2015. Ndubuisi joined FBN General Insurance in February 
2014 and presently heads the Underwriting Unit.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Modupe Akinwande
Head, Internal Control and Enterprise Risk Management

Pauline Ogebe 
Head, Legal Services and Compliance

Ndubuisi Emmanuel
Head, Underwriting
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Boye Ogunkoya - Head, Finance

Boye Ogunkoya is a profound finance expert and accounting 
professional with almost two decades of work experience in the 
financial services industry.  
  
Prior to joining FBN General Insurance as Head, Financial Reporting, 
he was Head, Finance in Oasis Insurance Plc. He has equally worked 
with many insurance companies, among which are Souche Insurance 
Brokers Ltd, Presidential Insurance Plc and Universal Insurance Plc.

Boye is a Chartered Accountant, Chartered Economist and an 
Associate Member of Chartered Institute of Taxation. He attended an 
Executive Development programme with University of Stellenbosch 
Business School organised by Sanlam Emerging Market in South 
Africa in 2018. 

Tokunbo Makinde - Head, Human Resources and Administrative Services

Tokunbo is responsible for coordinating the Human Resources and 
Administrative Services Department of FBN General Insurance Ltd. 
She is a professional with extensive experience in Human Resources 
Management within the Nigerian financial services sector.

She started her career with Skye Bank Plc in 2008 as a strategic 
business partner in the area of recruitment and learning and development 
before she moved on to Page Microfinance Bank as the pioneer Head 
of Human Resources. After a few years at Page Microfinance Bank, 
she joined FBNInsurance Ltd as the Performance Manager and was 
saddled with the responsibility of ensuring alignment of performance 
management activities and the organisation’s corporate goals. She was 
later seconded to FBN General Insurance Ltd in 2016.

Tokunbo is a first class graduate of the Department of Sociology, 
Covenant University, Ogun State. She holds a Master’s degree in 
Management from Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom and 
is an affiliate member of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and 
Development UK; a member of the Certified Balance Score Card 
Professional, United States of America, amongst other professional 
bodies.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Boye Ogunkoya
Head, Finance 

Tokunbo Makinde
Head, Human Resources and Administrative Services
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Ebere Oseme-Igugu - Head, Energy and Special Risks

Ebere is an Insurance professional with industry experience spanning 
12 years. She has an HND in Computer Science from Federal 
Polytechnic Offa, Kwara State. and also a BSc (First Class Honours) 
in Insurance from Joseph Ayo Babalola University, Osun State. In 
2016, she obtained an MBA from University of Lagos. She possesses 
significant depth of experience in Non-Life Underwriting, especially, 
in the area of Energy and Special Risks. Oseme-Igugu is an Associate 
member of Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria.

Oladunni Oladokun - Head, Retail/SMEs/E-Business

Oladunni is an E-business/IT professional with over 21 years 
of progressive experience in IT and Financial Services sector. He 
possesses skills in Project Management, Distribution Channels and 
Agency Network Management, Business Intelligence/Analytics, 
Virtualisation, Networking, Mobile Applications, Device Management 
and Retail Marketing.

He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from the 
University of Abuja. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Information 
Management African Fellowship, an Associate Member of the 
International Association of Computer Science and I.T. Professionals 
and a certified MCITP Enterprise Administrator and Microsoft 
Technology Specialist.

Oladunni Oladokun
Head, Retail/SMEs/E-Business

Ebere Oseme-Ogugu
Head, Energy and Special Risks
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Introduction

The Company recognises the importance of good 
corporate governance structure and practices to 
the sustainability and profitability of an organisation. 
With the aim of enhancing shareholder value and 
delivering efficient and effective services to our 
customers and community at large, the Company 
has instituted a corporate governance structure 
that would enable it achieve the desired objectives.

The Company has developed corporate policies and standards to 
encourage good and transparent corporate governance framework 
to avoid potential conflicts of interest between all stakeholders while 
promoting ethical business practices.    
    
The activities of the Company are at all times conducted with high 
standards of professionalism, accountability and integrity, with due 
regard to the genuine interests of all our stakeholders. This is the 
foundation of our history, values and culture as a Company for 
building and sustaining an enduring institution that guarantees 
profitability and professionalism while enhancing shareholders’ value.

FBN General Insurance Limited is committed to the continuous 
management of its business operations by identifying and 
implementing key governance indicators that aid sustainable 
development and guarantee shareholders excellent return on 
investment.

Governance structure

This is composed of the Board and the Board Committees.  
      
Board and Board Committee composition

The Company’s Board comprises eight members, four of whom 
are Non-Executive Directors, two Independent Non-Executive 
Directors and two Executive Directors. The Board has the overall 
responsibility to strategically guide the Company and ensure its 
effective management. The Board discharges its duties through 
a number of standing committees whose charters are reviewed 
regularly. The charters define the purposes of the committees, their 
compositions, frequency of meetings, responsibilities and duties, as 
well as expected reports to the Board.    
    

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Members of the Board are as follows:

Olugbenga Shobo Chairman

Bode Opadokun Managing Director/CEO

Babatunde Mimiko Executive Director

Valentine Ojumah Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel Non-Executive Director

Nelius Bezuidenhout* Non-Executive Director 
(Appointed w.e.f. 18 April 2018)

Johan Schalkwyk* Non-Executive Director 
(Resigned w.e.f. 12 April 2018)

Titilayo Adebiyi Independent Non-Executive Director

Yusufu Modibbo Independent Non-Executive Director

The Chairman of the Board

The Chairman has the responsibility to lead and manage the Board 
to ensure that it operates effectively and fully discharges all its legal 
and regulatory responsibilities while promoting effective relationship 
and open communication within the Boardroom.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The CEO is charged with a strategic and supervisory role over all 
core operations of the Company, which involves risk management, 
formulation of policies and the implementation of operational 
decisions. The CEO is the first line of reference for issues to be 
discussed at the Board and is charged with ensuring compliance 
with regulations and policies of both the Board and Regulatory 
Authorities.

Board meetings

The Board of Directors, meetings are held every quarter or as the 
need arises to consider the financial statements of the Company for 
the year, review of management accounts for the quarter, consider 
the reports and minutes of Board committees and any other reports 
pertaining to issues within the purview of the Board’s responsibilities.
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2018 Board of Directors meetings

Name Composition
No of meetings 

attended 20-Feb 18-Apr 17-Jul 16-Oct 6-Dec

Olugbenga Shobo Chairman 5 1 1 1 1 1

Bode Opadokun Managing Director 5 1 1 1 1 1
Valentine Ojumah Non-Executive Director 5 1 1 1 1 1
Hendrik Nel  Non-Executive Director 4 1 1 1 0 1
Nelius Bezuidenhout Non-Executive Director 4 N/A 1 1 1 1
Johan Schalkwyk  Non-Executive Director 1 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Titilayo Adebiyi Non-Executive Director 4 0 1 1 1 1
Yusufu Modibbo Non-Executive Director 5 1 1 1 1 1
Babatunde Mimiko Executive Director  5 1 1 1 1 1

Training philosophy

Regardless of the expected depth of knowledge and experience 
of those appointed to the Board, we ensure regular domestic and 
international training programmes are organised for Board members 
to improve their decision-making capacity, thereby contributing to 
the overall effectiveness of the Board. A training plan is usually 
agreed by the Board with the Company Secretariat tasked with 
ensuring implementation of the Plan.     
                                                                                                                               
In some cases, in-house programmes are organised to train Directors 
as a group where it is considered that the training may be beneficial 
to all the members of the Board. This approach has been adopted 
in recent years to ensure the training is tailored to address the 
particular needs of the Board and to ensure cost optimisation.

Directors appointment process

FBN General Insurance Director appointment philosophy is guided 
by relevant regulatory guidelines and laws. Directors are appointed 
by the shareholders through the Board Governance, Establishment 
and Enterprise Risk Management Committee based on their skills, 
competencies and experience. The Committee considers and makes 
recommendations to the full Board on the suitability of Director 
nominated, the committee then makes a decision on the nomination 
of the candidate subject to the ratification of the general assembly 
and subsequently the National Insurance Commission.

Performance monitoring

As part of its oversight role, the Board continuously engages with 
Management and contributes ideas to the Company’s strategy from 
planning to the execution phases. The Board usually holds an annual 
Board retreat where the strategy for the coming year is rigorously 
debated and agreed between Management and the Board. Once a 
strategy is defined, updates on specific strategic objectives become part 
of the ongoing agenda for the Board Finance, Investment and General-
Purpose Committee, which debates and reports to the Board on the 
implementation of the strategy. During this process, the Board will be 
continuously updated on significant issues or challenges encountered 
during strategy implementation, and steps being taken to address them. 
On a quarterly basis, Management will review the Company’s financial 
and performance indicators with the Board, and the Board will assess 
progress and confirm alignment or otherwise with the strategic goals 
and objectives of the Company on a continuous basis.                                                                                       

The Company’s actual performance is compared relative to planned or 
budgeted performance, to provide the Board with ongoing insight into 
the level of achievement. In addition, peer review serves as a continuous 
part of our Board meetings in order to benchmark the Company against 
the performance of competitors.

Board appraisal process

In compliance with Section 5 of the National Insurance Commission 
(NAICOM)’s Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) and due to 
the Board’s commitment to strengthening its corporate governance 
practices, the Board engaged the services of an independent consultant, 
Messrs. DCSL Professional Services to conduct an appraisal of the 
Board of Directors and individual director peer appraisal for the year 
ended 31 December 2018. The Board assessment covers the Board’s 
structure and composition, processes, relationships, competencies, roles 
and responsibilities. The report is usually forwarded to NAICOM in line 
with the Code.

Attendance at Board meetings

Attendance at Board of Director’s meetings during the year end are as follows:
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Yusufu Modibbo  - Chairman

Valentine Ojumah  - Member

Hendrik Nel  - Member

Johan Schalkwyk  - Member
Yusufu Modibbo
Chairman

The Board has three committees, namely:

� Audit and Compliance Committee

� Governance, Establishment and Enterprise Risk Management Committee

� Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee

The committees make recommendations to the Board, which retains responsibility for final decision-making.

All committees report to the Board and must conform to the regulations laid down by the Board, with well-defined terms of reference 
contained in the charter of each Committee. The Committees render reports to the Board at the Board’s quarterly meetings. 

The composition as well as summary of the functions of the Board committees is stated below:

Audit and Compliance Committee

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee provides oversight 
responsibility for the audit, regulatory compliance and risk functions 
of the Company. The Committee also discusses the quarterly 
compliance reports and takes delivery of the audit reports and other 
reports and statements by the external auditors. The Committee 
monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, 
risk management system, compliance system and internal audit 
system. The Committee recommends the appointment of external 
auditors and monitors its independence and quality, and reviews the 
external auditor’s fee arrangements.

Audit and Compliance Committee meetings 2018

Directors Composition
No of meetings 

attended 20-Feb 17-Apr 16-Jul 15-Oct

Yusufu Modibbo Chairman 4 1 1 1 1

Valentine Ojumah Member 4 1 1 1 1

Hendrik Nel Member 4 1 1 1 1

Johan Schalkwyk Member 1 1 N/A N/A N/A

Board committees

The Board discharges its responsibilities through the different committees and is regularly informed about the work of the committees by 
their respective chairpersons.
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Governance, Establishment and Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Board Governance, Establishment and Enterprise Risk 
Management Committee advises the Board on its oversight 
responsibilities in relation to recruitment, compensation and benefits, 
promotions and disciplinary issues affecting senior officers of the 
Company on Manager grade and above. The Committee has the 
responsibility to review and approve proposals from the Executive 
Committee for recruitment, promotion and termination of senior 
officers on Assistant General Manager grade and above and also 
review and approve disciplinary actions proposed by the Board to be 
carried out against senior officers on manager grade and above. The 
Committee also monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s risk 
management system.

Governance, Establishment and Risk Management Committee meetings 2018

Directors Composition
No of meetings 

attended 20-Feb 17-Apr 16-Jul 15-Oct

Hendrik Nel Chairman 4 1 1 1 1

Valentine Ojumah Member 4 1 1 1 1

Johan Schalkwyk          Member 1 1 N/A N/A N/A

Titilayo Adebiyi Member 3 0 1 1 1

Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee

The Board Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee monitors 
and reviews the Company investment policies. It ensures at all times 
that the Company’s investment policies reflect the objectives of safety 
and maintenance of fair returns on investments. The Committee equally 
establishes standards, rules and guidelines for the Company’s investment 
management operations while also reviewing the Company’s investment 
strategy with a view to sustaining medium to long-term competitive 
edge. The value of the Company’s mark-to-market portfolios is also 
evaluated by this Committee. 

Finance, Investment and General Purpose Committee meetings 2018

Directors Composition
No of meetings 

attended 20-Feb 17-Apr 16-Jul 15-Oct

Titilayo Adebiyi Chairman 3 0 1 1 1

Valentine Ojumah Member 4 1 1 1 1

Johan Schalkwyk          Member 1 1 N/A N/A N/A

Bode Opadokun Member 4 1 1 1 1

Hendrik Nel Member 4     1 1 1 1

Yusufu Modibbo   Member 4 1 1 1 1

Hendrik Nel  - Chairman

Valentine Ojumah  - Member

Johan Schalkwyk  - Member

Titilayo Adebiyi  - Member
Hendrik Nel
Chairman

Titilayo Adebiyi  - Chairman 
Valentine Ojumah  - Member
Johan Schalkwyk  - Member
Bode Opadokun  - Member
Hendrik Nel  - Member
Yusufu Modibbo  - Member

Titilayo Adebiyi
Chairman
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Whistleblowing procedures

The whistleblowing process involves steps that should be 
taken by the whistleblower in reporting misconduct, and steps 
required for the investigation of the reported misdemeanour. 
The Company has a procedure that encourages staff and other 
relevant stakeholders to report perceived unethical or illegal 
conduct of employees, Management, Directors and other 
stakeholders across the Group to appropriate authorities in a 
confidential manner without any fear of harassment, intimidation, 
victimisation or reprisal of anyone for raising concern(s) under 
this policy.      
   
The Board of Directors and Management is committed to 
promoting a culture of openness, accountability and integrity, and 
will not tolerate any harassment, victimisation or discrimination of 
the whistleblower provided such disclosure is made in good faith 
with reasonable belief that what is being reported is fact. The 
Company has dedicated email address and telephone numbers 
through which staff are encouraged to raise any concern or 
unethical conduct.

Executive Management Committee

This Committee reports to the Board on activities of the Company. 
The Committee is responsible for the following:

�  ensuring alignment of Company’s strategic and business 
plan as approved by the Board;

�  reviewing strategic and business performance against 
approved plans and budget of the Company, and agreeing 
on recommendations and corrective actions;

�  ensuring adequate monitoring of revenue and expenditure 
budget; and

�  providing leadership to the Management team.

Members of the Committee include the Managing Director/CEO, the 
Executive Director, Operations, Head, Finance, Head Underwriting, 
Head, Claims and Reinsurance, Head, Internal Control and Enterprise 
Risk Management, Head, Internal Audit, Head, Human Resources/
Admin, Head, Information Technology, Head Legal and Compliance, 
Head, Business Strategy and any other Divisional Head as appointed 
from time-to-time.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating environment

The Nigerian economy in 2018 continued its modest recovery along 
key macroeconomic fundamentals, achieving year-on-year growth 
of 1.93% in real GDP terms at the end of the year.

Over the year, slow recovery was recorded in key macro indices; 
this was against the backdrop of the CBN’s continued efforts at 
sustaining relative stability in interest and foreign exchange rates 
coupled with expansion in the non-oil sector. Of equal importance, 
crude oil prices saw a rally over the first three quarters of the year;  
however, the market weakened in the fourth quarter as fears of 
global oversupply, amidst slow demands, and declining global growth 
began to set in.  The Nigerian capital market also recorded a steady 
fall in the All Share Indices (ASI) in the fourth quarter, mirroring 
bearish sentiments displayed by investors in the latter part of the 
year. Headline inflation fell steadily over the period but closed at 
12.4% average in December 2018, from 17.47% recorded in January.

The prevailing macro and socio-political drifts, during the review 
year, posed mixed challenges for the business environment, notable 
among which were sustained high cost of business operations and 
unstable regulatory policy environment, etc.

Electioneering activities gathered momentum in fourth quarter while 
implementation of ongoing Federal Government’s policy programs 
slowed significantly. The period also witnessed the presentation 
of the 2019 Appropriation Bill of N8.83tn before the National 
Assembly, among other key fiscal policies. 

Nature of business

We are a Financial Service Company; a non-life insurer, supported by 
a team of experienced professionals and risk management specialists 
who design bespoke solutions that cater to our clients, individual 
needs. Our services include:

� Motor Insurance
� Marine Insurance
� Fire 
� General Accident 
� Oil and Gas
� Bond
� Engineering

The insurance industry

The trends in the Nigerian Insurance industry remained stable, having 
witnessed some uptick during the review period. The regulatory 
environment, in the same vein, was relatively steady, encouraging 
interest among foreign participants through various mergers and 
acquisitions. New regulatory guidelines were introduced while the 
proposed Risk-based supervision has gained growing acceptance 
amongst insurers. 

Growing interests of foreign investors in the insurance business kept 
the market competitive. More so, the increasing effects of technology 
as a critical game-changer in product distribution, process efficiency 
and cost optimisation significantly encourage stiffer competition 
among industry players. These developments are expected to linger 
over the mid-term, given the growing opportunities in the business. 

In the near term, retail remains a major market to explore, given the 
potentials of the economy and inherent value-addition to business 
outcomes.

Business overview

At the end of 2018 financial year, the Company achieved a gross 
premium income of N4.64bn while it recorded a growth rate of 
32% from the corresponding period in 2017 (FY2017: N3.52bn). 
Profit Before Tax (PBT) for the year stood at N615mn, representing 
an increase of 90% vis-à-vis 2017 performance of N323mn.

The underwriting profits by the close of the year grew by 50% from 
N873mn recorded in 2017 to N1.309bn in 2018 while investment 
income rose by 6% in 2018 in comparison to the corresponding 
performance in 2017. 

The marked performances achieved at the top-line and bottom-line at 
the close of the period can largely be ascribed to the revised approach 
to market engagement and penetration across key income segments, 
buoyed by improved risk selection and underwriting practices as well 
as enhanced claims and reinsurance management processes.

The Company remains committed to ensuring increased optimisation 
of client value proposition, achievement of milestones in innovation, 
especially in product development and the delivery of best-in-class 
brand experience across all its touch-points.  
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We are unwavering as we journey to build a stronger and sustainable 
business. We have made concerted effort to always put our 
customers first in everything we do. We will also continue to ensure 
value is created for our shareholders by ensuring sustainable and 
profitable growth.

The Company is well-capitalised with robust liquidity and solvency 
margin above the required regulatory benchmarks. Total assets 
recorded an appreciable growth of 29% at year-end, rising from 
N7.2bn in 2017 to N9.5bn in 2018. The investment portfolio was 
well-balanced during the year with more focus on government 
securities whose maturity profiles were matched to those of 
insurance contract liabilities.

Outlook

The key components of the Company’s strategy within the 
planning period are hinged on increased application of technology 
to drive product distribution while guaranteeing sustained process 
improvement and optimisation. 

More so, the Company is committed to innovation towards delivering 
prime customer value, and best-in-class brand experience across all 
touch-points.

We are committed to serving our customers well in order to build a 
stronger, sustainable business, which makes a positive contribution 
to the society, and for which our people are proud. We have made 
concerted effort to put the customer first in everything we do. 
We will continue to deepen the understanding of our customer’s 
needs and accordingly improve the product offering, the customer 
experience and the channels through which they are served.

To ensure that we provide value to shareholders and customers, 
we will continue to drive high performance in our businesses by 
delivering profitable growth and operational efficiency, and by 
optimising risk and return.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report together with the 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31 December 2018.

Legal form

FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company 
Plc.) was incorporated on 9 November 1992 to carry on Insurance 
business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc. on 26 November 
2004, following the successful listing of its shares on the Nigeria 
Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc. was acquired by FBN Insurance 
Limited during the year 2014, and thereafter delisted its shares on 
the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The company is a subsidiary of FBN 
Insurance Limited (a member of FBNHoldings Company).

Principal activities

The Company is engaged in General Insurance Business. 

2018
N’000

2017
N’000

Operating result

Gross Premium 4,635,233 3,516,548

Net Underwriting Income 2,751,922 2,296,860

Profit before tax 615,598 322,845

Taxation (122,613) (31,911)

Profit after tax 492,985 290,933

Appropriations

Transfer to contingency reserve 139,057 105,496

Transfer to retained earnings 353,927 185,436

492,985 290,933

Dividends 

No dividend is being proposed by the Board of Directors in respect 
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors

The Directors who held office at various times during the year and 
to the date of this report were:

Olugbenga Shobo Chairman 

Bode Opadokun Managing Director/CEO

Babatunde Mimiko Executive Director, Operations

Valentine Ojumah Non-Executive Director

Hendrik Nel Non-Executive Director

Johan Schalkwyk* Non-Executive Director 
(Resigned w.e.f. 12 April 2018)

Titilayo Adebiyi Independent Non-Executive Director

Yusufu Modibbo Independent Non-Executive Director 

Nelius Bezuidenhout*                         Non-Executive Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 18 April 2018 
pending Regulatory approval)

Appointment of Directors

Nelius Bezuidenhout was appointed as a Director during the year 
effective 18 April 2018.

Retirement of Directors

Johan Schalkwyk resigned from the Board effective 12 April 2018.

Directors’ shareholding

The Directors had no interest in, nor held shares in the Company.

Directors’ interest in contracts

None of the Directors has notified the Company for the purpose 
of Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Acts, of their 
direct or indirect interest in contracts or proposed contracts with 
the Company during the year.
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Analysis of Company shareholding

The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 December 
2018 is as follows:

No. of shares % held

FBNInsurance 7,903,506,790 100.00%

Oluseye Kosoko 1 0.00%

Total 7,903,506,791 100.00%

Donations and gifts 

In 2018, the Company made a total of N2,800,000 (2017: 
N1,350,000) donations. Detailed below is a breakdown of the 
donations during the year:

2018  N

Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria 550,000

Nigerian Insurers Association 500,000

Nigerian Council of Insurance Brokers 500,000

Professional Insurance Ladies Association 100,000

Miteda Wellness Initiative 500,000

Almond Productions Limited 250,000

Bended Sylmar Associates Limited 250,000

Rotary International District Headquarters 150,000

2,800,000

Property plant and equipment

Movements in Property, Plant and Equipment are shown in Note 
9. The Directors are of the opinion that the market value of the 
Company’s assets is not less than the value shown in the financial 
statements.

Employment and employees

Employment of disabled persons

It is the policy of the Company that there should be no discrimination 
in considering applications for employment, including those from 
disabled persons. All employees whether or not disabled are given 

equal opportunities to develop. The Company had no disabled person 
in its employment as at 31 December 2018.

Health, safety at work and welfare of employees

Health and safety regulations are in force within the Company’s 
premises and employees are aware of existing regulations. 
The Company provides subsidy to all employees for medical, 
transportation, housing and lunch. 
  
Employees’ involvement and training

The Company is committed to keeping employees fully informed 
as much as possible regarding the Company’s performance and 
progress, and seeking their views wherever practicable on matters 
which particularly affect them as employees. Training is carried 
out at various levels through both in-house and external courses. 
Management, professional and technical expertise are the Company’s 
major assets and investment in their further development continues.

Post balance sheet events

There were no post balance sheet events which could have a material 
effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 
2018 and the profit for the year ended on that date that have not 
been adequately provided for.

Auditors

The Auditors, Messrs’ Deloitte & Touche have indicated their 
willingness to continue as auditors in accordance with Section 357 
(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 LFN 2004. 
A resolution will be prepared at the Annual General Meeting to 
authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

FBN General Insurance Ltd financial statements have been authorised 
for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2019.

  
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

  
  
  
Zainab Adeleye
Company Secretary
FRC/2019/NBA/00000019150
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RISK FACTORS
Proper identification of inherent risks is of great importance to us, while we 
continually seek ways to mitigate them.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a robust enterprise risk 
management framework which has been designed 
along the requirements of NAICOM and the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO). Effective risk 
management remains fundamental to the business 
activities of the Company and there is a framework 
that supports a culture where risk management is 
everyone’s responsibility from the levels of the Board 
and Executive committees down to risk owners and 
respective risk units. 

The Company’s Enterprise Risk Management framework clearly 
identifies, assesses, monitors, evaluates and manages the principal 
risks it assumes in conducting its activities. These risks include 
credit, market and operational risks as well as legal, compliance, 
reputational, information security risk and underwriting risks. The 
risk structure includes management’s approach to risks inherent 
in the business and its appetite for these risk exposures. Under 
this approach, the Company continuously assesses its top risks and 
monitors the risk profile against approved limits. The main strategies 
for managing and mitigating risks include policies and tools that 
target specific broad risk categories. 
 
Enterprise Risk Management philosophy
 
The Company’s risk management principles and strategies are 
hinged on maximising value creation and returns on investments. 
The risk management strategy is such that will assist the Company 
in achieving its vision and delivery of business objectives. As part 
of the risk strategy, the Company’s Enterprise Risk Management 
framework will ensure identification, quantification and treatment 
of all the foreseeable key risks. Our basis include that the risk 
management process will;  
 
� uphold the Company’s integrity and value system;

� add sustainable value to all the activities of the organisation;

� aid the understanding of the potential upside and downside of 
key risks;

� support compliance to regulatory requirements;

� increase probability of success;

� reduce the uncertainty of achieving the organisation’s overall 
objectives;

� support the culture that “managing risk is everybody’s 
responsibilities” and pursue and reinforce this objective through 
risk awareness, clear Executive sponsorship, setting risk appetite 
and risk boundaries that are generally known, agreed and widely 
discussed; and

� provide clear lines of responsibilities. 
 
Our risk management context is entrenched in our mission statement 
of wealth protection through a team of risk and investment managers 
that provides our customers and other stakeholders with effective, 
creative solutions, assuring their financial security with our superior 
strength and capacity in the Nigerian market space. 
 
Our risk culture

a)  The Board and Senior Management consciously promote a 
responsible approach to risk management and ensure that 
the sustainability and reputation of the Company are not 
jeopardised while expanding its market share.

b)  The responsibility for risk management in the Company is fully 
vested in the Board, which in turn delegates such to Senior 
Management.

c)  The Company pays adequate attention to both quantifiable and 
unquantifiable risks. 

d)  The Company’s Management creates awareness of risk and risk 
management across board.

e)  The Company continually subject its products, distribution 
channels and businesses to effective risk assessment process 
and it will not engage in any business until it has objectively 
assessed and managed the associated risk.

Risk management framework 

Our risk management framework was designed and embedded 
in our operating culture and processes. There are clear levels of 
responsibilities (from the Board of Directors to the Staff Unit) 
assigned for effective management of our business risks. 
 
We operate and maintain three levels of risk governance structure 
for the oversight and management of risk. These are: 
 
1st line: Management

The Board includes the Board of Directors and the Board Audit and 
Compliance Committee and are charged with the responsibility for 
oversight of the Enterprise Risk Management process, proposing and 
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approving the Risk Appetite level for the business and delegating 
responsibility of detailed oversight to Risk Committee. 
 
2nd line: Risk oversight

This consists of the Risk Management Committees and the Chief 
Risk Officer of the Company. The Management evaluates the risks 
inherent within the business and ensures that they are captured 
appropriately within the business Risk Profile. The Chief Risk 
Officer facilitates an improved understanding of risk management 
process throughout the organisation in order to embed and improve 
continuously a risk awareness culture and to work with business 
management to review and update the risk and control log.

The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for setting policies and 
procedures necessary for the implementation of the risk framework. 
The role of the CRO includes communicating the Company’s 
risk profile to the Board and Management Committee and also 
communicating the decisions of the Board and Risk Management 
Committee to the other members of the Company.

3rd line: Independent assurance

This is the last line or level of defence within our risk management 
structure and comprises the internal audit and external auditors’ 
function that provides independent and objective assurance of 
the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management control and 
governance process.

Risk appetite

The Company is committed to driving its business initiatives without 
loss of value or unmitigated exposures to related risks. In order to 
improve the value of shareholders’ wealth and remain profitable, 
the Company designed its appetite for risk exposures at any given 
situation. The risk appetite represents the amount of risk exposure or 
potential adverse impact from an event that the Company is willing 
to accept or retain. The risk appetite of the Company is set by the 
Board of Directors annually, and it is aimed at minimising erosion of 
earnings or capital due to avoidable losses in the trading, investment 
and underwriting books, or from frauds or operational inefficiencies. 
The Company’s Risk Appetite objective include: 
 
i)     Optimisation of capital employed through enhanced returns on 

equity.
 
ii) Consistently strive to minimise overall cost of risk exposure and 

its management through effective risk mitigation practices.  

iii)    Losses due to frauds and operational lapses should be a 
maximum of a specified percentage of gross earnings and in 
any case, be lower than the industry average.  

 

Risk management policies and procedures

The Enterprise-wide Risk Management policies and procedures 
which have been instituted strategically are aimed at managing 
potential, inherent and residual risk categories in our operations.

The Board recognises that the practice of risk management is 
critical to the achievement of corporate objectives and has actively 
encouraged a risk culture that embraces innovation and opportunity, 
primed risk-taking and acceptance of risk which is inherent in all our 
activities, while reducing barriers to successful implementation. 
 
Risk classification

The Company is exposed to different kinds of risk while conducting 
its business. Some of these include: 
 
Market risk/Investment risk

This is the risk to a Company’s financial condition resulting from adverse 
movements in the level or volatility of market prices. The Company 
has a structured process and basis for measuring and calculating 
the probability of loss and possible impact on the Company’s capital 
resources caused by adverse changes in the price of stock and shares, 
property, exchange rates and other market conditions that are relevant. 
The Companies have established investment limits in its operational 
guidelines and policy of assets diversification in line with NAICOM 
regulations to prevent over-concentration and over-exposure to any 
particular market. 
 
Credit risk

This is the risk that counterparty will default on payment or fail to 
perform an obligation to the Company. The Company has a system 
for conducting due diligence on the credit-worthiness of any party 
to which it has credit exposure. The Company does not ordinarily 
grant credit facilities to third parties in the course of its business but 
could have credit risk associated with Insurance Brokers consequent 
upon the “No Premium No Cover” enforcement by NAICOM. 

 
Operational risk

This is the risk of loss from inadequate or failed internal processes, 
people and systems or from external events which arises from the 
potential that inadequate information systems, operational problems, 
breaches in internal controls, fraud, or unforeseen catastrophes will 
result in unexpected losses. The Company has policies that cover risk 
that may arise from people, systems and internal process failures. 
The policies include staff recruitment, training, retention plans, 
succession plans, remuneration and welfare benefits, designing 
standard operating procedure and policies, driving compliance 
culture, process automation, Information Technology support 
systems, data integrity, IT systems access, etc. 
 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk exists when there is insufficient cash flow to meet 
the Company’s operational and financial obligations and is usually 
associated with inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding 
from external sources to pay claims and other liabilities when 
due. The Company manages its liquidity risk through appropriate 
assets and liability management strategies through the Investment 
Management Committee. Monthly reports and review of liquidity 
gaps are conducted to assess the level of liquidity risk. 
 
Reinsurance risk

This is the risk of inadequate reinsurance cover to mitigate 
underwriting risk. It usually occurs when there is insolvency of 
a reinsurer, discovery of exposures without current reinsurance 
coverage, or exhaustion of reinsurance covers through multiple 
losses. The Company has documented reinsurance policies for 
adequate reinsurance arrangements and treaties for all categories 
of insurance business transacted. The policies include the process 
for Reinsurer selection, monitoring, claims recovery, etc.

Underwriting risk

Underwriting is the process by which an insurer determines the 
conditions necessary and suitable to accept insurance risk. The risk 
crystallises when there are severe and frequent claims against the 
Company’s projected capacity.  The Company has embedded internal 
control processes to guide its insurance business and guide against 
the risk of unexpected losses and capital erosion. There is a well-
documented underwriting policy and procedure which is enforced 
throughout the organisation.

Business risk

The Company’s business risk is associated with gaining market shares 
and remains profitable. This risk is considered through documented 
processes for product development and launch, business segment 
profitability analysis, stakeholder’s engagement as well as being 
embedded in our brand promise.

Reputational risk

This is the risk of events that could cause public distrust and 
damages to the Company’s integrity, reputation and goodwill, 
especially in the eyes of the customers, regulators, competitors, and 
the general public. We manage reputational risk through a structured 
approach for defining and implementing core values and acceptable 
standard of behaviour which the staff are expected to follow while 
conducting the day to day business of the Company. The Company 
risk assessment and monitoring process has embedded controls 
for testing reputational risk and the outcome of such exercise is 
communicated to the Board Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

Legal/compliance risk management

The Company has procedures to ensure that all statutory regulations 
are completely adhered to by the business unit at all times. These 
regulations include those set by NAICOM and other relevant agencies 
of government. There are internal control processes that identify 
potential breaches to the regulations and are promptly mitigated. 
Some of the control processes include: 
 
a)   Know-your-customer (KYC) procedure 

b)   Anti-money laundering/combating the financing of terrorism 
(AML/CFT)

c)   Anti-bribery and corruption measures
 
d)   Guidelines for adherence to Corporate Governance principles 

e)   Gift policies
 
f)    Whistleblowing policies 
 
Risk report and risk map
 
Issues arising from risk assessment process are collated and 
presented in a report called the Risk Report, which forms the 
basis of constructing the risk map. The risk map draws Senior 
Management’s attention to the critical risk factors as well as the 
adequacy of existing controls to mitigate the risk. The risk map 
provides a snapshot summary of the significant risk and the ratings 
and probability of occurrence within a specific period. This forms the 
basis for estimating the potential operational loss. 
 
Risk control self-assessment (RCSA) 

The Company has a mechanism for risk assessment on a periodic basis 
and this is known as Risk control self-assessment (RCSA) principle. 
It involves the tests and procedures or assessments that need to 
be performed periodically to assure that key controls are in place 
and are working effectively as designed. The control requirements are 
proactively assessed through Process risk analysis and review of policy 
requirements, loss events, and audit findings. The Company then sets 
controls required to comply with policy requirements and test these 
processes for adequacy and risk mitigation capability. Risk Champions 
are engaged in each business or risk unit and they facilitate the 
process of risk control self-assessment in the Company.

Key risk indicators

The key risk indicator (KRI) provides trend analysis of risk exposures 
or deviation from standard processes. This helps the risk officers 
and risk owners to promptly identify increasing threat to business 
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activities and escalate to the appropriate senior levels for control 
and to probably review the risk appetite. The trend analysis is one 
of the sources of data for the risk report and risk map documented 
by the Company.

Loss events reporting

The Company has a Loss Event Register that captures all actual loss 
sustained during operational processes.

Health and safety management

The Health and Safety Management has been instituted to provide 
and maintain safe, healthy working conditions, work equipment and 
systems for all staff. This responsibility also extends to visitors, 
contractors and others who may potentially be affected by our 
activities. The Health and Safety Policy framework underpins the 
policy statements, roles and responsibilities of the HSE officer.

Business Continuity Plan (BCP)

The Business Continuity Plan (BCP) has been designed to promote 
resilience against operational threats, especially with regards to 
continuity of critical operations, in the event of a disaster or disruption 
to critical operations. The BCP framework also addresses adherence 
to contingency planning procedures in the event of emergencies. We 
aim to continually improve on inherent gaps identified during each 
simulation exercise.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT   
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

 Key Audit Matter 

Valuation of Insurance Contracts Loss Reserve
 
Under IFRS 4, the Company is required to perform liability 
adequacy test on its insurance contract liabilities to ensure the 
carrying value of the liabilities is adequate.

As disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the insurance 
contract liabilities of the Company amounted to N3.48bn (2017: 
N2.11bn). This represents about 81% of the Company total 
liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

 How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our procedures included the following among others:
We assessed and tested the design and operating effectiveness 
of selected key controls over actuarial methodology, integrity of 
data used in the actuarial valuation, and the assumptions setting 
and governance processes used by Management related to the 
valuation of general insurance reserves.
In relation to the particular matters set out above, our substantive 
testing procedures included the following:

l Tested the completeness and accuracy of underlying claims 
data utilised by the Company’s actuaries in estimating 
general insurance loss reserves.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FBN General Insurance Limited which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, 
statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of FBN General 
Insurance Limited as at 31 December 2018 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C20 LFN 2004, Insurance Act I17 LFN 
2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) Professional Code of Conduct and Guide for 
Accountants and other independent requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Nigeria. We have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in Nigeria. The ICAN Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate Governance Report, Management 
Commentary, Enterprise Risk Management Report, Directors’ Report, Chairman’s Statement, Result at a glance and Managing Director/CEO’s 
review, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the integrated report, which is expected to be made available to us after 
that date. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, Insurance Act I17 2004 and 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses represent 
estimates of future payments of reported and unreported claims 
for losses and related expenses as at 31 December 2018. This 
involves exercise of significant judgement and use of key inputs 
and assumptions such as inflation, claims development patterns 
and regulatory changes. Specifically, long-tail lines of business, 
which often have low frequency, high severity claims settlements, 
are generally more difficult to project and subject to greater 
uncertainties than short-tail, high frequency claims. Furthermore, 
not all catastrophic events can be modelled using actuarial 
methodologies, which increases the degree of judgement needed 
in estimating general insurance loss reserves.

At the end of each financial year, Management employs the 
services of an external actuary in the determination of its 
insurance liability after considering the accuracy and integrity of 
data used in the valuation. Necessary adjustments are made in 
the financial statements to reflect the liabilities determined by 
the actuary.

l Utilised information technology audit techniques to 
analyse claims through claims data plausibility checks and 
recalculation of claims development patterns.

l Involved Deloitte’s actuarial specialists to independently 
test Management’s general insurance loss reserve studies 
and evaluate the reasonableness of the methodology and 
assumptions used against recognised actuarial practices and 
industry standards.

l Performed independent re-projections on selected product 
lines, particularly focusing on the largest and most uncertain 
general insurance reserves. For these product lines our 
actuarial specialists compared their re-projected reserves to 
those recorded by the company, and sought to understand 
any significant differences.

 Performed sensitivity testing and evaluated the appropriateness 
of any significant adjustments made to Management’s general 
insurance reserve estimates.

Based on the work performed, we determined the methodology 
and assumptions used by Management in the valuation of 
insurance contract liabilities reserves are reasonable and in line 
with financial reporting requirements and industry accepted 
practice.

 Key Audit Matter  How the matter was addressed in the audit
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Financial Reporting Council Act, 2011 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:
 
l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Directors.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to continue as a going concern. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Company’s financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

l Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the company’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

 
We communicate with the Audit Committee and the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide the Audit Committee and Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, Section 28(2) of the 
Insurance Act 117 LFN 2004, and requirements of the Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations (NOCLAR), we expressly state 
that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose 
of our audit.

 
ii) The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books.
 
iii) The Company’s statement of financial position and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in 

agreement with the books of account.

Contraventions

The Company did not contravene any Section of the Insurance Act; NAICOM circulars and guidelines during the year.

For: Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
March, 2019

Engagement partner:  Joshua Ojo
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000849
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l  In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, we expressly state that:

 i)  We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.

  ii)  The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books.

 iii)  The Company’s statement of financial position and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in 
agreement with the books of account.

l   No contravention of the Sections of Insurance Act or NAICOM circulars and guidelines came to our knowledge during the year 
ended 31 December 2017.

 

Contraventions

The Company contravened certain Sections of the Insurance Act; NAICOM circulars and guidelines during the year. The particulars 
thereof and penalties paid are as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Joshua Ojo, FCA.

Joshua Ojo
For: Deloitte & Touche 
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
February, 2018

Indepenent Auditors’ Report
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RISK DECLARATION

The Board’s Governance, Establishment and Enterprise Risks Management Committee of FBN General 
Insurance Limited hereby declare as follows:

a)  The Company has systems in place for the purpose of ensuring compliance with NAICOM guidelines;

b)  The Board is satisfied with the efficacy of the processes and systems surrounding the production of financial information of the Company;

c)  The Company has in place a Risk Management Strategy, developed in accordance with the requirements of NAICOM’s guideline on 
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), setting out its approach to risk management; and

d)  The systems that are in place for managing and monitoring risks, and the risk management framework, are appropriate to the Company, 
having regard to such factors as the size, business mix and complexity of the Company’s operations. 

Yusufu Modibbo                Valentine Ojumah  
FRC/2017/CISN/00000016732               FRC/2012/CIIN/00000002422



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Statement of Accounting Policies >> 58   Statement of Financial Position >> 84  Notes to the Financial Statements >> 88
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY DETAILS

Registered address  298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, 
    Lagos
    Nigeria.

RC Number   208278

FRC Number   FRC/2012/0000000000266
 
Telephone   +234 01 905 4820
    +234 01 905 4832

Email    contactfbngi@fbninsurance.com

Postal address   PMB 21170
    Ikeja, Lagos
    Nigeria

Company secretary  Zainab Adeleye
    FRC/2019/NBA/00000019150

Auditors   Deloitte & Touche
    Civic Towers
    Plot GA 1, Ozumba Mbadiwe Avenue
    Victoria Island
    Lagos
    Nigeria
    www.deloitte.com.ng
    FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000849
 
Shareholders   FBN Insurance Limited
 
Bankers    First Bank of Nigeria Limited
    Fidelity Bank Plc
    Guaranty Trust Bank Plc
    Zenith Bank Plc
 
Re-insurers   African Reinsurance Corporation
    Continental Reinsurance Plc
 
Actuary    Alexander Forbes Consulting Actuaries Nigeria
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In accordance with the provision of Section 359 (6) 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we confirm 
that we have seen the Audit Plan and Scope and the 
Management Letter on the audit of the accounts of 
the Company and the response.

In our opinion, the plan and scope of the audit for the year ended 
31 December 2018 were adequate.    
   
       
We have reviewed the auditor’s findings and we are satisfied with 
the Management response thereon.    
   
       
We also confirm that the accounting and reporting policies of the 
Company are in accordance with legal requirements and ethical 
practices.

Yusufu Modibbo
FRC/2017/CISN/00000016732

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

1 Yusufu Modibbo - Chairman 

2 Valentine Ojumah - Member

3 Hendrick Nel  - Member

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TO THE MEMBERS OF FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors of FBN General Insurance Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and the 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended, in compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act 
of Nigeria, the Insurance Act of Nigeria, relevant guidelines and circulars issued by the National Insurance 
Commission (NAICOM) and Financial Reporting Council Act of Nigeria.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:
       
� properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

� presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information;

� providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users understand 
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Company’s financial position and financial performance; and 

� making an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.      
       
The Directors are responsible for:

� designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls throughout the Company;

� maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
of the Company comply with IFRS;

� maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the legislation of Nigeria and IFRS;

� taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

� preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe the 
Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.       
       
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 February 
2019.

By order of the Board

Olugbenga Shobo       Bode Opadokun
Chairman        Managing Director
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002330     FRC/2014/CIIN/00000008646

7 February 2019       7 February 2019

FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CERTIFICATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY

In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby certify, in terms 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, that for the year ended 
31 December 2018, the Company has lodged all such returns as 
are required of a company in terms of this Act, and that all such 
returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct 
and up-to-date.

Zainab Adeleye
Company Secretary
FRC/2019/NBA/00000019150
Lagos, Nigeria

7 February 2019
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Alexander Forbes Consulting Actuaries Nigeria verifies that the calculation of the non-life insurance liabilities as per the valuation as at 
31 December 2018 is appropriate. We are satisfied that the insurance liabilities as per valuation are sufficiently prudent and appropriate 
given the nature of the business and existing liabilities.

The result of the valuation is as follows:

Reserve As at 31 December 2018 (N)

Outgoing Net OCR 1,744,989,014

Outgoing Gross IBNR 591,052,331

Total Gross future claims that are incurred 2,336,041,345

Reserves as at 31 December 2018 (N)

Outgoing Gross UPR 1,153,115,415

Outgoing Gross DAC 194,535,712

Outgoing Gross AURR -

Brian Karidza
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries and the 
Actuarial Society of South Africa   

Certified Enterprise Risk Actuary   
FRC/2017/NAS/00000016625

CERTIFICATION OF NON-LIFE INSURANCE LIABILITY 
VALUATION BY ACTUARY
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RESULTS AT A GLANCE

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
Gross premium written 4,635,233 3,516,548

Gross premium income 4,388,835 3,360,467

Net premium income 2,429,419 2,080,496

Investment and other income 792,929 803,396

Profit before tax 615,598 322,844

Profit after tax 492,985 290,933

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets 9,451,546 7,242,337

Insurance contract liabilities 3,489,155 2,119,275

Total liabilities 4,287,125 2,761,094

Earnings per share (Basic) 6kobo 4kobo

Earnings per share (Basic) 6kobo 4kobo
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LEGAL FORM
      
FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company Limited) was incorporated on 9 November 1992 to carry on insurance 
business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc on 26 November, 2004 following the successful listing of its shares on the Nigeria 
Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc was acquired by FBN Insurance Limited during the year 2014, and delisted its shares on the Nigerian 
Stock Exchange.
     
Oasis Insurance Plc changed its name to FBN General Insurance Ltd on 29 June 2015. The Company is now a subsidiary of FBN Insurance 
Limited (a member of FBNHoldings).  
      
The Company’s registered office address is 298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony Lagos.
      
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
     
FBN General Insurance Ltd is a non-life Insurance Company and underwrites General and Special Risks Insurance businesses. The 
Company is fully capitalised in line with Insurance Act 2003 and as stated in NAICOM Insurance Act and guidelines. The non-life business 
underwritten by the Company are: Motor, Marine (Cargo & Hull), Fire and Special Perils, Engineering Insurance, General Accident and Oil 
and Gas businesses.
      
The Company pays attention to claims payment to optimise customers’ satisfaction. The Company also invests its available funds in interest 
bearing and highly liquid instruments to generate adequate returns to meet its claims obligations.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are stated below. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied to all periods presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.     
 
      
1.1 Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
 
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB); the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC); and the relevant national regulations like Companies and Allied Matters 
Act (CAMA), FRC Act 2011 and Insurance Act 2003, to the extent that they are not in conflict with IFRS.

     
 These financial statements comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the statement 

of changes in equity, the cash flow statement and the accompanying notes.    
      
1.2 Basis of preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle and on a historical cost basis 
except for the following: 

 

	 l non-derivative financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss.

	 l financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

	 l investment property is measured at fair value.    

	 l insurance liabilities measured at present value of future cash flows. 

	 l investment contract liabilities at fair value.      

 The financial statements are presented in Nigeria naira (N) which is the Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded 
to the nearest thousand naira except when otherwise indicated.  
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1.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
   
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates. It also requires 

Management to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions 
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The Management believes that 
the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Company’s financial statements therefore present the financial position 
and results fairly.      

      
 The appropriate estimates and judgements have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements. 

1.4 Presentation of financial statements

 The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. It included an analysis of underwriting risk, 
solvency margin as well as classification of assets and liabilities due for recoverable or due for settlement within 12 months after 
the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non–current). Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle 
the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the income statement unless required or permitted by any 
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

 FBN General Insurance Limited has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of 1 January 
2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in the financial 
statements. FBN General Insurance Limited did not early adopt any of IFRS 9 in previous periods.

 As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, FBN General Insurance Limited elected not to restate comparative figures. 
Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the 
opening retained earnings and other reserves of the current period FBN General Insurance Limited does not currently apply hedge 
accounting.

 The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of 
financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards 
dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.      
 

 Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on FBN General Insurance Limited Further details 
of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current period are described in the accounting policies section.

(a) RECONCILIATORY NOTE

Measurement Category

Balance as at
1 January 2018

N’000 
Financial assets:

Fair value through profit or loss 3,281,505

Fair value through other comprehensive income 763,843

Loans and receivables -

Total  4,045,348

Financial liabilities:

Fair value through profit or loss -

Amortised cost 2,119,276

Total 2,119,276 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(b) Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018

Measurement category

 (i) IAS 39 
Carrying Amount 

1/1/2018
N’000

(ii) 
Re-classifications

N’000

(iii)                      
Remeasurement

N’000

Expected 
credit losses

N’000

(iv) = (i)+(ii)+(iii)                      
IFRS 9 

Carrying amount                 
1/1/2018
N’000

Retained 
earnings effect 

on 1/1/2018
N’000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 413,003 - - 413,003 -

Fair value through profit or loss 3,281,505 - - 3,281,505 -

Fair value through OCI - 763,843 763,843

Available-for-sale 763,843 A (763,843)

Trade receivables 40,027 - - 40,027 -

Reinsurance assets 916,684 - - 916,684 -

Deferred acquisition costs        153,311 - - 153,311 -

Other receivables and prepayments 105,861 - - 105,861 -

Investment properties 100,000 - - 100,000 -

Property, plant and equipment 1,134,710 - - 1,134,710 -

Intangible assets 33,617 - - 33,617 -

Statutory deposits 300,000 - - 300,000 -

Total assets 7,242,561 - - 7,242,561 -

Liabilities and equity

Insurance contract liabilities 2,119,275 - - 2,119,276 -

Trade Payables 95,204 - - 95,204 -

Provision and other payables 433,888 - - 433,888 -

Income tax liabilities 47,555 - - 47,556 -

Deferred tax liabilities 65,171 - - 65,171 -

Total Liabilities 2,761,093 - - 2,761,095 -

Equity

Paid-up share capital 3,751,753 - - 3,751,753 -

Share premium 410,961 - - 410,961 -

Contingency reserve  590,390 - - 590,390 -

Retained earnings (798,577) B - (224) (798,801) (224)

FVOCI reserve - C 9,808 224 10,031 224

Available-for-sale reserves 9,808 D (9,808) - -

Fair value reserves 517,133 - - 517,133 -

Total equity 4,481,468 - 4,481467 -

Total liabilities and equity 7,242,561 7,242,561

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

IAS 39 as at 31 Dec 2017
N’000

IFRS 9 as at 1 Jan 2018
N’000

A Financial assets-available-for-sale

Balance as at December 2017 (IAS 39) 763,843 -

Reclassification (763,843) 763,843

Balance as at January 1, 2018 (IFRS 9) - 763,843

B Retained earnings

Closing December 31/Opening balance January 1 (798,577) -

Reclassified to IFRS 9 retained earnings 798,577 (798,577)

Impairment (ECL model) – FVOCI - (224)

Balance as at January 1, 2018 (IFRS 9) - 798,801

C Fair value reserve OCI

Transfer from available-for-sale reserves - 9,807

Impairment (ECL model) – FVOCI - 224

Balance as at January 1, 2018 (IFRS 9) - 10,031

D Available-for-sale reserve

Closing December 31/Opening balance 9,807 -

Reclassified to fair value reserve (FVOCI) (9,807) -

Balance as at January 1, 2018 (IFRS 9) - -

1. The Company has assessed the classification of its financial instruments and concludes that the business model has not changed 
significantly compared with the classification under IAS 39. The Company is not likely to be exposed to any significant volatility 
in assets and capital following the full adoption of IFRS 9 earlier than 2022 when IFRS 17 will be adopted. In line with the 
Company’s business model, all financial assets and financial liabilities are matched through profit or loss.

2. As of 1 January 2018, the Company’s analysis highlighted the components of its cash and cash equivalents as including short-term 
deposits (i.e. call and termed deposits), bank accounts balances held with banks and cash in hand. The balances meet the SPPI criterion 
and these were classified as financial assets carried at amortised cost. 

3. The Company assessed its investment securities (treasury bills and federal government bonds) measured at fair value through 
profit or loss under IAS 39 and retained its classification as the financial liabilities are also measured through profit or loss.

4. All Available-for-sale debt instruments, carried at available-for-sale under IAS 39 are measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income as the Company expects not only to hold the assets to collect contractual cashflows but also to sell 
some amount on a relative basis. The balances were assessed for impairment and the ECL impairment recognised amounted to 
N224,000

5. The Company also assessed its Trade and Other receivables balances and concluded that the payments meet the SPPI criterion 
and based on the Company’s business model for holding the balances, concluded that they remain valued at amortised cost as 
was the case under IAS 39.
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Impact on the statement of profit or loss increase/(decrease):

1-Jan-18
N’000 

Loss allowance on financial assets at FVOCI (224)

Deferred tax -

Profit for the year (224)

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening loan loss provision allowances, under IAS 39 to ECL allowances under IFRS 9. The 
Company had no loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as at 31 December 2017, to assess for ECL allowances under IFRS 9.

Impairment
IAS 39

Re-measurement ECL
IFRS 9

 31-Dec-17
N’000

1-Jan-18
N’000

Debt instruments carried at FVOCI - 224 224

The ECL impairment adjustment is based on individual assessment of the debt instruments. The table below shows the credit quality 
and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal assessment and year-end stage classification.

Impairment 
charges Gross impairment allowance

 

 Stage 1
 N’000 

Stage 1
N’000 

Stage 2
N’000 

Stage 3
N’000

Total
N’000

Debt instruments carried at FVOCI 224 224 - - 224

The Company had no Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired (POCI) financial assets as at 31 December 2017.

Impact of IFRS 9 Adoption on Solvency Margin

The impact of IFRS 9 on the Company’s solvency position is two-fold. As the standard covers classification and measurement of both 
financial assets and liabilities:

l Changes in the measurement of financial assets in scope for IFRS 9 and defined as admissible under the risk based capital as 
detailed in the prudential guidelines set by the NAICOM may result in a decline in the asset value.

l Changes in the impairment of financial instruments in scope for IFRS 9 and defined as admissible liabilities under the NAICOM 
prudential guidelines have resulted in an increase in allowance provisions and consequently admissible liabilities/decrease in 
admissible assets.

l The changes in measurement of financial instruments may also affect the amount of capital available to meet the regulator’s 
minimum capital requirement. This will probably have an adverse effect on the insurers solvency position.
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IAS 39 Admissible 
assets IFRS 9 Impact

Adjusted IFRS 9 Ad-
missible assets

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 413,003 413,003
Held-to-maturity - -
Fair value through profit or loss 3,281,505 3,281,505
Fair value through OCI - 763,843 763,843
Available-for-sale 763,843 (763,843) -
Loans and receivables-assets - -
Trade receivables 40,027 40,027
Reinsurance assets 916,684 916,684
Deferred acquisition costs        153,311 153,311
Other receivables and prepayments 3,393 3,393
Investment properties - -
Property, plant and equipment (L&B) 981,653 981,653
Property, plant and equipment (others) 153,057 153,057
Total assets 7,007,076 7,007,076
Total liabilities 2,695,923 2,695,923
Solvency margin 4,311,153 4,311,153

A.  Minimum capital requirement 3,000,000 3,000,000
B.  15% of net premium (Premium less reinsurance) 312,074 312,074
Higher of A and B 3,000,000 3,000,000
Solvency margin achieved 4,311,153 4,311,153
Solvency ratio 144% 144%

2.1.2 (a) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Company
     
 A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments are effective for annual period beginning after 1 January 2018 

and earlier application is permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in 
preparing these financial statements:     

        
 IFRS 16 Leases

 IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, 
SIC- 15 Operating leases- Incentives and SIC -27 Evaluating the substance of Transactions involving the legal form of a lease.

 The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities that 
apply IFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.     

      
 IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet accounting model for leases. A leasee recognises a right-of-use asset representing 

its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition 
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard, i.e. 
lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.      

      
 The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its financial statements but has not yet completed 

its detailed assessment. The actual impact of applying IFRS 16 on the financial statements in the period of initial application will 
depend on future economic conditions.      

      
 No significant impact is expected on the Company’s finance leases as the Company has a few offices under operating leases.
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Sept 
2014).
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The IAS 28 was amended so that

a. The current requirements 
regarding the partial gain or 
loss recognition for transactions 
between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture only apply 
to the gain or loss resulting from 
the sale or contribution of assets 
that do not constitute a business 
as defined in IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations

The entity does not have any subsidiary or 
associate and is not also involved in any 
form of joint venture agreement.

Hence, this amendment is not applicable 
to the entity.

IFRIC 23
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting 
for uncertainties in income taxes.

The interpretation is to be applied 
to the determination of taxable 
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits and 
tax rates, when there is uncertainty 
over income tax treatments under 
IAS 12.

IFRIC 23 is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019. Earlier 
application is permitted.

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting 
for uncertainties in income taxes.

The interpretation is to be applied 
to the determination of taxable 
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits and 
tax rates, when there is uncertainty 
over income tax treatments under 
IAS 12.

IFRIC 23 is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019. Earlier 
application is permitted.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 9 (Oct 2017)
Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation

The amendments in Prepayment 
Features with Negative 
Compensation (Amendments to 
IFRS 9) are:

1. Changes regarding symmetric 
prepayment options

Under the current IFRS 9 
requirements, the SPPI condition is 
not met if the lender has to make 
a settlement payment in the event 
of termination by the borrower 
(also referred to as early repayment 
gain).

Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation amends the existing 
requirements in IFRS 9 regarding 
termination rights in order to allow 
measurement at amortised cost 
(or, depending on the business 
model, at fair value through other 
comprehensive income) even in 
the case of negative compensation 
payments.

2. Clarification regarding the 
modification of financial liabilities

The final amendments also contain 
(in the Basis for Conclusions) a 
clarification regarding the accounting 
for a modification or exchange of 
a financial liability measured at 
amortised cost that does not result 
in the de-recognition of the financial 
liability. The IASB clarifies that an 
entity recognises any adjustment to 
the amortised cost of the financial 
liability arising from a modification 
or exchange in profit or loss at the 
date of the modification or exchange. 
A retrospective change of the 
accounting treatment may therefore 
become necessary if in the past the 
effective interest rate was adjusted 
and not the amortised cost amount.
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

Amendments to IAS 28 (Oct 2017)
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 
Ventures

The amendments in Long-term 
Interests in Associates and Joint 
Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28) 
are:

 l	Paragraph 14A has been added 
to clarify that an entity applies 
IFRS 9 including its impairment 
requirements, to long-term 
interests in an associate or joint 
venture that form part of the net 
investment in the associate or joint 
venture but to which the equity 
method is not applied.

l Paragraph 41 has been deleted 
because the Board felt that it 
merely reiterated requirements in 
IFRS 9 and had created confusion 
about the accounting for long-term 
interests.

The amendments are accompanied 
by an illustrative example.

The amendments are effective for 
periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019. Earlier application is 
permitted.

The entity does not have any subsidiary 
or associate and not also involved in any 
form of joint venture agreement.

Hence, this amendment is not applicable 
to the entity.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 
2015–2017 Cycle (Dec 2017)
IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and 
IAS 23 Amendments

In December 2017, the IASB 
published Annual Improvements 
to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 
Cycle, containing the following 
amendments to IFRSs:

l	IFRS 3 Business Combinations and 
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — The 
amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that 
when an entity obtains control of a 
business that is a joint operation, it 
re-measures previously held interests 
in that business. The amendments to 
IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity 
obtains joint control of a business 
that is a joint operation, the entity 
does not re-measure previously held 
interests in that business.
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

l IAS 12 Income Taxes — The 
amendments clarify that the 
requirements in the former 
paragraph 52B (to recognise 
the income tax consequences of 
dividends where the transactions or 
events that generated distributable 
profits are recognised) apply to 
all income tax consequences of 
dividends by moving the paragraph 
away from paragraph 52A that 
only deals with situations where 
there are different tax rates for 
distributed and undistributed 
profits.

l IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — 
The amendments clarify that if 
any specific borrowing remains 
outstanding after the related 
asset is ready for its intended use 
or sale, that borrowing becomes 
part of the funds that an entity 
borrows generally when calculating 
the capitalisation rate on general 
borrowings.

Amendments to IAS 19) (February 2018) Plan 
Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

On 7 February 2018, the IASB 
published Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement 
(Amendments to IAS 19) to 
harmonise accounting practices 
and to provide more relevant 
information for decision-making. An 
entity applies the amendments to 
plan amendments, curtailments or 
settlements occurring on or after 
the beginning of the first annual 
reporting period that begins on or 
after 1 January 2019.
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

Amendments to References to the Conceptual 
Framework in IFRS Standards

The Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting (Conceptual 
Framework) describes the objective 
of and concepts for general 
purpose financial reporting. It is a 
practical tool that helps the IASB 
to develop requirements in IFRS® 
Standards based on consistent 
concepts. Consideration of these 
concepts, in turn, should result in 
the IASB developing IFRS Standards 
that require entities to provide 
financial information that is useful 
to investors, lenders and other 
creditors.

The IASB decided to revise the 
Conceptual Framework because 
some important issues were not 
covered and some guidance were 
unclear or out of date. The revised 
Conceptual Framework, issued by 
the IASB in March 2018, includes:

l A new chapter on measurement;

l Guidance on reporting financial 
performance;

l Improved definitions of an 
asset and a liability, and guidance 
supporting these definitions; and

l Clarifications in important areas, 
such as the roles of stewardship, 
prudence and measurement 
uncertainty in financial reporting.

The IASB also updated references to 
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 
Standards by issuing Amendments 
to References to the Conceptual 
Framework in IFRS Standards. This 
was done to support transition 
to the revised Conceptual 
Framework for companies that 
develop accounting policies using 
the Conceptual Framework when 
no IFRS Standard applies to a 
particular transaction.
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New or amended standards and effective date Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial statements

IFRS 17
Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles 
for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of 
insurance contracts within the 
scope of the standard. The objective 
of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an 
entity provides relevant information 
that faithfully represents those 
contracts. This information gives 
a basis for users of financial 
statements to assess the effect that 
insurance contracts have on the 
entity’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows.

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 
and applies to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2021.

Amendments to  IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
to IFRS 4

Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 
2018

The amendments clarify the following:

1. The optional temporary exemption 
from IFRS 9 is available to entities whose 
activities are predominantly connected 
with insurance. The temporary exemption 
permits such entities to continue to apply 
IAS 39 while they defer the application of 
IFRS 9 until 1 January 2021 at the latest.

2. The overlay approach is an option 
for entities that adopt IFRS 9 and issue 
insurance contracts, to adjust profit or 
loss for eligible financial assets; effectively 
resulting in IAS 39 accounting for 
those designated financial assets. The 
adjustment eliminates accounting volatility 
that may arise from applying IFRS 9 
without the new insurance contracts 
standard. Under this approach, an entity is 
permitted to reclassify amounts between 
profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income for designated financial assets.

An entity must present a separate line 
item for the amount of the overlay 
adjustment in profit or loss, as well as a 
separate line item for the corresponding 
adjustment in other comprehensive 
income.

The temporary exemption is first applied 
for reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018.
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3 Foreign Currency

(i)    Reporting currency 
    
 The financial statements are presented/measured in Nigerian currency (Naira) which is the Company’s functional currency. 

Except otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Naira have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(i)    Transactions and balances

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into naira at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the balance sheet date denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Naira 
at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Any gains or losses arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.

 Non–monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rate if held at historical cost or year-end exchange 
rate, if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in either the income statement or 
shareholder’s equity depending on the treatment of the gain or loss on the assets or liability.

4 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, call deposits and short-term highly liquid financial assets with 
original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their 
fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, cash balances and fixed deposits. 

      
5 Financial assets and liabilities 
    
 The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: fair value through profit or loss, fair value through other 

comprehensive income and amortised cost. The classification is determined by Management at initial recognition and depends 
on the objective of the business model.

5.1 Classification and measurements

 For the purpose of measuring a financial asset after initial recognition, IFRS 9 classifies financial assets into the following 
categories: at fair value through profit or loss; at fair value through other comprehensive income and at amortised cost. The 
classification is based on the results of the entity’s business model test and the contractual cashflow characteristics of the 
financial assets.  The category relevant to The Entity as at 31 December 2017 are fair value through profit or loss; at fair value 
through other comprehensive income and at amortised cost. At initial recognition all assets are measured at Fair Value.

5.2 Business model assessment

 Business model assessment involves determining if financial assets are managed in order to generate cash flows from collection 
of contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. The Company assesses business model at a portfolio level which 
reflects how the assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.

5.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held-for-trading and those designated by The Entity as at 
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Financial assets classified as held through profit or loss are those that 
have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or repurchasing in the near term, or held as part of 
a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit.

 Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to profit 
or loss. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in profit or loss and are reported as ‘Net gains/ 
(losses) on financial assets classified as held-for-trading’. Interest income and expense and dividend income on financial assets 
held-for-trading are included in ‘Discount and similar income’ or ‘Other operating income’, respectively. Fair value changes 
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relating to financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in ‘Net gains from financial assets held-
for-trading’.

5.4 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

 Except for financial assets that are designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, a financial asset is 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if both of the following conditions are met:

 a.  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets (the business model test); and

 b.  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flows characteristics test).

5.5 Financial assets measured at amortised cost

 Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold for collection 
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. After initial measurement, 
debt instruments in this category are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is 
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. Amortisation is included in Interest income in the Statement of Income. Impairment on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost is calculated using the expected credit loss approach.

5.6 Recognition and measurement

 Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit 
and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit 
and loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income. 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from them have expired or where they have been 
transferred and the Company has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are 
subsequently carried at fair value. Other financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

      
 Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit and loss’ category are 

included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through 
profit and loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of Investment income when the Company’s right 
to receive payments is established.

 Interest on financial assets fair value through other comprehensive income calculated using the effective interest method 
is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments fair value through other comprehensive income are 
recognised in the income statement when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Both are included in the 
investment income line.

5.7 Determination of fair value

 For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is 
based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity securities and quoted debt instruments on 
major exchanges. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price.

 A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an 
exchange, dealer, broker, industry, company, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly 
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. 
Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or 
there are few recent transactions.
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 For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these techniques, fair values are 
estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to estimate the present value of 
expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques, using inputs (for example, NIBOR, MPR etc.) existing at the dates of 
the statement of financial position.

 The Company uses widely recognised money market rates in determining fair values of non-standardised financial instruments 
of lower complexity like placements, and treasury bills. These financial instruments models are generally market observable. The 
carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.

 The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the 
current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments. In cases where the fair value of 
unlisted equity instruments cannot be determined reliably, the instruments are carried at cost less any impairments. The fair value 
for loans and receivables as well as liabilities to banks and customers are determined using a present value model on the basis 
of contractually agreed cash flows, taking into account credit quality, liquidity and costs. The fair values of contingent liabilities 
and irrevocable loan commitments correspond to their carrying amounts.

5.8 De-recognition of financial instruments

 The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it 
transfers the financial asset and all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset substantially to another entity. If the Company 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, 
the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

5.9 Reclassification of financial assets

 Reclassification of financial assets is determined by The Entity’s Senior Management, and is done as a result of external or 
internal changes which are significant to The Entity’s operations and demonstrable to external parties.

 Reclassification of financial assets occurs when The Entity changes its business model for managing financial assets.

 Investments in equity instruments that are designated as at FVTOCI at initial recognition cannot be reclassified because the 
election to designate as at FVTOCI is irrevocable.

 For financial assets, reclassification is required between FVTPL, FVTOCI and amortised cost; if and only if the entity’s business 
model objective for its financial assets changes so its previous business model assessment would no longer apply. 

 IFRS 9 does not allow reclassification:

 l when the fair value option has been elected in any circumstance for a financial asset;

 l or equity investments (measured at FVTPL or FVTOCI); or

 l for financial liabilities. 
     
 If an entity reclassifies a financial asset, it is required to apply the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date, 

defined as the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in the entity reclassifying 
financial assets. Previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest are not restated.  
   

 All impairment losses are recognised through profit or loss.  If any loss on the financial asset was previously recognised directly 
in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised in equity is transferred to the income 
statement and is recognised as part of the impairment loss. The amount of the loss recognised in the income statement is the 
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment loss.
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5.11 Impairment of financial assets

 Financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI

 The impairment model under IFRS 9 reflects expected credit losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39. Under the 
impairment approach in IFRS 9, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised. 
Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of 
expected credit losses should be updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. 

    
 The Entity recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on the following financial instruments that are not 

measured at FVTPL:

 Financial assets that are debt instruments, Lease receivables, Loan and advances to customers, Other Loans and receivables, 
Financial guarantee contracts issued; and Loan commitments issued. The Entity measures expected credit losses and recognises 
interest income on risk assets based on the following stages:

 Stage 1: Assets that are performing. If credit risk is low as of the reporting date or the credit risk has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition, The Entity recognises a loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. This 
amount of credit losses is intended to represent lifetime expected credit losses that will result if a default occurs in the 12 
months after the reporting date, weighted by the probability of that default occurring.

 Stage 2: Assets that have significant increases in credit risk. In instances where credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, The Entity measures a loss allowance at an amount equal to full lifetime expected credit losses. That is, the expected 
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument. For these debt instruments, 
interest income recognition will be based on the EIR multiplied by the gross carrying amount.

 Stage 3: Credit impaired. For debt instruments that have both a significant increase in credit risk plus observable evidence of 
impairment.

 The Entity’s process to assess changes in credit risk is multi-factor and has three main elements;

 i.    Quantitative element, a quantitative comparison of PD at the reporting date and PD at initial recognition
 ii.   Qualitative elements
 iii.   Backstop indicators

 For individually significant exposures such as corporate and commercial risk assets, the assessment is driven by the internal credit 
rating of the exposure and a combination of forward-looking information that is specific to the individual borrower and forward-
looking information on the macro economy, commercial sector (to the extent such information has not been already reflected 
in the rating process).

 For other exposures, significant increases in credit risk are made on a collective basis that incorporates all relevant credit 
information, including forward-looking macroeconomic information. For this purpose, The Entity groups its exposures on the basis 
of shared credit risk characteristics.

 No impairment reserve is set on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss.

 Significant increase in credit risk

 The Entity decision on whether expected credit losses are based on 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit 
losses depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. An assessment of whether 
credit risk has increased significantly is made at each reporting date. When making the assessment, The Entity uses the change in 
the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected 
credit losses. The forms the basis of Stage 1, 2 and 3 classification and subsequent migration.
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 The Entity applies qualitative and quantitative criteria for stage classification and for its forward and backward migration.

i)  Assets carried at amortised cost

 The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 
is recognised in income statement. If a financial instrument has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.  

      
 The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows 

that may result from disposal less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not disposal is probable.  
 

  
 For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk 

characteristics (i.e. on the basis of The Entity’s grading process that considers asset type, industry, geographical location, 
collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash 
flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual 
terms of the assets being evaluated.

 Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the 
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar 
to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of 
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of 
conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.    

      
 Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets are reflected and directionally consistent with changes in related 

observable data from period to period (for example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other 
factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions 
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by The Entity to reduce any differences between loss estimates and 
actual loss experience.

     
 When a loan is uncollectible, it is written-off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are written-off after 

all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Impairment charges relating 
to loans and advances to Insurance entities and loans and advances to customers are classified in ‘impairment charge for credit 
losses’ whilst impairment charges relating to investment securities (loans and receivables categories) are classified in ‘Net gains/
(losses) on investment securities’. 

    
 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

ii) Assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income

 The Entity can choose to make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for investments in equity instruments that do not 
meet the definition of held-for-trading, which would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, to present 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

 Reclassification of amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity to profit or loss is not done. 
This applies throughout the life of the instrument and also at de-recognition; such investments will not be subject to the 
impairment requirements.

 Dividends on investments in equity instruments with gains and losses irrevocably presented in other comprehensive income 
are recognised in profit or loss if the dividend is not a return on investment (like dividends on any other holdings of equity 
instrument) when:
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 a.  the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;
 b.  it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and
 c.  the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

 For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, changes in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for: interest 
calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange gains or losses and; impairment gains or losses until the 
financial asset is derecognised or reclassified.

 When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Also, when a debt instrument asset is measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income, the amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that 
would have been recognised in profit or loss if the financial asset had been measured at amortised cost.

5.11 Financial liabilities

 Classification and subsequent measurement

 i.    Amortised cost

 ii.   Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

 Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. At initial recognition, the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument 
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration paid or received), unless the fair value of that instrument is 
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, without modification or 
repackaging, or based on valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models whose variables 
include only data from observable markets.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, for financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial 
assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity securities 
and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges (for example, Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE) and Financial Markets Dealers 
Quotation (FMDQ)).

 A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an 
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly 
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. 
Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or 
there are few recent transactions.

 For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these techniques, fair values are 
estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to estimate the present value of 
expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques, using inputs existing at the dates of the statement of financial position.

 Forward-Looking information

 In the context of IFRS 9, is an enhanced information set that includes credit information pertaining to future developments 
(including for example macroeconomic developments). The inclusion of forward-looking information along with traditional past 
due (realised, historical) information is considered to produce comprehensive credit risk information.

 The inclusion of forward-looking information is a distinctive feature of an IFRS 9 ECL model. Incorporating economically stressed 
states of the world and their potential impact on credit performance is critical for the timely recognition of credit losses.
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 Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

 The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial 
recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

5.12 Offsetting financial instruments

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

6 Trade receivables

 Trade, reinsurance and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial

 Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is 
received that a specific counterparty will default. Trade receivables arising from insurance contracts are stated after deducting 
allowance made for specific debts considered doubtful of recovery. Impairment of trade receivables are presented within other 
operating expenses.

 Trade and Other receivables amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. Trade receivables are reviewed at every reporting period for impairment.

7 Other Receivables and Prepayments

 Other receivables and prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

7.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are considered to be impaired when there exists any indication that 
the asset’s recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

 Impairments or losses of non-financial assets, related claims for or payments of compensation from third parties and any 
subsequent purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of 
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

8 Investment property

 Investment property comprises investment in land or buildings held primarily to earn rentals or capital appreciation or both.

 Investment property is initially recognised at cost including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing 
part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes cost of 
day to day servicing of an investment property.

 An investment property is subsequently measured at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss. Fair values 
are determined individually, on a basis appropriate to the purpose for which the property is intended and with regard to recent 
market transactions for similar properties in the same location.
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 Fair values are reviewed annually by an independent valuer holding a recognised and relevant professional qualification and with 
relevant experience in the location and category of investment property being valued. Any gain or loss arising from a change in 
the fair value is recognised in the income statement.

 Subsequent expenditure on investment property is capitalised only if future economic benefit will flow to the Company; otherwise 
they are expensed as incurred.

 Investment properties are disclosed separate from the property and equipment used for the purposes of the business.

 The Company separately accounts for a dual purpose property as investment property if it occupies only an insignificant portion. 
Otherwise, the portion occupied by the Company is treated as property plant and equipment.

9 Intangible assets

 Recognition of software acquired is only allowed if it is probable that future economic benefits to this intangible asset are 
attributable and will flow to the Company.

 Software acquired is initially measured at cost. The cost of acquired software comprises its purchase price, including any import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure on preparing the asset for its intended 
use. After initial recognition, software acquired is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Maintenance costs should not be included.

 Internally developed software is capitalised when the Company has the intention and demonstrates the ability to complete the 
development and use of the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the costs 
to complete the development. The capitalised costs include all costs directly attributable to the development of the software. 
Internally developed software is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. 

 Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available-for-use. The estimated useful 
life of software is three years subject to annual re-assessment.

10 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Recognition and Measurement

 Property, Plant and Equipment comprise land and buildings and other properties owned by the Company.

 Items of property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

 Subsequent Costs

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account during the financial period 
in which they are incurred.

 Subsequent costs on replacement parts on an item of property are recognised in the carrying amount of the asset and the 
carrying amount of the replaced or renewed component is derecognised.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation is calculated on property, plant and equipment on the straight line basis to write down the cost of each asset to its 
residual value over its estimated useful life, Land is not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at each reporting date.
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 Depreciation reduces an asset’s carrying value to its residual value at the end of its useful life, and is allocated on a straight line 
basis over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

 Land   -
 Buildings   2%    
 Office equipment  20%    
 Computer hardware 33.33%    
 Furniture and fittings 20%    
 Plant and machinery 20%    
 Motor vehicles  25%

 De-recognition

 Upon disposal of any item of property, plant and equipment or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow from its 
use, such items are derecognised from the books. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are determined by comparing proceeds 
with their carrying amounts and are recognised in the income statement in the year of de-recognition.

11 Statutory deposit

 This represents 10% of the paid up capital of the Company deposited with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) in pursuant to 
section 10(3) of the Insurance Act, 2003. Statutory deposit is measured at cost.

12 Insurance Contracts

 The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Contracts under which the Company accepts 
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary 
if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary are classified as 
insurance contracts. Insurance risk is risk other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of the contract to the issuer.

(a)  Classification of Insurance Contracts

 Insurance contracts are accident and casualty, special risks and property insurance contracts which protect the Company’s 
customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include 
both contractual and non-contractual events. The typical protection offered is designed for employers who become legally liable 
to pay compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property damage (public liability).

 Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customer for damage suffered to their properties or for the 
value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation for 
the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

 The insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers from the consequences of events (such as death or disability) that 
would affect the ability of the customer or his/her dependants to maintain their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits 
paid on occurrence of the specified insurance events are either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by 
the policyholder. There are no maturity or surrender benefits.

(b) Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts

(i) Gross Premiums

 Gross premiums comprise the premiums on insurance contracts entered into during the year, irrespective of whether they relate 
in whole or in part to a later accounting period. The earned portion of premiums received is recognised as revenue. Premiums 
are earned from the date of attachment of risk, over the indemnity period, based on the pattern of risk underwritten. Premiums 
are shown before deduction of commission.
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 Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the related direct insurance 
or reinsurance business assumed. Outward reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern 
of indemnity received.

(ii) Unearned premiums

 Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in the year that relate to periods of risks after the reporting 
date. It is computed separately for each insurance contract using actuarially determined liabilities by the actuary. Provision for 
unexpired risk is made for unexpired risks arising where the expected value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired 
period of policies in force at the reporting date exceeds the unearned premium in relation to such policies after deduction of any 
deferred acquisition costs. Specifically, provision for unexpired risk is based on time appointment basis.

(iii) Deferred acquisition costs

 Acquisition costs comprise insurance commissions and other related expenses arising from the generation and conclusion of 
insurance contracts. The proportion of acquisition costs that correspond to the unearned premiums are deferred as an asset 
and recognised in the subsequent period. They are recognised on a basis consistent with the related provisions for unearned 
premiums.

(iv) Deferred income

 Deferred income represents a proportion of commission received on reinsurance contracts which are booked during a financial 
year and are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins.

(v)  Reinsurance contracts

 The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential on policies 
written. Premium ceded comprise written premiums ceded to reinsurers, adjusted for the reinsurers’ share of the movement in 
the provision for the unearned premiums. Reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligations to 
its policyholders.

 Reinsurance expenses, and commission received are presented in the income statement separately from the gross amounts.  
   

 Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for 
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

     
 Reinsurance recoverables are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and claims incurred 

associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related insurance contract. They are measured at their 
carrying amount less impairment charges. Amounts recoverable under reinsurance contracts are assessed for impairment at each 
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company reduces the carrying amount of its insurance 
assets to its recoverable amount and recognises the impairment loss in the income statement as a result of an event that 
occurred after its initial recognition, that the Company may not recover all amounts due and that the event has a reliably 
measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer.

(vi) Commission Income

 Commission income is recognised on ceding business to the re-assurer, and is credited to the profit and loss account.
     
(vii) Claims

 Claims consist of claims and claims handling expenses paid during the financial year. This is charged to the income as incurred 
based on the estimated liability for compensation owed to policy contract holders or third parties damaged by the policy contract 
holders.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSINTRODUCTION GOVERNANCE NSTRATEGIC REPORT

FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2018

80

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The provision for outstanding claims represent the Company’s estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but 
unpaid at the balance sheet date whether reported or not. The provision includes an allowance for claims management and 
handling expenses. The Company does not discount its liability for unpaid claims.

 The provision for outstanding claims for reported claims is estimated based on current information and the ultimate liability 
may vary as a result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. 
Adjustments to the amounts of claims provision for prior years are reflected in the income statement in the financial period in 
which adjustments are made, and disclosed separately if material.

(viii) Underwriting expenses

 Underwriting expenses are made up of acquisition and other underwriting expenses. Acquisition costs comprise all direct 
and indirect costs arising from the writing of insurance contracts, these include but not limited to commission expenses, 
superintending fees and other technical fees.

 Underwriting expenses for insurance contracts are recognised as expense when incurred and they are charged in the accounting 
year in which they are incurred.

(ix) Liabilities and related assets under liability adequacy test

 The net liability for insurance contracts is tested for adequacy by discounting current estimates of all future contractual cash 
flows and comparing this amount to the carrying value of the liability net of deferred acquisition costs. Where a shortfall is 
identified, an additional provision is made and the Company recognises the deficiency in the income statement for the year.

13 Technical reserves

 These are the reserves computed in compliance with the provision of Section 20, 21, and 22 of the Insurance Act 2003. They 
are:

 General insurance contracts

(a)    Reserves for unearned premium
 Unearned premium is calculated in compliance with Section 20 (1) (a) of Insurance Act 2003 on a time apportionment basis 

in respect of the risks accepted during the year.

(b)    Reserves for outstanding claims

 The reserve for outstanding claims is maintained at the total amount of outstanding claims incurred and reported plus claims 
incurred but not reported (IBNR) which is based on the liability adequacy test as at balance sheet date (see Note 54).

(c)    Reserves for unexpired risk

 A provision for additional unexpired risk reserve (AURR) is recognised for an underwriting year where it is envisaged that the 
estimated cost of claims and expenses would exceed the unearned premium reserve (UPR).

 Hypothecation of assets

 The Company has a practice to hypothecate its assets into insurance and shareholders’ fund where funds are combined to 
acquire such assets.

14 Provisions and other payables

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
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 Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

 Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability is 
not up to one year, discounting is omitted.

15 Current income tax

 Current income tax expense is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

16 Deferred tax

 Deferred taxation, which arises from timing differences in the recognition of items for accounting and tax purposes, is calculated 
using the liability method.  Deferred taxation is provided fully on timing differences, which are expected to reverse at the rate of 
tax likely to be in force at the time of reversal.  A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the associated unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, differences relating to investments in 
subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future and differences arising from investment 
property measured at fair value whose carrying amount will be recovered through use. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the 
related dividend is recognised.

17 Share capital and premium

 The Company classifies ordinary shares and share premium as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.

 Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of shares are recognised as deductions from equity net of any tax effects.

18 Contingency reserves

 The Company maintains contingency reserves in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act 2003 (Section 21 (2)) to 
cover fluctuations in securities and variations in statistical estimates at the rate equal to the higher of 3% of total premium or 
20% of the total profit after taxation until the reserve reaches the greater of minimum paid up capital or 50% of net premium 
for general business.

19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the 
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the number of shares outstanding during the year.

        
 Adjusted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the bonus shares issued.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20 Asset revaluation reserves

 Revaluation gains recognised on valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment, basically land and buildings, are credited to assets 
revaluation reserves. When the revaluation gains are realised, they are credited to profit or loss from asset revaluation reserves.

21 Dividends

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends that are proposed but not yet declared are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

 Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, if earlier, approved 
by the Company’s shareholders.

22 Contingent liabilities

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or the 
Company has a present obligation as a result of past events which is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities normally 
comprise of legal claims under arbitration or court process in respect of which a liability is not likely to crystallise.

23 Revenue recognition

 Revenue comprises the fair value for services, net of value added tax. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a)  Rendering of services: Revenue arising from assets management and other related services offered by the Company are 
recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

(b)  Premium income: Premium income are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The 
portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the 
unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levied on 
premiums.

(c)  Interest income and expenses: Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, including financial 
instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss, are recognised within investment income in the income statement 
using the effective interest rate method. When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its 
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, 
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income is accounted for on a time proportionate basis that 
takes into account the effective interest rate on the asset.

(d)  Fees and commission income: Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and commissions are recognised on an 
accruals basis as the service is provided. Fees consist primarily of investment management fees, surrenders and other contract 
fees arising from services rendered in conjunction with the issue and management of investment contracts where the Company 
actively manages the consideration received from its customers to fund a return that is based on the investment profile that the 
customer selected on origination of the instrument.

 These services comprise the activity of trading financial assets in order to reproduce the contractual returns that the Company’s 
customers expect to receive from their investments. Such activities generate revenue that is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the contractual services.

24 Investment income 

 Investment income comprises interest income earned on short-term deposits, rental income and income earned on trading of 
securities including all realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences. Investment 
income is accounted for on an accrual basis.
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 Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated using the effective interest rate method. 
Fees and commissions that form part of an integral part of the effective yield of a financial instrument are recognised as an 
adjustment to the effective interest rate of the instrument.

    
 When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future 

cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest 
income.

25 Reinsurance expenses

 Reinsurance cost represents outward premium paid to reinsurance companies less the unexpired portion as at the end of the 
accounting year.

26 Other operating expenses

 Other operating expenses are expenses other than claims and underwriting expenses. They include salaries, depreciation expenses 
and other expenses. They are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the income statement upon utilisation of the 
service or at the date of their origin.

27 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term benefits

 Short-term employee benefit obligations include wages, salaries and other benefits which the Company has a present obligation 
to pay, as a result of employees’ services provided up to the balance sheet date. The accrual is calculated on an undiscounted 
basis, using current salary rates.

 A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-employment benefits

 The Company operates a defined contributory retirement scheme as stipulated in the Pension Reform Act 2014 Amendment. 
Under the defined contribution scheme, the Company pays fixed contributions of 16.5% to a separate entity – Pension Fund 
Administrators; employees pay 8.5% fixed percentage to the same entity. Once the contributions have been paid, the Company 
retains no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold enough assets to finance 
benefits accruing under the retirement benefit plan. The Company’s obligations are recognised in the profit and loss account.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note
31-Dec-18

N’000
31-Dec-17

N’000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent 2 316,947 413,003
Financial assets:
  Fair value through profit or loss 3 4,727,352 3,281,505
  Fair value through other comprehensive income 3 293,693 -
  Available-for-sale 3 - 763,843
Trade receivables 4 14,195 40,027
Reinsurance assets 5 2,209,787 916,684
Deferred acquisition cost 6 194,536 153,311
Other receivables and prepayments 7 38,098 105,861
Investment properties 8 100,000 100,000
Property plant and equipment 9 1,256,938 1,134,710
Intangible assets 10 - 33,617
Statutory deposits 11 300,000 300,000
Total assets 9,451,546 7,242,561

LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 12 3,489,155 2,119,275
Trade payables 13 189,543 95,204
Provision and other payables 14 420,932 433,888
Income tax liabilities 15 78,672 47,555
Deferred tax liabilities 16 108,823 65,171
Total liabilities 4,287,125 2,761,093

EQUITY
Paid-up share capital 17 3,951,753 3,751,753
Share premium 18 410,961 410,961
Contingency reserve 19 729,448 590,390
Retained earnings 20 (444,874) (798,577)
Fair value reserves 21 - 9,808
Asset revaluation surplus 22 517,133 517,133
Total equity 5,164,421 4,481,468
Total liabilities and equity 9,451,546 7,242,561

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2019 and signed on its behalf by;

Olugbenga Shobo    Bode Opadokun    Boye Ogunkoya
Chairman    Managing Director/CEO   Head, Finance
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002330  FRC/2014/CIIN/00000008646  FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000900

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Financial Statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note
31-Dec-18

N’000
31-Dec-17

N’000

Gross premium written 23 4,635,233 3,516,548

Gross premium income 24 4,388,835 3,360,467

Reinsurance premium expenses 25 (1,959,416) (1,279,971)

Net premium income 2,429,419 2,080,496

Fee and commission income - insurance contracts 26 322,503 216,364

Net underwriting income 2,751,922 2,296,860

Claims incurred 27 (2,025,324) (1,210,334)

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 27a 1,507,018 454,334

Underwriting expenses 28 (924,658) (667,992)

Underwriting profit 1,308,958 872,868

Investment income 29 720,771 682,607

Net realised losses on financial assets 30 - 1,720

Net fair value (loss)/gain 31 (64,344) 40,574

Other operating income 32 136,278 78,495

ECL Impairment no longer required 36 224 -

Net operating income 2,101,887 1,676,265

Employee benefit expenses 33 (603,839) (586,388)

Other operating and administrative expenses 34 (778,993) (640,092)

Specific impairment allowance 35 (103,302) (126,941)

ECL Impairment allowance 36 (155) -

Profit before tax 615,598 322,844

Income tax expense 37 (122,613) (31,911)

Profit after tax 492,985 290,933

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(a) Net fair value loss on Fairvalue through OCI financial assets 21 (9,808) 85,876

     

(b) Income tax credit relating to loss arising from available-for-sale 
financial assets

- -

Total other comprehensive loss (9,808) 85,876

Total comprehensive income for the year 483,177 376,809
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

 

Issued
capital
N’000

Share
premium
N’000

Contingency
reserve
N’000

Assets 
revaluation 

reserve 
(PPE)
N’000

Retained
earnings
N’000

Available-
for-sale
reserves
N’000

Total
equity
N’000

At 1 January 2017 3,751,753 410,961 484,894 517,133 (984,014) (76,068) 4,104,659

Profit after tax - - - - 290,933 - 290,933

Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of income tax - - - - - 85,876 85,876

Total comprehensive income - - - - 290,933 85,876 376,809

Transfer from retained earnings - - 105,496 - (105,496) - -

Balance at 31 December 2017 3,751,753 410,961 590,390 517,133 (798,577) 9,808 4,481,468

IFRS 9 opening transition adjustment (224) 224 -

Adjusted Opening balance 3,751,753 410,961 590,390 517,133 (798,801) 10,032 4,481,468

Issue of shares 200,000 - - - - - 200,000

Profit after tax - - - - 492,985 - 492,985

Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of income tax

- - - - - (10,032) (10,032)

Total comprehensive income 200,000 - - - 492,985 (10,032) 682,953

Transfer from retained earnings - - 139,058 - (139,058) - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 3,951,753 410,961 729,448 517,133 (444,874) - 5,164,421
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note
31-Dec-18

N’000
31-Dec-17

N’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Premiums received from policyholders 4 4,661,065 3,496,704

Premium deposit 13.2 90,323 6,060

Re-insurance receipt in respect of claims 5a 280,222 472,936

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (607,567) (586,376)

Reinsurance premium paid 13.1 (2,003,079) (1,342,786)

Other income received 32 60,500 -

Interest on Investment 846,455 487,189

Dividend received 29 4,206 135

Fees and commission income received 26 332,905 276,385

Claims paid 27 (901,841) (857,438)

Other operating expenses paid (595,185) (342,807)

Commission paid (Acquisition) 28a (857,656) (636,549)

Maintenance expenses paid during the year 28 (108,226) (52,456)

Tax paid 15 (47,845) (31,278)

Net cashflow generated by operating activities 1,154,278 889,718

Cashflows from investing activities

Purchase of financial assets FVTP or L 3.2 (7,656,133) (3,527,835)

Proceed from redemption of financial assets FVTP or L 3.2 6,564,668 589,848

Proceed from redemption of financial assets - Loans and receivables - 375,800

Purchase of financial assets AFS - (2,375,590)

Proceed from redemption of financial assets OCI - 4,264,173

Purchase of financial assets - Bond 3.6 (179,174) (46,352)

Proceed from disposal of financial assets - 48,076

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (187,213) (84,915)

Cash advance for the renovation of head office building - (37,543)

Proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment 32.1 7,674 3,036

Deposit for software licence - (10,906)

Net cashflow generated by investing activities (1,450,178) (802,207)

Cashflows from financing activities

Proceed from issue of shares 17 200,000 -

Net cash flow generated by  financing activities 200,000 -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (95,900) 68,734

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2.2 413,003 344,269

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 2.2 317,103 413,003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1 LEGAL FORM

FBN General Insurance Limited, (formerly Oasis Insurance Company Limited) was incorporated on November 9, 1992 to carry on 
insurance business. It changed its name to Oasis Insurance Plc on November 26, 2004 following the successful listing of its shares on 
the Nigeria Stock Exchange. Oasis Insurance Plc was acquired by FBN Insurance Limited during the year 2015, and delisted its shares 
on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The Company is now a subsidiary of FBN Insurance Limited (a member of FBNHoldings).

The Company’s registered office address is 298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, Lagos.

The accounting policies of the Company are stated on pages 59-84.

2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Cash and bank balances 66,583 59,342
Short-term deposits (Note 2.1) 250,364 353,661

316,947 413,003

2.1 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Short-term deposits 250,519 353,661
ECL Impairment (155) -

250,364 353,661

2.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR CASH FLOW

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Cash and bank balances 66,583 59,342
Short-term deposits 250,519 353,661

317,103 413,003
Current 317,103 413,003
Non-current - -

317,103 413,003
Of the financial assets, the following relates to insurance funds:
Policyholder insurance funds 110,140 368,806
Shareholders’ funds 206,963 44,197

317,103 413,003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalent approximates fair value. Short-term deposits are various deposits with commercial banks 
for varying period of one to ninety days (1-90 days), depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. 
 
The effective interest rate on short-term deposits range from 8% to 20%. The cash and bank balances are the current account 
balances of the Company. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalent approximates fair value. Short-term deposits are various 
deposits with commercial banks for varying period of one to ninety days (1-90 days), depending on the immediate cash requirements 
of the Company. 
 
The effective interest rate on short term deposits range from 8% to 20%. The cash and bank balances are the current account balances 
of the Company.

3 FINANCIAL ASSETS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  (FVTPL) 4,727,353 3,281,505

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)(Note 3.7) - 763,843

Financial assets available-for-sale (Note 3.8) 293,693 -

5,021,046 4,045,348

Current 4,543,268 3,661,944

Non-current 477,778 383,404

5,021,046 4,045,348

3.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Quoted equity security - 5,257

Treasury bills:

Treasury bills with original maturity < 90 days 2,579,913 1,162,517

Treasury bills with original maturity > 90 days 1,963,355 2,113,731

FGN Bond Jan 2026 184,084 -

4,727,352 3,281,505
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3.2 MOVEMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 3,281,505 17,107

Addition during the year 7,835,308 3,527,835

Redemption during the year (6,564,668) (589,848)

Accrued Interest 200,674 287,259

Impairment on quoted stocks (5,257) (9,186)

Fair value changes (20,210) 48,338

At 31 December 4,727,352 3,281,505

Impairment relates to the quoted stocks that are illiquid hence the impairment of N5.3mn.

3.3 MOVEMENT IN LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January - 358,837

Addition during the year - -

Redemption during the year - (375,800)

Accrued interest - 16,963

At 31 December - -

3.4 MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS-QUOTED EQUITIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 5,257 17,107

Additions during the year - -

Bonus shares - -

Disposal - (4,004)

Realised gain/(loss on disposal) - 90.29

Fair value gain/(loss) - 1,249

Impairment during the year (5,257) (9,186)

At 31 December - 5,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3.5 MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS -TREASURY BILL

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 3,276,249 -

Addition during the year 7,656,133 3,527,835

Redemption during the year (6,564,668) (585,724)

Accrued Interest 189,510 287,259

Reclassification during the year to FVTOCI - 46,879

Fair Value changes (13,956) -

At 31 December 4,543,268 3,276,249

3.6 MOVEMENT IN FVTPL - FGN BOND

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January - -

Addition during the year 179,174 46,352

Disposal during the year - (46,352)

Interest receivable 11,164 -

Fair value changes (6,254) -

At 31 December 184,084 -

3.7 MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 763,843 2,483,025

Addition during the year - 2,375,590

Redemption during the year - (4,264,173)

Accrued interest - 28,929

Reclassification to FVOCI and disposal during the year (763,843) -

Foreign exchange revaluation changes - 54,596

Fair value changes in other comprehensive income - 85,876

At 31 December - 763,843
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3.8 MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI-UNQUOTED EQUITIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January - -

Reclassification from Available-for-sale 383,404 -

Addition during the year - -

Bonus shares 2,376 -

Impairment (98,046) -

Foreign exchange revaluation changes 5,960 -

Fair value changes in other comprehensive income - -

At 31 December 293,694 -

The impairment on unquoted equities represents an allowance for the decline in the fair value of the securities as at 31 December 
2018 in line with the requirements of the standard.

3.9 MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI-TREASURY BILL

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January - -

Reclassification from Available-for-sale 380,215

Addition during the year - -

Redemption during the year (380,215)

Accrued interest - -

Foreign exchange revaluation changes - -

Fair value changes in other comprehensive income - -

At 31 December - -

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets (investments and loans). The key focus of financial risk management 
for the Company is to ensure that the proceeds from financial assets are sufficient to fund its obligations arising from its insurance 
operations. The most important components of financial risk (market risk) arises from open positions in interest rate, fluctuations in 
stock prices, inflation, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movement and/or conditions.

Investments above ninety-one days are classified as part of financial assets of the Company..

All financial instruments are initially recorded at transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial 
instruments are measured at fair values that are quoted in an active market. When quoted prices are not available, fair value are 
determined by using valuation techniques that refer as far as possible to observable market data. These are compared with similar 
instruments where market observable prices exist.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is made up of financial assets designated on initial recognition (quoted equities) 
and treasury bills.

The realised gain or loss arising from the sale of treasury bills was transferred to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The table below compares the fair values of the financial instruments to their carrying values:

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

Carrying 
Amount
N’000

Fair Value
N’000

 Carrying 
Amount
N’000

 Fair Value
N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,727,353 4,727,353 3,744,950 3,281,505

Financial assets at fair value through OCI 293,693 293,693 373,398 763,843

Total financial assets 5,021,046 5,021,046 4,118,348 4,045,348

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are made up of:

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

 Originally 
designated 

carrying amount 
N’000 

 Originally 
designated 

fair value 
N’000 

 Originally 
designated 

carrying amount 
N’000 

 Originally 
designated 

fair value 
N’000 

Quoted equity - - 14,443 5,257

Treasury bills (6 months) 2,579,913 2,579,913 2,064,547 2,081,262

Treasury bills (12 months) 1,963,355 1,963,355 1,164,802 1,194,987

FGN bond Jan 2026 184,084 184,084 - -

Total 4,727,353 4,727,353 3,243,792 3,281,505

Fair value through OCI securities as at 31 December 2018 is made up of:

 Fair value 
through OCI 

N’000 

 Mark-to-
Market 
N’000 

 Gain or 
(Loss)  
N’000 

Unquoted stocks 293,693 293,693 -

Of the financial assets, the following relates to Insurance funds:

31-Dec-18
N’000 

31-Dec-17
N’000 

Policyholders funds 3,896,110 3,276,249 

Shareholders funds 1,124,936 769,099

5,021,046 4,045,348
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4 TRADE RECEIVABLES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 40,027 26,243

Gross premium written 4,635,233 3,516,548

Premiums received from policyholders (4,661,065) (3,502,764)

At 31 December 14,195 40,027

Current 14,195 40,027

Non-current - -

14,195 40,027

Trade receivables are debtors relating to insurance only. All the trade receivables are approximately one month old and are backed-up 
with credit notes.

5 REINSURANCE ASSETS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Prepaid reinsurance 462,275 386,928

Prepaid minimum and deposit 14,610 23,650

Reinsurance share of outstanding claims 1,282,608 391,838

Reinsurance share of IBNR 256,307 88,540

Reinsurance share of claims paid but not yet recovered 193,987 25,728

Total 2,209,787 916,684
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5A MOVEMENT IN REINSURANCE ASSETS

31-Dec-18
 Prepaid 

Reinsurance 
N’000 

 Minimum and 
deposit Ins. 

premium prepaid 
N’000 

 Reinsurance 
share of 

outstanding 
claims 
N’000 

 Reinsurance 
share of IBNR 

N’000 

 Reinsurance 
share of claims 

paid but not yet 
recovered 
N’000 

Total
 N’000 

At 1 January 386,928 23,650 391,838 88,540 25,727 916,683

Addition during the year - 14,610 - - 448,481 463,091

Payment received from reinsurance in respect 
of claim during the year - - - - (280,221) (280,221)

Changes during the period 75,347 (23,650) 890,770 167,767 - 1,110,234

At 31 December 462,275 14,610 1,282,608 256,307 193,987 2,209,787

31-Dec-17
At 1 January 282,326 25,750 394,861 104,120 11,523 818,580

Addition during the year - 23,650 - - 443,205 466,856

Payment received from reinsurance in respect 
of claim during the year - - - - (429,001) (429,001)

Changes during the period 104,602 (25,750) (3,023) (15,580) - 60,249

At 31 December 386,928 23,650 391,838 88,540 25,727 916,684

(i) Reinsurance receivables are to be settled on demand and the carrying amount is equal to the fair value.

(ii) The balance on re-insurance recoveries are set-off against payables from retrocession at the end of every quarter.

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Current 1,618,735 759,386

Non-current 591,052 157,298

2,209,787 916,684
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6 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COST

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 153,311 132,297

Acquisition cost paid during the year 857,657 636,260

Amortised during the year (816,432) (615,246)

At 31 December 194,536 153,311

Current 194,536 153,311

Non-current - -

194,536 153,311

Deferred Acquisition Cost relates commission expense on unearned Premium which was measured on time apportionment basis 
covering the policy period.

7 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Prepaid rent 2,469 13,573

Prepaid insurance expenses (owned assets) 4,851 2,436

Advance payment to contractor on office building renovation (Note 7.1) - 37,543

Equipment maintenance service charge (Note 7.2) 28,700 45,100

Staff advances 265 3,993

Others receivables (Note 7.3) 1,813 3,216

38,098 105,861

Impairment allowance - -

38,098 105,861

Current 38,097 105,861

Non-current - -

38,098 105,861
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7.1 ADVANCE PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR ON OFFICE BUILDING RENOVATION

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 37,543 -

Addition during the year - 37,543

Amount capitalised during the year (37,543) -

At 31 December - 37,543

7.2 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICE CHARGE

The equipment maintenance services charge relates to the Company share of the cost of software acquired by FBN Insurance Ltd (the 
Parent) on behalf of the two companies and is amortised over 3 years.

7.3 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables include the excess payment advance to the vendor for the supply of furniture to the Company. This shall be deducted 
from the subsequent supplies of same in 2019.

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 100,000 105,000

Fair value loss on revaluation - (5,000)

At 31 December 100,000 100,000

Current - -

Non-current 100,000 100,000

100,000 100,000

Of the investment properties, the following relates to insurance funds:

Policyholders funds - -

Shareholders funds 100,000 100,000

100,000 100,000
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2018
1-Jan

N’000
Addition
N’000

Disposal
N’000

Fair value 
adjustment

N’000
31-Dec
N’000

Block of two units of three - bedroom flats 
and two units of two bedroom flats situated 
at No. 9 (plot No. 194), Makeni Street, Zone 
6, Wuse Abuja.

       

100,000 - - -

        

100,000 

       100,000 - - -         100,000 

2017

Block of two units of three - bedroom flats 
and two units of two bedroom flats situated 
at No. 9 (plot No. 194), Makeni Street, Zone 
6, Wuse Abuja.

        

105,000 

           

(5,000)

           

100,000 

       105,000 - -     (5,000)        100,000 

The properties were valued by Jide Taiwo & Co., Estate surveyors & Valuers, a registered member of Financial Reporting Council 
of Nigeria (FRCN/2012/0000000000254) and FRC/2015/NIESV/00000011461 (Partner) in December, 2018 on the basis of 
determining the open market value of the investment property. The open market value of all the property was determined using recent 
comparable market prices. The property is located in Abuja. The next valuation is scheduled for 31st December 2019.
 
The property is held for long-term capital appreciation and rental income. There is no rental income arising from a property owned by 
the Company in 2018 (2017: nil). No administrative charge in 2018. 2017 (nil).

The property was among the assets acquired from the former company, Oasis Insurance Plc in 2014. As at the date of this report, the 
registered deed of assignment is in the name of Oasis Insurance Plc. The process of change of title to the property has commenced 
and would likely be completed within the next one year. We estimate that the remaining cost of perfecting the title documents and full 
registration of ownership is about N5mn.
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2018
Land

N’000
Building
N’000

Motor
vehicles
N’000

Furniture 
and fittings

N’000

Plant and
machinery

N’000

Office 
equipment

N’000

Computer 
hardware
N’000

Total
N’000

Cost: 

At 1 January 434,594 659,708 188,058 30,270 20,249 49,939 51,343 1,434,161

Additions - 31,825 114,431 15,069 15,146 7,057 3,685 187,213

Transfer from Prepayment (Note 7) - 37,543 - - - - - 37,543

Disposal/adjustment - - (17,874) - (6,811) - - (24,685)

At 31 December 434,594 729,076 284,615 45,339 28,584 56,996 55,028 1,634,232

Depreciation:

At 1 January - 112,649 100,255 17,309 12,705 26,268 30,266 299,451

Charge for the year - 13,857 53,823 5,985 3,596 9,794 13,723 100,778

Disposals - - (16,124) - (6,811) - - (22,935)

At 31 December - 126,506 137,954 23,294 9,490 36,062 43,989 377,294

Carrying amount at end of year:

At 31 December 434,594 602,570 146,661 22,045 19,094 20,935 11,039 1,256,938

Property, plant and equipment

2017

Cost: 

At 1 January 434,594 660,017 127,527 36,370 37,445 50,421 35,093 1,381,467

Additions - 410 66,780 4,218 3,165 3,249 7,092 84,914

Reclassification - (719) - -              -       65 16,632 -

Disposal/adjustment - - (6,249) (10,252) (4,449) (3,796) (7,474) (32,220)

At 31 December 434,594 659,708 188,058 30,270 20,248 49,939 51,343 1,434,161

Depreciation:

At 1 January - 99,484 70,979 25,319 12,838 28,855 23,867 261,341

Charge for the year - 13,190 35,471 4,304 8,559 1,219 9,353 72,097

Reclassification - (25) - (61) (4,381) (10) 4,477 -

Write-back - - - -        - - - (2,400)

Disposals - - (6,195) -        -        -          (7,431) (31,587)

At 31 December - 112,649 100,255 17,309 12,705 26,268 30,265 299,451

Carrying amount at end of year:

At 31 December 434,594 547,059 87,803 12,962 7,543 23,671 21,078 1,134,710
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Current - -

Non-current 1,256,938 1,134,710

1,256,938 1,134,710

The fixed assets are carried at deemed cost. Fixed asset register is available for inspection at the Company’s registered office. The 
properties are located in Lagos (Ikorodu Road, Anthony), Abuja (Garki) and Oshogbo (Sabo). The additions to building is the cost 
incurred on renovation of property located in Lagos (Ikorodu Road, Anthony).

9.1A IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED IN THE YEAR

Impairment losses recognised in respect of Property, Plant and Equipment in the year 2018 was Nil (2017: Nil).

9.1B CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2018, the Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition/renovation of property, plant and equipment. 
(2017: N61, 696,584).

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Software expenditure

At 1 January 123,057 123,057

Addition during the year - -

At 31 December 123,057 123,057

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 89,440 55,822

Charged during the year 33,617 33,617

Balance at 31 December 123,057 89,440

Carrying amount - 33,617

Current - -

Non-current - 33,617

- 33,617

The cost is amortised over the period of three years which is in line with that of parent company policy - FBN Insurance Ltd.
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11 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Current - -

Non-current 300,000 300,000

300,000 300,000

This represent the amount held with the Central Bank of Nigeria in accordance with Section 10(3) of the insurance Act 2003. The 
deposit is not available for the day-to-day operations of the Company. The Central Bank however pays Bi-annual interest on the deposit 
and the effective average rate stood at 16% per annum in 2018.

12 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Reserves for unearned premium (Note 12.1) 1,153,115 906,717

Reserves for outstanding claims (Note 12.2) 1,744,989 912,699

Incurred but not reported (IBNR) (Note 12.3) 591,051 299,859

3,489,155 2,119,275

12.1 RESERVES FOR UNEARNED PREMIUM

At 1 Jan, 2018
N’000

Increase/       
(Decrease)

N’000
At 31 Dec 2018

N’000

Motor 175,954 4,919 180,874

Marine 51,745 (2,301) 49,444

Bond 7,209 (681) 6,528

Engineering 71,331 (17,174) 54,157

Fire 226,613 (3,244) 223,368

General accident 70,513 30,475 100,988

Aviation - - -

Oil and gas 303,352 234,404 537,756

906,717 246,398 1,153,115
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12.2 RESERVES FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

At 1 Jan, 2018
N’000

Increase/       
(Decrease)

N’000
At 31 Dec 2018

N’000

Motor 85,323 (20,940) 64,383

Marine 2,186 713,496 715,682

Bond 1,800 (1,800) -

Engineering 4,932 11,304 16,236

Fire 197,260 87,785 285,045

General accident 366,507 (100,594) 265,913

Aviation 5,511 - 5,511

Oil and gas 249,179 143,039 392,218

912,699 832,290 1,744,989

12.3 INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED (IBNR)

At 1 Jan, 2018
N’000

Increase/       
(Decrease)

N’000
At 31 Dec 2018

N’000

Motor 94,324 (7,634) 86,690

Marine 52,017 36,043 88,061

Bond 682 618 1,300

Engineering 15,416 (29) 15,387

Fire 4,202 30,089 34,290

General accident 3,800 38,390 42,191

Aviation - - -

Oil and gas 129,418 193,716 323,134

299,859 291,193 591,052

Total insurance contract liabilities 2,119,275 1,369,881 3,489,156
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12.4 AGE ANALYSIS OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS AS 31 DECEMBER 2018

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

<=30 days 9,924 20,962 

31- 90 days 80,636 108,932 

91-180 days 766,252 156,875 

181-365  days 309,167 264,971 

Above 365 days 579,010 360,959 

1,744,989 912,699 

All fully documented claims with executed discharge vouchers are paid immediately.

The outstanding claims relate to those claims with incomplete or lack of documentations, delay in adjusters’ reports, awaiting executed 
discharge vouchers and awaiting conclusion from lead underwriters.

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Current 2,319,095 1,458,458

Non-current 1,170,060 660,818

3,489,155 2,119,276

12.5 Estimates of incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims liability and calculation of unearned premium were developed by the 
Management of the Company with the use of a professional actuary (Alexander Forbes Financial Services), certified firm of actuaries 
with FRC registration number FRC/2013/00000000000504.
 
Management believes that the carrying amount of insurance liabilities represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.

13 TRADE PAYABLES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Amount due to reinsurers  (Note 13.1) 93,159 85,124

Sundry payable  (Note 13.2) 96,384 6,060

Claims payable - 4,020

189,543 95,204

Current 189,543 95,204

Non-current - -

189,543 95,204
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13.1 AMOUNT DUE TO REINSURERS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 85,124 69,087

Reinsurance premium incurred (Note 25) 2,011,114 1,358,823

Reinsurance premium paid (2,003,079) (1,342,786)

Balance at 31 December 93,159 85,124

13.2 SUNDRY PAYABLE

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January
       

6,060 -

Additions during the year       90,324 6,060

At 31 December       96,384 6,060

Sundry payable relates to premium deposited by clients awaiting documentation for inception of the policies.

14 PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Accrued expenses (Note 14. 1) 277,230 232,798

Accrued audit fees 7,000 7,000

Derivative financial liabilities (Note 14.2) 8,706 14,049

WHT and VAT payable 2,287 2,335

NITDF levy (Note 14.3) 6,152 3,381

Deferred commission revenue (Note 26) 70,423 60,021

Other payables (Note 14.4) 49,134 114,304

420,932 433,888

Current 420,932 433,888

Non-current - -

420,932 433,888
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14.1 ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses include professional fees payable to the Actuary, Tax consultants Estate Surveyors & Valuers, Supervisory levy, ITF, 
stamp duty, accrued utility bills, accrued advert and publicity (printing and publication of 2018 financial statements) and accrued staff 
benefits.

14.2 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Currency
Swap amount

N’000
Fair value

Assets
Liability
N’000

Foreign currency swap 511,012 - 8,706

FBN General Insurance Limited entered into a swap contract of 1,400,000USD with Grade A rated two Nigerian banks at various 
times during the year. The currency swap arrangement involves a sale agreement on US dollars with an option to repurchase on a 
predetermined date. On the dates of the swaps, FBN General Insurance received a total of N511, 012,400.00.

The arrangement is such that FBN General Insurance Limited will transfer the agreed Naira equivalent of the USD at the agreed upon 
forward rates to the Bank and thereafter the Bank will transfer USD back to FBN General Insurance Limited.

The transaction qualifies as a financial derivative under IAS 39, hence the Company has measured the instrument at the reporting date 
and recognised a derivative liability as shown above.

The Company’s foreign exchange derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting; therefore, all gains and losses from changes in their 
fair values are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and as Net gains/(losses) on the financial statement.

14.3 NITDF LEVY

In line with the Nigerian Information Technology Development Agency (NITDA) Act, the Company has provided for technology tax at 
the specified tax rate of 1% (2017: 1%) of the profit before tax for the year.

14.4 OTHER PAYABLE

Other payable relates to professional fees in respect of claims paid to clients and it includes survey and adjuster fees. Also included 
are the direct payments into our accounts without proper description.

The carrying value of other liabilities approximates fair value.
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15 TAX LIABILITIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Company income tax

At 1 January 47,556 31,278

Income tax for the year (Note 36) 78,961 47,556

Tax paid during the year (47,845) (31,278)

At 31 December 78,672 47,556

16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 65,171 52,922

Income statement charge (Note 36) 43,652 (15,645)

Deferred tax on  available-for-sale financial assets (Note 21) - 27,894

At 31 December 108,823 65,171

17  CAPITAL AND RESERVES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Share capital  

Authorised share capital: 

10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each 5,000,000 5,000,000

Issued and fully paid-up share capital:

At 1 January 3,751,753 3,751,753

Additions during the year 200,000 -

At 31 December 3,951,753 3,751,753

During the year, an additional N200mn was injected into the business and subject to the restrictions imposed by the Companies’ Act, 
the unissued shares are under the control of the Board of Directors. The allotment of the shares was registered with Corporate Affairs 
Commission on 5 September 2018.
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18 SHARE PREMIUM

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 410,961 410,961

Share issue expenses - -

At 31 December 410,961 410,961

19 CONTINGENCY RESERVES

In accordance with the Insurance Act, a contingency reserve is credited with the greater of 3% of total premium or 20% of net profit 
(i.e. profit after tax) until the reserve reaches the greater of minimum paid up capital or 50% of net premium for General Business.

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 590,390 484,895

Transfer from retained earning 139,058 105,495

At 31 December 729,448 590,390

20 RETAINED EARNINGS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January (798,577) (984,014)

ECL impairment (224) -

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 492,985 290,933

Transfer to contingency reserve (139,058) (105,496)

At 31 December (444,874) (798,577)
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21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE RESERVES

The available-for-sale Equity reserve represents the unrealised fair value gains and losses in respect of financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale net of tax. Gains or losses are deferred in this reserve until such time as the underlying asset is sold, matured or 
becomes impaired. Below is analysis of Available-for-sale reserves into different securities.

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 9,808 (76,068)
ECL Impairment on FVOCI 224 -

Changes in value of available-for-sale financial assets - 156,625
Realised gains/(loss) to income statement (10,032) (70,749)
Deferred tax - -
At 31 December - 9,808

Fairvalue reserves - statement of comprehensive income
Changes in value of available-for-sale financial assets - 156,625
Deferred tax - -
Realised gains/(loss) to income statement (10,032) (70,749)

(10,032) 85,876

22 ASSETS REVALUATION SURPLUS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 31 December 517,133 517,133

23 GROSS PREMIUM WRITTEN

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Direct premium 4,430,217 3,299,703
Inward reinsurance premiums 205,016 216,845

4,635,233 3,516,548

24 GROSS PREMIUM INCOME
31-Dec-18

N’000
31-Dec-17

N’000

Gross written premium 4,635,233 3,516,548
(Increase)/decrease in unearned premium (246,398) (156,081)

4,388,835 3,360,467
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25 REINSURANCE PREMIUM EXPENSE

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Reinsurance premium incurred 2,011,114 1,358,823
Change in prepaid reinsurance (see Note 5) (75,347) (104,602)

1,935,766 1,254,221
Minimum and deposit premium amortised during the year 23,650 25,750

1,959,416 1,279,971

26 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME-INSURANCE CONTRACTS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Commission income on reinsurance premium 332,905 213,106
Change in deferred commission revenue (10,402) 3,258

322,503 216,364
Movement in deferred commission revenue
1 January 60,021 63,279
Change during the year 10,402 (3,258)
31 December 70,423 60,021

Commission income on reinsurance premium is as earned on premium ceded out, rate of which varies per product in line with our 
reinsurance agreement with respective reinsurers.

27 CLAIMS EXPENSE

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Direct claims paid 901,841 861,458
Increase in outstanding claims 832,290 301,331
Increase in incurred but not reported 291,193 47,545
Total claims incurred 2,025,324 1,210,334

27A INSURANCE CLAIMS RECOVERED FROM REINSURERS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Reinsurance share of claims paid during the year 448,481 472,936
Changes in reinsurance share of outstanding claims 890,770 (3,023)
Changes in reinsurance share of IBNR 167,767 (15,580)
Claims recoveries from reinsurance 1,507,018 454,334
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28 UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Acquisition expenses (Note 28a) 816,432 615,535

Maintenance cost 108,226 52,456

924,658 667,992

28A ANALYSIS OF ACQUISITION EXPENSES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Deferred acquisition cost at 1 January (Note 6) 153,311 132,297

Acquisition cost during the year 857,656 636,549

Total acquisition cost for the year 1,010,967 768,846

Deferred acquisition cost at 31 December (Note 6) (194,535) (153,311)

Acquisition cost charged to profit or loss 816,432 615,535

29 INVESTMENT INCOME

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Interest income - bank deposits 23,494 21,332

Interest on statutory deposit 48,402 47,516

Interest on treasury bills 635,228 596,661

Income - Amortisation of premium/discount paid on bond 994 -

Interest on bond 8,447 1,724

Interest on commercial papers - 16,963

Dividend income 4,206 135

720,771 684,331

Investment Income attributable to policyholders fund 405,609 515,993

Investment Income attributable to shareholders fund 315,162 168,338

720,771 684,331
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29A

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Interest on treasury bills 445,718 280,473

Interest earned 189,510 287,259

Accrued interest - FVTPL - 28,929

Accrued interest - FVTOCI 635,228 596,661

30 NET REALISED GAINS/LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Realised gain on sales of bond - 1,724

Realised (loss)/gain on sales of quoted equity securities - (4)

- 1,720

31 NET FAIR VALUE GAINS/(LOSS)

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Fair value loss on unquoted equity investment 2,767 -

Fair value (loss) on quoted stocks - (1,327)

Fair value loss on investment properties - (5,000)

Fair value gain/(loss) on bonds (6,254) -

Fair value gain/(loss) on treasury bills (60,857) 46,901

(64,344) 40,574

32 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 32.1) 5,924 2,403
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (Note 32.2) 78,560 90,143
Realised foreign exchange gain (a) 11,500 -
Loss on financial derivative (Note 32.3) - Ref Note 14.1 (8,706) (14,049)
Sundry income (b) (Note 32.4) 49,000 -

136,278 78,496
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32.1 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Proceed from disposal of property plant and equipment 7,674 3,036

Cost of PPE disposed (24,685) (32,220)

Accumulated depreciation 22,935 31,587

Gain on disposal 5,924 2,403

32.2 The unrealised foreign exchange gain is from valuation of foreign exchange position as at 31 December 2018.

32.3 The loss on financial instrument derivative is the market-to-market loss of N8,706,400 (2017: N14,049,717) on foreign 
exchange Swap arrangement.

32.4 Sundry Income relates to the recovery of N48,868,898 from The Nigerian Stock Exchange being refund of the Application 
processing fee paid to the stock exchange in 2008 by the legacy company - Oasis Insurance Plc.

33 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Wages and salaries 574,924 561,327

Pension cost 28,915 25,061

603,839 586,388
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34 OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Directors emoluments and Board expenses 167,902 131,187

Staff training 28,063 14,605

Consultancy/professional fees 84,242 97,027

Depreciation 100,778 69,696

Amortisation of intangible assets 33,617 33,617

Repairs and maintenance expenses 115,210 51,413

Vehicle running/repairs 23,952 19,183

Printing and stationery 20,988 21,323

Advert and publicity 18,893 25,775

Travelling expenses 17,808 22,867

Supervisory levy 32,219 32,094

Rent and rates 23,109 26,520

Entertainments 6,208 6,064

Audit fees 7,000 7,000

Bank charges 20,308 8,727

Postages and telephone 4,774 15,151

Dues and subscription 23,560 17,591

NITDEF levy 6,152 3,381

Insurance expenses 11,509 7,274

Other administrative expenses 32,701 29,597

778,993 640,092

35 SPECIFIC IMPAIRMENT

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

At 1 January 2018 126,641 126,641

Increase/(decrease) during the year (23,339) -

103,302 126,941

35.1 Specific impairments relate to illiquid quoted stocks of N5,256,583 and unquoted equities of N98,045,530 which represents 
an allowance for the decline in the fair value of the securities as at 31 December 2018 in line with the requirements of the determined 
financial reporting standard.
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36 ECL IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND   
 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI

01-Jan
2018
N’000

Additions
N’000

31-Dec
2018
N’000

Treasury bills 224 (224) -

Cash and cash equivalents - 155 155

224 (69) 155

37 TAXATION

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Analysis of tax charge for the year

Profit before tax as per account 615,373 322,842

Taxable expenses (1,158,808) (879,129)

Tax free income 1,118,617 927,719

Taxable profit (40,191) 48,591

Income tax minimum 78,961 45,096

Education tax at 2% - 2,460

Capital gains tax - -

Adjustment to tax charge on prior year tax - -

Current tax on income for the year 78,961 47,556

Deferred tax charge (temporary difference) 43,652 (15,645)

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 122,613 31,911

Effective tax rate 20% 10%

37B  Education tax has been computed at the rate of 2% (2017:2%) on assessable profit for the year.

37C In line with the Nigerian Information Technology Development Agency (NITDA) Act, the Company has provided for technology 
tax at the specified tax rate of 1% (2017: 1%) of the profit before tax for the year.
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38 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 

number of ordinary share in issue during the year:

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Profit attributable to equity holders 492,761 290,933

Weighted number of ordinary shares at the end of the year 7,903,506 7,503,506

Basic earnings per share 6kobo 4kobo

39 HYPOTHECATION
Assets and liabilities representing the funds

Policyholders 
fund

N’000

Shareholders 
fund

N’000

31-Dec-18
Total

N’000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 115,190 201,757 316,547

Financial assets:

Treasury bills 3,896,110 831,242 4,727,352

FGN bonds - 184,084 -

Other Financial assets - 293,693 293,693

Trade receivables - 14,195 14,195

Reinsurance assets - 2,209,787 2,209,787

Deferred acquisition cost - 194,536 194,536

Other receivables and prepayments - 38,097 38,097

Investment properties - 100,000 100,000

Property, plant and equipment - 1,256,938 1,256,938

Intangible assets - - -

Statutory deposits - 300,000 300,000

Total assets 4,011,300 5,624,329 9,451,546

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities 3,489,156 - 3,489,156

Trade payables - 189,543 189,543

Provision and other payables - 420,932 420,932

Income tax liabilities - 78,673 78,673

Deferred tax liabilities - 108,823 108,823

Total liabilities 3,489,156 798,126 4,287,282

Surplus 522,144 4,826,203 5,164,264
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39 HYPOTHECATION (CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilities representing the funds

Policyholders fund
N’000

Shareholders 
fund

N’000

31-Dec-18
Total

N’000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 368,806 44,197 413,003

Financial assets:

Treasury bills 3,276,249 380,439 3,656,688

Other Financial assets 5,257 383,403 388,660

Trade receivables - 40,027 40,027

Reinsurance assets - 916,684 916,684

Deferred acquisition cost - 153,311 153,311

Other receivables and prepayments - 105,861 105,861

Investment properties - 100,000 100,000

Property, plant and equipment - 1,134,710 1,134,710

Intangible assets - 33,617 33,617

Statutory deposits - 300,000 300,000

Total assets 3,650,312 3,592,250 7,242,562

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities 2,119,276 - 2,119,276

Trade payables - 95,204 95,204

Provision and other payables - 433,888 433,888

Income tax liabilities - 47,556 47,556

Deferred tax liabilities - 65,171 65,171

Total liabilities 2,119,276 641,820 2,761,095

Surplus 1,531,036 2,950,430 4,481,467
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40 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

i. Remuneration paid to the Directors of the Company were as follows:

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Short-term benefits:

- Directors fees 12,900 12,900

- Directors sitting allowances 3,500 3,500

- Executive compensation 145,699 113,587

Other Directors expenses 5,803 1,200

167,902 131,187

Fees and other emoluments disclosed above include amounts paid to:

The Chairman 13,636 13,636

The highest paid Director 42,679 38,799

40B The number of Directors excluding the Chairman whose emoluments were within the following range were:

Number Number

Below N5,000,000 - -

N5,000,000 - N10,000,000 - -

N10,000,000 and above 8 8

8 8

41 EMPLOYEE

Average number of persons employed during the year was as follows:

Number Number

Principal Manager - Managing Director 3 3

Assistant Manager - Senior Manager 23 15

Below Assistant Manager 43 44

Total 69 62

Total staff cost (N'000) 603,839 586,388
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41B The number of employees of the Company, other than Directors, who received emoluments in the following ranges was:

Number Number

NGN

N1,000,001    -     N1,500,000 - 1

N1,500,001    -     N2,000,000 1 -

N2,000,001    -     N2,500,000 - -

N2,500,001    -     N3,000,000 12 15

N3,000,001    -     N3,500,000 1 4

N3,500,001    -     N4,000,000 - -

Above N4,000,000 55 42

69 62

41C PENSION

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Amount charged to profit or loss account are:

Pension 28,915 25,061

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is fully funded and is managed by licensed Pension 
Fund Administrators. Membership of the scheme is automatic in line with the Pension Reform Act of 2004. The Company’s and the 
employees’ contributions are at the rate of 16.5% and 8.5% respectively of basic salary, transport and entertainment allowances. 
Employee contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s contribution is charged to employee 
benefit expense in the profit and loss account. Once contributions are made, the Company has no legal or constructive obligation to 
make further contributions to the fund even when the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating 
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

42 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events after the reporting period which could have a material effect on the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2018 or the profit for the year ended.
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43 PENALTIES PAID

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

a. Failure to submit financial strength rating of Foreign Reinsurers to 
National Insurance Commission - 250,000

b. Late response on AML/CFT to National Insurance Commission - 100,000

- 350,000

44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liabilities at the year end.

45 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no capital commitments as at the reporting date. (2017: N24,153,633).

46 GUARANTEES

The Company did not charge any of its assets to secure liabilities of third parties (2017: Nil)

47 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments, which are relevant in assessing the Company’s state of 
affairs have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial statements.

48 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in line with the presentation in the current year for a more meaningful comparison 
in the profit or loss under other comprehensive income.

49 APPROVAL OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2019.
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50 DETAILED REVENUE ACCOUNT
Motor
N’000

Marine
N’000

Bond
N’000

Engineering
N’000

Fire

N’000

Gen. Accident

N’000

Aviation

N’000

Oil and gas

N’000

Total

N’000

Gross premium 626,486 251,602 26,002 191,284 804,913 672,388 - 2,062,558 4,635,233

Unexpired risk C/F 180,874 49,444 6,528 54,157 223,368 100,988 - 537,756 1,153,115

Unexpired risk B/F 175,954 51,745 7,209 71,331 226,613 70,513 - 303,352 906,717

(Increase)/decrease in 
unearned premium 4,920 (2,301) (681) (17,174) (3,245) 30,475 - 234,404 (246,398)

Gross premium earned 621,566 253,903 26,683 208,458 808,157 641,913 - 1,828,154 4,388,835

Reinsurance cost (24,319) (155,716) (15,684) (81,295) (423,720) (267,260) - (991,422) (1,959,416)

Net premium earned 597,247 98,187 10,999 127,163 384,437 374,653 - 836,732 2,429,419

Commission earned 2,551 40,738 4,044 21,162 129,448 79,775 - 44,786 322,504

Total income 599,798 138,925 15,043 148,325 513,885 454,429 - 881,517 2,751,922

Total claims paid 196,380 38,107 - 45,435 293,839 142,526 - 185,555 901,841

Outstanding claims C/F 151,073 803,743 1,300 31,623 319,335 308,103 5,511 715,352 2,336,041

Outstanding claims B/F 179,647 54,204 2,482 20,348 201,461 370,307 5,511 378,597 1,212,558

Increase/(decrease) in 
outstanding claims (28,574) 749,539 (1,182) 11,275 117,874 (62,204) - 336,755 1,123,483

Net claims paid 167,806 787,646 (1,182) 56,710 411,713 80,322 - 522,310 2,025,324

Claims recovery (14,637) (791,047) (454) (26,723) (337,959) (11,867) - (324,331) (1,507,018)

Net claims incurred 153,169 (3,401) (1,636) 29,987 73,753 68,455 - 197,979 518,306

Acquisition expenses (68,466) (46,858) (5,256) (56,198) (163,004) (113,532) - (363,118) (816,432)

Maintenance cost (14,628) (5,875) (607) (4,466) (18,794) (15,699) - (48,158) (108,226)

Underwriting profit 363,536 89,593 10,816 57,674 258,334 256,743 - 272,262 1,308,958



FINANCIAL STATEMENTSRISK FACTORSINTRODUCTION GOVERNANCE NSTRATEGIC REPORT

FBN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED  Annual Report and Accounts 2018

121

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

51 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Entity’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect The Entity’s future financial performance.

The Entity’s risk management is carried out by the risk management department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific financial risks: market risk (including 
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. The key financial risk 
is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts and other 
liabilities.

These risks are as a result of open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of these are exposed to general and 
specific market fluctuations/movements. The risks that the company primarily faces due to the nature of its investment and liabilities 
are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.

52 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY

The Company manages these positions through its Finance and General Purpose committee who from time-to-time evaluate financial 
assets with a view to achieving long-term investment returns in excess of its obligation under insurance and investment contracts. The 
principal technique of the committee is to seek the investments that bring maximum returns to cover the Company’s liabilities as well 
as seeking to maximise the return on shareholders’ and policyholders’ funds.

53 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a shareholders fund of N5.2bn which is above the statutory capital of N3bn required for a non-life insurance 
company.
 
The Company has as at 31 December 2018 complied with Section 24 of the Insurance Act, 2003. This is to say that the Company 
has in respect of its non-life business maintained a margin of solvency of N5.1bn as defined under Section 24 (1), (2).
 
Minimum capital requirement

The Company exceeded the minimum capital requirement consistently, during the year. 

The table below shows solvency margin computation for the Company as at 31 December 2018.
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The Solvency Margin for FBN General Insurance as at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

N’000 N’000

Admissible assets

Cash and cash equivalent 316,947

Fair value through profit or loss 4,727,353

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 293,693

Trade receivable 14,195

Reinsurance assets 2,209,787

Deferred acquisition cost 194,536

Other receivables and prepayments 265

Investment property -

Property, plant and equipment (Land and Building) 1,000,000

Property, plant and equipment (Others) 219,773

Statutory deposit 300,000

Total admissible assets (a) 9,276,548

Insurance contract liabilities 3,489,155

Provision and other trade payables 610,475

Provision for current tax 78,672

Total admissible liabilities (b) 4,178,302

SOLVENCY MARGIN (a-b) 5,098,246

Subject to higher of:

15% of Net premium income 364,413

or

Minimum capital requirement 3,000,000 3,000,000

Gross Solvency Ratio 170%

Net Solvency Ratio 70%

During the year the solvency margin was 170% (2017: 144%).   
  
Capital is actively managed with a focus on capital efficiency and effective risk management. The capital objectives are to ensure that 
the Company is properly capitalised and funded at all times, having regard to its regulatory needs, prudent management and the needs 
of all stakeholders.
 
Precisely, the Company has adopted the following capital management policies:   
 
(i) Maintenance, as a minimum, of capital sufficient to meet the statutory requirement.

(ii) An Economic Capital at Risk (ECaR) approach is also used by the Management and the Board to ensure that obligations to 
policyholders can be met in adverse circumstances.

(iii) Maintenance of an appropriate level of liquidity at all times. The Company further ensures that it can meet its expected capital 
and financing needs at all times, having regard to business plans to guarantee its going concern status, forecast and any 
strategic initiatives.
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Sensitivities

The Company has both qualitative and quantitative risk management procedures to monitor the key risks and sensitivities of the 
business. This is achieved through scenario analysis and risk assessments. From an understanding of the principal risks, appropriate risk 
limits and control are defined. The Enterprise Risk Management committee plays a major role here.

The risk types affecting the surplus capital of the Company are market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, liability risk, business risk and 
operational risk.

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Company’s capital to changes in key assumptions:

N’000

At December 2018

Shareholders fund 5,164,421

Increase Company’s liabilities by 5% (174,458)

Decrease equity investment by 5% (14,685)

Decrease investment portfolio excluding equity investment by 5% (239,689)

Total new capital in the effect of shock 4,735,589

54 CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty of a financial instrument does not settle a liability and thus exposes FBN General Insurance 
Ltd to a loss.

The Company does not use reinsurance to manage significant credit risk. The Company is exposed to credit risk through its investment 
holdings backing the policyholder liabilities and in shareholders’ funds.

The Entity’s specific credit risk objectives, as contained in the Risk Assets Acceptance Criteria (RAAC) and Credit Risk Policy, are:

l maintenance of an efficient risk assets portfolio;

l adequately diversify the Entity’s risk assets and minimise concentration risk;

l institutionalisation of sound credit culture in the Entity; and

l achieve consistent and continuous income stream for the Entity.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversight of the Entity’s credit risk, including:

l Formulating credit policies for The Entity, covering collateral requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, 
documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

l Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisation limits are allocated to the 
Board of Directors as appropriate.
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l Reviewing and assessing credit risk in all credit exposures prior to making commitment to customers. Renewals and reviews of 
facilities are subject to the same review process.

l Developing and maintaining The Entity’s criteria for categorising exposures, and to focus Management on the attendant risks. 
The responsibility for approving and reviewing the Risk Assets Acceptance Criteria and Credit Risk Policy lies with the Board of 
Directors.

l Reviewing compliance with exposure and concentration limits, and promotion of best practices throughout The Entity in the 
management of credit risk.

 
Credit Risk Measurement

The Entity undertakes lending activities after a careful analysis of the borrowers’ general character, capacity to repay, cash flow, credit 
history, organisational/management quality, financial condition, market position, business operations, industry and other factors. The 
Entity acknowledges that there are diverse intrinsic risks inherent in the vagaries of its business segments and, as a result, applies 
different parameters to adequately dimension the risks in each business segments.

The Entity’s rating grades as defined by the Board of Directors, covering all The Entity’s credit exposure to corporate, commercial, 
conglomerates and multinationals. Obligor rating in The Entity is handled by Relationship Managers with further review by Risk 
Management and Control before it goes through the approval process.

 The relationship between The Entity’s internal rating system and the external rating system (Agusto & Co.) is shown below:

External rating Internal rating Description Characteristics

AAA A Highly Outstanding Investments l  Highest investment quality

l  Lowest expectation of default risk

l  Exceptionally strong capacity for timely 
payment of financial commitments

l  Capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely 
affected by unforeseeable events

l  Top multinationals/corporations

l  Strong equity and assets

l  Good track record

l  Cash flows

AA

B

Above Average Investments l  Very high investment quality 

l  Very low expectation of default risk

l  Very strong capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments

l  Capacity is not significantly vulnerable to 
unforeseeable events.

l Typically large corporates in stable industries 
and with significant market share

l  Very strong balance sheets with high liquid 
assets.

A
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External rating Internal rating Description Characteristics

BBB

BB

B
C

Average Investments l Good investment quality

l Low expectation of default risk.  

l Capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments is considered adequate 

l Adverse changes in circumstances and in 
economic conditions are more likely to impair 
capacity for payment

l Typically in stable industries

l Strong debt repayment capacity and coverage

l Good asset quality and liquidity position

l Very good management

CCC

CC

D

Acceptable Investments l Average investment quality

l Possibility of default risk developing, particularly 
as the result of adverse economic changes over 
time

l Category is acceptable as business or financial-
alternatives may be available to allow financial 
commitments to be met

l Good character of owner

l Good management but depth may be an issue 

l Typically good companies in cyclical industries

C

D E

Unacceptable Investments l	High risk investment quality

l	High probability of partial loss

l	Financial condition is weak but obligations are 
still being met as and when they fall due

l  Adverse changes in the environment will 
increase risk significantly

l  Very weak credit fundamentals which make full 
debt repayment in serious doubt

l	Bleak economic prospects

l  Lack of capacity to repay unsecured debt
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The Entity’s operational measurements for credit risk are in conformity with the impairment allowances required under the applicable 
reporting standard - IAS 39, and are based on losses that have been incurred at the date of the statement of financial position, that 
is the ‘incurred loss model’ rather than expected losses.

The estimation of credit exposure is complex and requires the use of models, as the value of a product varies with changes in market 
variables, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations 
as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties.

 The Entity has developed models to support the quantification of the credit risk. These rating and scoring models are in use for all key 
credit portfolios and form the basis for measuring default risks. In measuring credit risk of loan and advances at a counterparty level, 
the Group considers three components: (i) the ‘probability of default’ (PD) by the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; 
(ii) current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future development, from which the Group derives the ‘Exposure At Default’ 
(EAD); and (iii) the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations (the ‘Loss Given Default’) (LGD). The models are reviewed 
regularly to monitor their robustness relative to actual performance and amended as necessary to optimise their effectiveness.

For debt securities, external ratings such as GCR, Moody’s Agusto & Co, Fitch, Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used 
by Risk Management department for managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by The Entity’s own assessment through 
the use of internal ratings tools.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Entity’s credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as follows:

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

Overall credit risk
Reinsurance contracts 2,209,787 916,684
Trade receivables 14,195 40,027
Short-term funds treated as investment 250,364 353,661
Treasury bills 4,543,268 3,656,687
Equity investment - 5,257
Cash and bank 66,583 59,342
FGN bonds - -

7,084,197 5,031,658

The table below analyses end of the year values of the above exposures:
N’000

Fair value as at 
2018

N’000
Fair value as at 

2017

Reinsurance contracts 2,209,787 916,684
Trade receivables 14,195 40,027
Short-term funds treated as investment 250,364 353,661
Treasury bills 4,543,268 3,656,687
Equity investment - 5,257
Cash and bank 66,583 59,342
Bonds - -

7,084,197 5,031,658
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For credit risk purpose, the trade debtors are grouped into three categories:

Group A – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N10mn.

Group B – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N7mn.

Group C – the maximum trade credits allowed per participant under this group is N5mn.

Past experience is used in grouping the debtors since most of the clients are not rated.

 The profit before tax of the Company will be reduced by N354mn 2017: N252mn if the overall credit is impaired by 5%.

Credit risk concentration

 IFRS 7 requires disclosures about concentrations of risk. Concentration of risk arises from financial instruments that have similar 
characteristics and are affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. This information has been provided along 
geographical areas and economic sectors.

Geographical concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

 The following table breaks down The Entity’s credit exposure (without taking into account any collateral held or other credit support), 
as categorised by geographical region as at the reporting date. For this table, The Entity has allocated exposures to regions based on 
the country of domicile of its counterparties.

31 December 2018

Within Nigeria Outside Nigeria Total

Reinsurance contracts 2,209,787 - 2,209,787
Trade receivables 14,195 - 14,195
Short-term funds treated as investment 250,364 - 250,364
Treasury bills 4,543,268 - 4,543,268
Equity investment - - -
Cash and bank 66,583 - 66,583
FGN bonds - - -

7,084,197 - 7,084,197

31 December 2017

Within Nigeria Outside Nigeria Total

Reinsurance contracts 916,684 - 916,684
Trade receivables 40,027 - 40,027
Short-term funds treated as investment 353,661 - 353,661
Treasury bills 3,656,687 - 3,656,687
Equity investment 5,257 - 5,257
Cash and bank 59,342 - 59,342
FGN bonds - - -

5,031,658 - 5,031,658
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Impairment model

Premium debtors are measured at amortized cost, less provision for impaired receivables. Under IFRS, an asset is impaired if the carrying 
amount is greater than the recoverable amount. IAS 39 favours the use of the incurred loss model in estimating the impairment of its 
receivables. However, with the inception of IFRS 9 which became effective for annual periods beginning on/after 1 January 2018, the 
Expected Credit Losses (ECL) method of impairment calculation will be in force.

Based on NAICOM’s “No Premium No Cover” guidelines which state that “all insurance covers shall be provided on a strict ‘no premium 
no cover’ basis”, only cover for which payment has been received shall be booked. However, brokers have a 30-day period to make 
payments from the date of the credit notes.

After analysing this financial instrument based on NAICOM “No Premium No Cover” guidelines, a nil impairment standpoint was taken.

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply to all debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, and to off-balance 
sheet lending commitments such as loan commitments and financial guarantees (hereafter collectively referred to as financial assets). 
This contrast to the IAS 39 impairment model which was not applicable to loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, as 
they were instead covered by International Accounting standards 37: “”Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (IAS 37).

The determination of impairment loss and allowance moves from the incurred credit loss model whereby credit losses are recognised 
when a defined loss event occurs under IAS 39, to expected credit loss model under IFRS 9, where provisions are recognised upon 
initial recognition of the financial asset based on expectation of potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition. Under IFRS 9, 
The Company first evaluates individually, whether objective evidence of impairment exists for loans that are individually significant, and 
then collectively assesses the loan and other receivables that are not significant, and those which are significant but for which there is 
no objective evidence of impairment available, under the individual assessment.

Staged approach to the determination of expected credit losses

IFRS 9 outlines a three-stage model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. These stages are as 
outlined below:

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

Recognition of expected credit losses

* Except for purchased or originated credit impaired assets.

12 month
expected

credit losses

Effective 
interest on 

gross carrying 
amount

Stage 1
Performing 

(Initial 
recognition*)

Lifetime expected
credit losses

Effective interest on 
gross carrying amount

Stage 2
Underperforming (Assets 
with significant increase 
in credit risk since initial 

recognition*) 

Lifetime expected
credit losses

Effective interest on 
amortised cost carrying 

amount (i.e. net or 
credit allowance

Non-performing (Credit 
impaired assets)

Interest revenue
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Stage 1: The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses. This represents 
the portion of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected within 12 months of the reporting date, assuming 
that credit risk has not increased significantly after the initial recognition.

Stage 2: The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses (LTECL) for those 
financial assets that are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. This requires the 
computation of ECL based on Lifetime probabilities of default that represents the probability of a default occurring over the remaining 
lifetime of the financial assets. Allowance for credit losses is higher in this stage because of an increase in credit risk and the impact 
of a longer time horizon being considered compared to 12 months in stage 1.

Stage 3: The Company recognises a loss allowance at an amount equal to life-time expected credit losses, reflecting a probability of 
default (PD) of 100% via the recoverable cash flows for the asset. For those financial assets that are credit impaired. The Company’s 
definition of default is aligned with the regulatory definition. The treatment of the loans and other receivables in stage 3 remains 
substantially the same as the treatment of impaired financial assets under IAS 39 except for the portfolios of assets purchased or 
originated as credit impaired.

The Company does not originate or purchase credit impaired loans or receivables

Impairment methodology

Calculation of expected credit losses

Calculation of the expected credit loss is based on the key risk parameters of PD, LGD and ED according to the formular set below:

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-looking information in all the ECL components. This forward-looking information will 
impact the various ECL components as follows:

l Probability of default – The PDs will vary during various stages of an economic cycle. It is based on the likelihood that a 
borrower will default within one year (PD), assessment of the creditworthiness of the counterparty and transformation of 1 Year 
horizon into lifetime of the asset.

l Loss given default – Collateral values will vary based on the stage of an economic cycle.

l Exposure at default – Change in interest rates may affect the EAD e.g. higher interest rates may result in longer terms for loans 
causing a change in the EAD.

ECL

12 months/lifetime
Expected Credit Loss

ECL

Loss Given Default 
(after consideration of 

collaterals and recoveries

Exposure at defaultProbability of default

= X XPD EAD LGD
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Loss given default

The Company applies historical experience to determine the expected loss given default ratios for each class of financial instruments. 
Where internal historical experience is not available, other sources, e.g. data available from rating companies as well as professional 
judgements are used to determine the LGD ratios that will apply. Collateral that is held against the financial assets is also considered 
in determining the LGD.

The Company Management has resolved to use the recovery rates as published by Moodys credit analytics for all credit exposures to 
sovereign denominated in foreign currencies and all corporate exposures.

For sovereign exposures denominated in Naira which are assessed as low credit risk exposures, we have resolved to use LGDs within the 
range of 5-10% based on the Central Bank of Nigeria’s Revised Guidance Notes on Credit risk. Section 3.1 of the document addresses 
exposure to sovereigns and Central banks and states that financial institutions should assign a risk weight of 0% to the following:

l Exposures to Federal Government of Nigeria (FGN) and Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN);

l Instruments issued by other entities backed by express guarantee of the FGN;

l Inter-bank transactions guaranteed by the FGN or CBN; and

l Inter-bank transactions among supervised institutions collateralised by FGN Bonds,

l Treasury bills or other similar sovereign bills.

55 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential impact of unfavourable changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, prices and market volatilities. 
Market risk arises from changes in the fair value of investments. Market risks are managed by engaging in fixed interest placements 
with a duration closely corresponding to those liabilities.

Guidelines are set for asset allocation and portfolio limit structure; to ensure that assets back policyholders’ liabilities and those assets 
are held to deliver income and gains for policyholders.

56 CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

Due to FBN General Insurance extremely low willingness to accept currency risks, only minimal currency risks are accepted in all parts 
of the business. Generally, FBN General Insurance has a low currency risk exposure on its domiciliary accounts; this is hedged by short 
term placements/investment in the same currency or local currency.

The currency risk has been calculated as the currency position per currency on the basis of principal amounts. Interest and future value 
adjustments of the currency are not included in the calculation.
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The table below summarises the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk:

31-Dec-18 N USD EURO GBP
N’000

Total

Cash and cash equivalents 279,246 26,324 11,377 - 316,947
Financial assets:
- Fair value through profit or loss 4,727,352 - - - 4,727,352
- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 252,000 41,693 - - 293,693
- Amortised cost - - - - -
Trade receivables 14,195 - - - 14,195
Reinsurance assets 1,011,083 1,198,705 - - 2,209,787
Deferred acquisition cost 98,826 95,709 - - 194,536
Other receivables and prepayments 38,097 - - - 38,097
Statutory deposit 300,000 - - - 300,000

6,720,799 1,362,432 11,377 - 8,094,607
Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 2,236,049 1,253,108 - - 3,489,157
Trade payables 189,543 - - - 189,543
Provision and other payables 420,932 - - - 420,932

2,846,680 1,253,108 - - 4,099,788

31-Dec-17
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 337,211 65,378 10,414 - 413,003
Financial assets:
- Fair value through profit or loss 3,281,504 - - - 3,281,504
- Available-for-sale 730,485 33,358 - - 763,843
- Held-to-maturity - - - - -
- Loans and receivables - - - - -
Trade receivables 40,027 - - - 40,027
Reinsurance assets 328,109 588,575 - - 916,684
Deferred acquisition cost 99,917 53,394 - - 153,311
Other receivables and prepayments 105,861 - - - 105,861
Statutory deposit 300,000 - - - 300,000

5,223,115 740,704 10,414 - 5,974,233
Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 1,437,326 681,949 - - 2,119,276
Trade payables 95,204 - - - 95,204
Provision and other payables 433,888 - - - 433,888

1,966,419 681,949 - - 2,648,368
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The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk as shown in the table above. The entity is primarily exposed to changes 
in NGN/USD exchange rates.

The following table details the entity’s sensitivity to a 3% increase and decrease in Naira against the US dollar. Management believes 
that a 10% movement in either direction is reasonably possible at the balance sheet date. The sensitivity analyses below include 
outstanding US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. A positive number indicates an increase in profit where Naira weakens 
by 10% against the US dollar. For a 10% strengthening of Naira against the US dollar, there would be an equal and opposite impact 
on profit.

Sensitivities

31 December 
2018

31 December 
2017

Changes in
 variables

Impact on PBT
N’000

Impact on PBT
N’000

Currency USD 3% 790 9,073
EURO 3% 341 312

USD 3% (790) (9,073)
EURO 3% (341) (312)

56.1 INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates on short-term placements will fluctuate and this will unfavourably affect FBN General 
Insurance earnings and the value of its assets, liabilities and capital. Fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value 
interest risk though FBN General Insurance Ltd has no significant concentration of interest rate risk.

The Company’s interest rate risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable 
rate instruments. Interest on fixed interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial instrument and is fixed until maturity.

The effect of the change in interest rates by 3% (increase) would result in a net increase in profit by N21.6mn in 2018 and would 
reduce profit by same amount if it reduces by same percentage.
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31 December 2018
Carrying 
amount
N’000

Variable 
interest-bearing

N’000

Fixed 
interest-bearing

N’000

Non-interest 
bearing
N’000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 316,947 - 250,519 66,583
Amortised cost - Loans and advances to Insurance entities - - - -
Amortised cost - Loans and advances to customers - - -
FVTPL - Financial assets held-for-trading 4,727,353 - 4,727,353 -
Investment securities: - -
- FVTOCI 293,693 - - 293,693
- Amortised cost - - -
Pledged assets - - -
Statutory deposit with Central Bank of Nigeria 300,000 - 300,000 -
Other assets 3,813,553 - - 3,813,553

9,451,546 - 5,277,872 4,173,829
Financial liabilities:
Due to Insurance entities 3,489,157 3,489,157
Deposit from customers - - -
Other liabilities 701,742 - - 701,742

4,190,899 - - 4,190,899

31 December 2017
 

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 413,003 353,661 59,342
Amortised cost - Loans and advances to Insurance entities - - -
Amortised cost - Loans and advances to customers - - -
FVTPL - Financial assets held-for-trading 3,281,505 3,281,505
Investment securities:
- FVTOCI 763,843 763,843
- Amortised cost
Pledged assets
Statutory deposit with Central Bank of Nigeria 300,000 - 300,000 -
Other assets 2,484,210 - - 2,484,210

7,242,561 - 3,935,166 3,307,395
Financial liabilities:
Due to Insurance entities 2,119,276 - - 2,119,276
Deposit from customers 6,060 - - 6,060
Other liabilities 635,759 - - 635,759

2,761,095 - - 2,761,095
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56.2 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost.

The Executive Management of the Company is responsible for the effective management of liquidity risk by putting the appropriate 
structure and processes in place. The Risk Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness thereof.

Guidelines are set for asset allocations, portfolio limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to ensure sufficient funding 
are available to meet insurance and investment contracts obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company financial assets and financial liabilities.

31 December 2018
<3 months

N’000
3- 12months

N’000
1 -5 Years

N’000
Over 5 Years 

N’000
Total

N’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 250,364 - - - 250,364
Financial assets through profit or loss:
Quoted equity - - - - -
Treasury bills (6-12 months) - 4,543,268 - 4,543,268
Bond 184,084 184,084
Financial assets through OCI:
Unquoted equity - - - 293,693 293,693

250,364 4,543,268 - 477,777 5,271,564
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 190,560 3,298,597 - - 3,489,157

31 Dec, 2017 
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 353,661 - - - 353,661
Financial assets through profit/loss:
Quoted equity - 5,257 - - 5,257
Treasury bills (6-12 months) - 3,276,248 - 3,276,248
Available-for-sale:
Unquoted equity - - - - -
Treasury bills (6-12 months) 380,439 380,439

353,661 3,661,944 - - 4,015,605
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 254,501 1,696,674 168,100 - 2,119,276
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The table below analyses assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories. It summarises the expected utilisation or 
settlement of assets and liabilities; the intention with regard to settlement period at the reporting date:

31-Dec-18
Current
N’000

Non-current
N’000

Total
N’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 316,947 - 316,947
Financial assets 4,543,268 477,778 5,021,046
Trade receivables 14,195 - 14,195
Reinsurance assets 1,618,735 591,052 2,209,787
Deferred acquisition cost 194,536 - 194,536
Other receivables and prepayments 38,097 - 38,098
Investments property - 100,000 100,000
Intangible assets - - -
Property, plant and equipment - 1,256,938 1,256,938
Statutory deposit - 300,000 300,000

6,725,934 2,725,768 9,451,546
Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 2,319,095 1,170,062 3,489,155
Trade payables 189,543 - 189,543
Provision and other payables 420,932 - 420,932
Current income tax 78,673 - 78,672
Deferred tax liabilities - 108,823 108,823

3,008,398 1,278,885 4,287,125

31-Dec-17
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 413,003 - 413,003
Financial assets 3,661,944 383,404 4,045,124
Trade receivables 40,027 - 40,027
Reinsurance assets 759,386 157,298 916,684
Deferred acquisition cost 153,311 - 153,311
Other receivables and prepayments 105,861 - 105,861
Investments property - 100,000 100,000
Intangible assets - 33,617 33,617
Property, plant and equipment - 1,134,710 1,134,710
Statutory deposit - 300,000 300,000

5,133,533 2,109,029 7,242,337
Liabilities
Insurance contracts liabilities 1,458,458 660,818 2,119,276
Trade payables 95,204 - 95,204
Provision and other payables 433,888 - 433,888
Current income tax 47,556 - 47,556
Deferred tax liabilities - 65,171 65,171

2,035,106 725,989 2,761,094
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As at 31 December 2018, investments classified as level 1 comprise approximately 91% of financial assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis. Fair value measurements classified as level 1 include exchange-traded prices of fixed maturities and equity securities.

As at 31 December 2018, investments classified as level 3 comprise approximately 9% of financial assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis. They primarily include unquoted securities. As market quotes are not readily available or accessible for these securities, 
their fair value measures are determined utilising relevant information generated by market transactions involving comparable securities. 
Fair values are equally determined by using valuation techniques that refer as far as possible to observable market data.

Observable inputs generally used to measure the fair value of securities classified as level 3 include benchmark yields, reported 
secondary trades, broker-dealer quotes, benchmark securities, bids offer and reference data. Additional observable inputs are used 
when available, and as may be appropriate.

The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2018.

2018
Level 1
N’000

Level 2
N’000

Level 3
N’000

Total
N’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equity securities - - - -
Treasury bills 4,543,268 - - 4,543,268
Bonds 184,084 - - 184,084
Financial assets at fair value through OCI: - - 293,693 293,693

4,727,353 - 293,693 5,021,046

2017
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Equity securities 5,257 - - 5,257
Held-for-trading 3,276,248 - - 3,276,248
Available-for-sale financial assets 380,439 - - 380,439

Held-to-maturity - - - -

Loans and receivables - - - -
3,661,944 - - 3,661,944
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57 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Transactions and agreements entered into between the Company and FBN Group include the provision of banking services, premises 
usage, asset custody services by the FBN Group. The Company provides various general insurance cover for the Group and employees 
of the FBN Group.

All the insurance business of the group passed through FBN Insurance Brokers Ltd.

Nature of the transactions Related party
2018
N’000

2017
N’000

Gross premium FBN Group 901,191 745,000

Receiving of equipment FBN Insurance Ltd - -

Intercompany receivable/payable FBN Insurance Ltd - -

Cash and bank balances First Bank of Nigeria 35,735 40,480

Shared service FBN Insurance Ltd 39,111 51,594

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

58 INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company assumes insurance risk by issuing insurance policies, under which the Company agrees to compensate the policyholder 
if a specified uncertain future event affecting the policyholder occurs.

For accounting purposes, insurance risk is defined as risk other than financial risk. Contract issued by the Company may include both 
insurance and financial risk; contracts with significant insurance risk.

The principal risk FBN General Insurance faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing 
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual claims paid and subsequent 
occurrence of long–term claims. Therefore, the objective of FBN General Insurance is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available 
to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability 
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance 
arrangements.

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a proportional 
and non–proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is surplus reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall 
exposure of the Company to certain classes of business. Non–proportional reinsurance is primarily excess–of–loss reinsurance designed 
to mitigate the Company’s net exposure to catastrophe losses. Retention limits for the excess–of–loss reinsurance vary by product line.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance 
with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its 
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that if any reinsurer is unable to meet 
its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements, this is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer 
nor are the operations of the company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract.
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FBN General Insurance principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: Motor, Marine, Bond, Engineering, Fire, 
General Accident, Aviation and Oil and Gas. All the risks usually cover twelve months except Bond, Engineering and Marine which can 
be less or more than twelve months.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters, flood, accidents, terrorist 
activities (Boko Haram), bank robberies and bank frauds. These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk 
insured by the Company, type of risk insured and by industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The 
variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that 
risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry 
sectors and geography.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and on-going claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures 
and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are part of the policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk exposure 
of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly attending to claims, in order to reduce its 
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business.

FBN General Insurance has also limited its exposure by the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic 
events. 

The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit exposure to catastrophes based on the Company’s risk appetite 
as decided by Management. The board has the risk appetite in place.

58.1 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The terms and conditions on insurance contracts determine the level of insurance risk accepted by the Company. The table below 
outlines the general form of terms and conditions that apply to contracts sold in each category of business, and the nature of the risk 
incurred:

Category Main Risks Policyholder guarantees Policyholder participation

Motor Accident/unforeseeable loss Indemnity Premium (to seal the contract)

Accident Accident/unforeseeable loss/benefit Indemnity/benefit for estate  Premium (to seal the contract)

Marine Accident/unforeseeable loss Indemnity Premium (to seal the contract)

Fire Accident/unforeseeable loss Indemnity Premium (to seal the contract)

Special risks Accident/unforeseeable loss Indemnity/guarantee for
unforeseen default Premium (to seal the contract)
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58.2 INSURANCE RISKS’ MANAGEMENT

The table below summarises the variety of insurance risks to which the Company is exposed, and the method by which it seeks to 
mitigate the risks:

Risk type Nature Risk management

Motor Accidental damage/loss to Insured property Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience 
is considered, the risk is spread and the underwriters are 
properly trained.

Accident Accident/loss/professional negligence Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience 
is considered, rates are reviewed, the risk is spread and 
the underwriters are properly trained.

Marine Accident/unforeseeable loss Pre-loss Survey on the property is done, past experience 
is considered, rates are reviewed, the risk is spread and 
the underwriters are properly trained.

Fire Damage/loss as a result of unforeseen fire 
incident or storm

Professional input to reduce the risk, reinsurance 
arrangement, past experience is considered, rates are 
reviewed, the risk is spread and the underwriters are 
properly trained.

Special risks Accidental damage or loss Reinsurance package to spread the risks e.g. excess of 
loss, treaty arrangement, local and overseas training for 
underwriters.

The probability of accident occurrence is high in motor and accident though the quantum is normally low while the probability of 
accident in Special risk is very low but the quantum is potentially very high.

Changes in rates used to value insurance contracts would result in increase/decrease to the insurance contract liabilities recorded, with 
the corresponding decreases or increases to profit. With Fire and Special Risk business, rate review will have effect on the profit and 
loss and shareholders fund. The estimate as at 31 December 2018 is analysed below:

Sensitivities Change%

31-Dec-18
Increase/(Decrease) 

in liabilities
N’000

31-Dec-17
Increase/(Decrease) 

in liabilities
N’000

Motor (10%) (62,649) (56,927)
Accident 10% 67,239 51,627
Marine 10% 25,160 22,928
Fire 10% 80,491 67,561
Special risk 10% 206,256 128,869

The changes in insurance contract liabilities shown are calculated using the specified increase or decrease to the rates, with no change 
in charges paid by policyholders.

The effect of the change in rates would result in a net increase in profit to N316mn in 2018 and N214mn in 2017.
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59 ACTUARY’S REPORT

Methodology

Future claim amounts

Inflation

Claims paid amounts have not been adjusted for inflation. Nigeria’s inflation has been very volatile over the last few years, and AFIC 
would recommend that inflation adjusted numbers are looked at in future. Although the Basic Chain Ladder method does allow implicitly 
for inflation, if the inflation has been very volatile over the period of projection, this implicit assumption is not valid and inflation should 
be allowed for explicitly. 

Reserving methods used

Depending on the volume of data in the reserving classes specified in Section 6, the appropriate methodologies were used. Three 
methods were used for the projection of claims. The Basic Chain Ladder Method (BCL), a Loss ratio method adjusted for assumed 
experience to date and in more recent years and where the claim development seems different than in the past a Bornheutter – 
Ferguson Method was used based on loss ratios that have been experienced in past accident years.

Claims data was grouped into triangles by accident year or quarter and payment year or quarter. The choice between quarters or years 
was based on the volume of data in each segment. AFIC used payment development patterns instead of the reporting years’ patterns 
to allow for the longer tail development that would be seen in reporting and payment delays as well as to allow for the movement of 
partial payments in the data.

There was insufficient data to sub-divide claims between large and small claims. Sub–dividing the data would reduce the volume of 
the data in the triangles and compromise the credibility. Extreme large claims however were removed from the triangulations to avoid 
distorting development patterns.

Basic Chain Ladder Method (BCL)

Development factors were calculated using the last 3, 4 and 5 years of data by accident year or quarter. Ultimate development factors 
are calculated for each of the permutations. Developments patterns are selected taking into account stability of the loss ratios between 
accident periods for a development period as well as considering whether there seems to be a change in development, for example a 
quickening in the rate that claims are paid, Ultimate development factors are applied to the paid data per accident year or quarter and 
an ultimate claim amount is calculated. The future claims (the ultimate claim amount less paid claims to date) are allocated to future 
payment periods in line with the development patterns calculated above. The outstanding claims reported to date are then subtracted 
from the total future claims to give the resulting IBNR figure per accident year or quarter.

For cases where there were extreme large losses that had been reported but not paid, and therefore would not have influenced the 
development patterns, the total case reserve was excluded from the calculation of the IBNR.

i.e. IBNR = Ultimate Claim Amount (excluding extreme large losses)
  minus Paid Claims to date
  minus Claims Outstanding (excluding extreme large losses)

Assumptions underlying the BCL

The Basic Chain Ladder Method assumes that past experience is indicative of future experience i.e. that claims reported to date will 
continue to develop in a similar manner in the future.

An implicit assumption is that, for an immature accident year, the claims observed thus far tell you something about the claims yet 
to be observed.
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A further assumption is that it assumes consistent claim processing, a stable mix of types of claims, stable inflation and stable policy 
limits.

If any of these assumptions are invalidated, the results of the reserving exercise may prove to be inaccurate.

Loss ratio method

For 4 of the classes namely Oil and Gas, Marine Hull, Bond and Aviation, there was very limited data. A BCL method was therefore 
inappropriate. We allowed for expected experience to date and the assumed average Ultimate Loss ratios in carrying out the calculation.

Average delay durations were calculated from the data provided. In the absence of any data, various options were provided. Detailed 
results can be found under the result section.

The IBNR is then calculated as:

Expected % of claims to still arise in future based on average delay
x average ultimate loss ratio assumed
x earned premium for the current year

Assumptions underlying the Loss Ratio method

We assumed that the average delay in reporting of claims will continue into the future. If it is expected that these delay assumptions 
no longer hold, an adjustment needs to be made to allow for this change in reporting. If the delay period in reporting is expected to 
have increased from previous years, the results shown in this report will be understated.

Additionally, an estimate of the average ultimate loss ratio needed to be assumed. We based our estimated average loss ratio on claims 
experience to date for accident years 2017 and 2018. In future it is suggested that a further history of written premiums is given so 
that we can base the initial estimates of the loss ratio for the current accident year based on more accident years’ experience to date.

Additionally, AFIC would advise FBNInsurances’ underwriters to capture what the ultimate loss ratio for a specific accident year is 
expected to be per class of business.

AFIC however does feel comfortable that the initial estimate assumptions are reasonable if no business or processes have changed over 
the last 3 accident years. AFIC did conduct a reasonability check on the loss ratios by comparing the loss ratios to industry figures, 
however, if the loss ratios average is not indicative of future experience the IBNR calculated could be under/overestimated.

The loss ratios used and delays assumed for these classes are shown in the results section.

Additionally, AFIC would advise FBNInsurances’ underwriters to capture what the ultimate loss ratio for a specific accident year is 
expected to be per class of business.

AFIC however does feel comfortable that the initial estimate assumptions are reasonable if no business or processes have changed over 
the last 3 accident years. AFIC did conduct a reasonability check on the loss ratios by comparing the loss ratios to industry figures, 
however, if the loss ratios average is not indicative of future experience the IBNR calculated could be under/overestimated.

The loss ratios used and delays assumed for these classes are shown in the results section.

Unearned Premium Reserve and Deferred Acquisition Cost

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)

Unearned premium provision was calculated using a time-apportionment basis, in particular, the 365ths method.

In the calculation of the UPR, it was assumed that both the start and end date were included in the coverage period, i.e. if the policy’s 
start and end date are the 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 respectively, then the policy will cover any claim occurring on the 1 
January 2018 and 31 December 2018 as well as any dates in between. For this example, the policy term will be 366 days. This differs 
from the approach used by FBN General Insurance Ltd where it is assumed that a policy with a start date of 1 January 2018 only has 
a coverage period that starts on 2 January 2018 or alternatively covers the 1 January 2018 and only runs to the 30 December 2018.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

The same approach was taken as for the calculation of the UPR balance.

IBNR RESULTS:

Class of business

Gross IBNR as at 
31 December 

2018
N’000

Gross IBNR as at 
31 December  

2017
N’000

Aviation - -
Bond 1,300 682
Engineering 15,387 15,416
Fire 34,290 4,202
General Accident 42,191 3,800
Marine 88,061 52,018
Motor 86,690 94,324
Oil and Gas 323,134 129,418
Total 591,052 299,860

The Net figures are based on the average recovery ratio over the last 3 years per class of business instead of using actual net claims 
data.

UPR AND DAC RESULTS

Class of business

Sum of Unearned 
Premium (UPR)  

2018
N’000

  2018 
Sum of Unearned 

Commission (DAC) 
N’000

Aviation - -
Bond 6,528 1,301
Engineering 54,157 10,374
Fire 223,368 42,063
General Accident 100,988 16,992
Marine 49,444 8,678
Motor 180,874 19,417
Oil and Gas 537,756 95,709
Total 1,153,115 194,536

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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UPR AND DAC RESULTS

Class of business

Sum of Unearned 
Premium (UPR)  

2018
N’000

  2017 
Sum of Unearned 

Commission (DAC) 
N’000

Aviation - -
Bond 7,209 1,437
Engineering 71,331 13,552
Fire 226,613 43,319
General Accident 70,513 13,721
Marine 51,745 9,314
Motor 175,954 18,575
Oil and Gas 303,352 53,394
Total 906,717 153,311

The calculation of the unearned premium reserves is very dependent on the duration of the policies. Therefore, if there are missing dates 
and the assumptions used are materially different to what is reality, the UPR and DAC figures will not be accurate.

This appendix shows the cumulative triangulations that were used in the reserve report as at December 2018 for the 5 classes where 
triangulation methods were used.

This appendix shows the cumulative triangulations that were used in the reserve report as at 31 December 2018 for the four classes 
where triangulation methods were used, i.e. for Engineering, Fire, General Accident and Motor. The triangulations including and 
excluding exceptionally large losses are shown.

All the triangulations contain only claims paid data as described in the attaching report.

Claims Paid Triangulations as at 31 December 2018 - Including Large Losses

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Engineering

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 1,101,504 1,101,504 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827 1,159,827

2006 - - 48,378 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205 213,205

2007 - - - - - - - - - - - -

2008 1,244,930 1,367,388 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 2,314,651 

2009 1,492,101 2,825,355 2,977,939 3,139,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221 5,389,221  

2010 184,533 1,864,955 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,090,974 19,605,453 19,656,453 19,656,453 19,656,453   

2011 3,484,739 14,194,029 15,151,241 15,181,684 16,662,793 17,296,397 17,296,397 17,296,397    

2012 1,411,981 2,479,314 2,484,903 3,054,465 3,333,177 3,517,878 3,517,878     

2013 3,690,097 3,660,839 3,717,020 4,253,895 4,253,895 4,253,895      

2014 2,597,973 3,275,076 3,974,209 3,974,209 3,974,209       

2015 24,205,330 25,376,347 25,376,347 25,376,347        

2016 3,060,939 3,965,033 4,025,694         

2017 16,708,586 17,145,932          

2018 7,938,116
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Fire

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 11,697,059 11,697,059 11,781,729 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323 12,012,323

2006 4,694,662 4,694,662 4,732,429 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341 6,904,341

2007 - 160,763 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611 299,611

2008 2,243,994 4,468,176 4,609,979 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 4,729,662 

2009 615,535 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008 13,062,008  

2010 4,027,524 4,958,667 4,958,667 5,877,892 5,877,892 5,877,892 5,877,892 5,877,892 5,877,892   

2011 13,854,830 52,294,913 54,925,981 54,925,981 54,930,236 54,930,236 54,930,236 54,930,236    

2012 3,002,662 22,107,268 49,624,404 50,702,354 50,702,354 50,702,354 50,702,354     

2013 4,982,694 10,259,622 17,179,073 17,179,073 17,292,786 17,292,786      

2014 2,204,263 23,480,696 26,872,329 26,893,903 26,893,903       

2015 22,969,865 33,597,250 34,101,493 34,217,747        

2016 60,125,863 75,508,338 78,997,459         

2017 72,500,239 91,429,008          

2018 42,782,451

General Accident

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 86,916 15,112,209 15,112,209 15,453,787 16,502,203 16,502,203 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234 16,510,234

2006 12,220,024 12,220,024 14,676,014 16,404,165 17,960,868 17,960,868 17,960,868 18,041,558 18,248,684 18,248,684 18,248,684 18,248,684

2007 - 2,829,708 3,768,433 3,768,433 5,996,023 5,996,023 6,505,233 6,524,968 6,534,741 6,615,401 6,615,401 6,615,401

2008 10,879,759 40,731,595 43,296,984 47,181,657 49,981,061 50,070,393 50,159,714 50,320,585 50,363,594 50,363,594 50,363,594 

2009 9,456,179 52,301,352 57,183,040 60,632,662 61,612,051 61,918,689 62,401,233 62,401,233 62,401,233 62,401,233  

2010 68,851,633 140,793,913 149,157,164 161,440,067 168,142,302 168,725,399 169,094,122 169,094,122 169,094,122   

2011 29,970,159 120,144,240 137,577,414 138,829,660 139,816,165 140,816,998 140,929,902 140,929,902    

2012 49,357,058 105,310,439 154,504,836 162,789,461 163,706,970 163,706,970 168,735,838     

2013 38,337,209 72,160,652 109,539,666 111,367,257 118,384,135 118,384,135      

2014 49,206,323 111,336,246 140,727,296 157,028,481 157,028,481       

2015 35,391,007 193,514,891 207,562,977 207,565,977        

2016 39,560,637 100,853,203 118,407,566         

2017 50,913,982 78,599,715          

2018 40,885,161
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Motor

Development Year
Accident
Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

2005 - 12,493,259 12,493,259 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009 14,095,009

2006 7,183,547 7,183,547 8,091,816 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179 8,162,179

2007 - 13,490,131 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456 13,513,456

2008 28,697,353 53,971,325 54,682,249 54,682,249 54,712,249 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832 55,331,832 

2009 46,818,708 87,336,233 88,028,286 88,350,910 88,421,660 89,177,660 89,177,660 89,177,660 89,177,660 89,177,660  

2010 74,692,635 110,251,301 111,944,711 119,123,375 119,144,513 119,144,513 119,166,933 119,166,933 119,166,933   

2011 63,119,744 121,145,189 128,786,628 130,366,614 130,904,793 131,358,017 131,490,358 131,490,358    

2012 48,825,250 89,427,481 96,989,771 99,131,135 100,631,497 100,679,197 100,679,197     

2013 72,962,793 110,709,145 113,753,647 114,169,670 114,169,670 114,169,670      

2014 66,632,382 112,652,283 125,466,231 125,466,231 125,466,231       

2015 117,394,839 150,931,684 150,931,684 151,020,113        

2016 147,296,366 157,422,302 157,628,727         

2017 221,690,021 250,767,284          

2018 134,076,470
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60 OTHER NATIONAL DISCLOSURES

60A STATEMENTS OF VALUE ADDED

2018 
N’000 %

2017 
N’000 %

Net insurance premium income 2,429,419 2,080,496

Fee and commission income 322,504 216,364

Total underwriting expenses (1,442,964) (1,423,992)

Net investment income 792,704 803,396

Other services bought (749,280) (663,719)

Value added 1,352,383 100 1,012,545 100

Applied as follows:

In payment of employees:

- Salaries, wages and other benefits 603,839 51 586,388 58

In payment to Government

- Taxation 78,961 8 47,556 3

For future replacement of assets, expansion of business and 
payment of dividend to shareholders:

-  Deferred tax 43,652 (15,645)

-  Depreciation and amortisation 134,396 9 103,313 10

-  Contingency reserve 139,056 9 105,495 10

-  Profit for the year 352,479 23 185,436 18

1,352,383 100 1,012,545 100

Value added represents the additional wealth the Company has been able to create by its own and employees’ efforts. This statement 
shows the allocation of that wealth among employees, providers of capital as well as government and that retained for future creation 
of more wealth.
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60B  FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Notes
31-Dec-18

N’000
31-Dec-17

N’000
31-Dec-16

N’000
31-Dec-15

N’000
31-Dec-14

N’000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent 2 316,947 413,003 344,268 293,252 313,509

Financial assets 3 5,021,045 4,045,348 2,858,969 2,493,191 1,982,989

Trade receivables 4 14,195 40,027 21,210 30,188 127,362

Reinsurance assets 5 2,209,787 916,684 818,580 624,259 523,745

Deferred acquisition cost 6 194,536 153,311 132,297 85,798 109,457

Other receivables and prepayments 7 38,098 105,861 295,220 114,010 45,335

Investment properties 8 100,000 100,000 105,000 320,225 322,000

Property plant and equipment 9 1,256,938 1,134,710 1,120,125 1,077,518 1,029,041

Intangible assets 10 - 33,617 67,235 - 4,441

Statutory deposits 11 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000

Total assets 9,451,546 7,242,561 6,062,904 5,338,441 4,757,880

LIABILITIES

Insurance contract liabilities 12 3,489,155 2,119,275 1,614,318 1,142,450 1,029,726

Trade payables 189,543 95,204 46,465 34,713 10,958

Provision and other payables 13 420,932 433,888 213,262 131,261 223,227

Income tax liabilities 14 78,672 47,556 31,278 26,302 105,756

Deferred tax liabilities 15 108,823 65,171 52,922 24,829 32,818

Total liabilities 4,287,125 2,761,094 1,958,245 1,359,555 1,402,485

EQUITY

Paid-up share capital 16 3,951,753 3,751,753 3,751,753 3,751,753 3,251,753

Share premium 17 410,961 410,961 410,961 410,961 410,961

Contingency reserve 18 729,448 590,390 484,894 419,096 364,763

Retained earnings 19 (444,874) (798,577) (984,014) (1,051,009) (1,185,254)

Available-for-sale reserves - 9,808 (76,068) (69,047)  (3,962)

Asset revaluation surplus 517,133 517,133 517,133 517,133 517,133

Total equity 5,164,421 4,481,468 4,104,659 3,978,886 3,355,395

Total liabilities and equity 9,451,546 7,242,561 6,062,904 5,338,441 4,757,880
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INCOME STATEMENTS

31-Dec-18
N’000

31-Dec-17
N’000

31-Dec-16
N’000

31-Dec-15
N’000

31-Dec-14
N’000

Gross written premium 4,635,233 3,516,548 2,193,274 1,811,112 1,703,833

Gross Premium income 4,388,835 3,360,467 1,957,669 1,869,296 1,488,837

Net premium Earned 2,429,419 2,080,496 1,098,434 1,126,403 1,099,773

Claims incurred (2,025,324) (1,210,334) (269,967) (205,272) (191,901)

Net Underwriting expenses (924,658) (667,992) (381,375) (379,359) (317,943)

Underwriting results 1,308,958 872,868 563,069 657,175 683,876

Investment income 656,427 724,901 372,981 284,575 116,497

Other income 136,278 78,495 125,022 779 13,919

Management expenses (1,382,832) (1,226,480) (858,996) (707,745) (539,270)

Other expenses (103,457) (126,941) (7,415) - (3,492)

Profit before tax 615,598 322,844 194,661 234,784 271,530

Income tax (122,613) (31,911) (61,868) (46,206) (103,975)

Profit after tax 492,985 290,933 132,793 188,578 167,555

Other Comprehensive income (9,808) 85,876 (7,021) (65,085) (3,962)

Total Comprehensive income 483,177 376,809 125,772 123,493 163,593
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ABBREVIATIONS

AFS Available-For-Sale

AGM Annual General Meeting

AURR Additional Unexpired Risk Reserve

CAMA Companies and Allied Matters Act

CBN Central Bank of Nigeria

CCP Central Counterparty

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CGU Cash Generating Unit

CIIN Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria

CITA Company Income Tax Act

CFO Chief Financial Officer

COO Chief Operating Officer

COSO Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the

 Treadway Commission

CRO Chief Risk Officer

DAC Deferred Acquisition Costs

ECL Expected Credit Loss

EPS Earnings Per Share

ExCo Executive Management Committee

FGN Federal Government of Nigeria

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FVOCI Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported

ICAN Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria

ICB International Commercial Banks

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations

 Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KRI Key Risk Indicator

KYC Know Your Customer

MD Managing Director

MPR Monetary Policy Rate

N Naira

NAICOM National Insurance Commission

NBA Nigerian Bar Association

NIBOR Nigerian Inter-Bank Offered Rate

OCI Other Comprehensive Income

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

PFA Pension Fund Administrator

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

SLA Service Level Agreement

UPR Unexpired Premium Reserve
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CONTACT INFORMATION

Abuja

1, Zambezi Crescent, Off Aguiyi

Ironsi Street, Maitama - Abuja.

Tel: +234 8023 732 963

Tel: +234 8185 618 083

Akure

3rd Floor, Bank Of Industry (BOI)

Opposite First Bank Of Nigeria Plc,

Alagbaka Estate, Akure, Ondo State

Tel: +234 7015 158 258,

+234 8039 415 778

Enugu

FBN General Insurance Limited

First Bank, Enugu Main

21, Okpara Avenue,

Enugu, Enugu State.

Tel: +234 8022 806 628

Ibadan

FBN General Insurance Limited

2nd Floor, First Bank Building

48, Challenge/Molete Road,

Ibadan, Oyo State.

Tel: +234 8085 227 782

Kano

FBN General Insurance Limited

1 Sani Abacha Way. Kano

Tel: +234 8177 199 537

Port Harcourt

80, Aba Road, Opposite

Government Craft Centre,

Port-Harcourt, Rivers State.

Tel: +234 8023 064 656

Warri

60, Effurun/Sapele Road,

Effurun, Delta State.

Tel: +234 7014 345 819

Head office

298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony, Lagos.

Tel: +234 1 905 4810,

+234 1 905 4444

Regional offices:

Website: www.fbngeneralinsurance.com
Email: contactfbngi@fbninsurance.com
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NOTES



www.fbngeneralinsurance.com

Registered Address
298, Ikorodu Road, Anthony,
Lagos, Nigeria.
Registration Number: RC 208278

Customer Enquiries
Email:  contactfbngi@fbninsurance.com
Tel:  +234 1 905 4820
 +234 1 905 4832


